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CORPORATE PROFILE
ACILE)

As a pioneer in the IT industry, Computer And Technologies (“C&T") Group
operates its business on a vision to build a better world with Information
Technology. Since our establishment in 1991 and listing in the main board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: SEHK00046) in 1998,
C&T Group has committed to providing best-of-breed software products
from human resources management to enterprise-level information
management, procurement management and retail management to
enable organisations to run their businesses and operations better. Apart
from software products, the Group also has a long-standing track record in
delivering effective IT solutions and quality services, including IT solutions
design and implementation, software development, online e-Services
as well as business processing outsourcing services, to enhance the
competitive advantages of our clients.

For more than two decades, C&T's products and services have been
widely adopted across multiple industries, from local conglomerates to
multinational corporations and government organisations. Leveraging on
C&T's products and services, our customers are enhancing their business
and operation covering from the basic necessities of our daily life including
clothing, food, housing and transportation to the highly-specialised and
professional services.

Apart from serving extensively the large commercial organisations, C&T
is also an active services provider for government organisations and the
public sector in delivering world-class innovative and large-scale mission-
critical IT solutions. Our credentials include implementation of the 2
generation Automated Securities Trading System for Shanghai Stock
Exchange, the world-first and award winning electronic tendering system
for the Hong Kong SAR Government and the 7x24 mission-critical customer
care and billing system supporting over 2 million households in Hong Kong.
Our professional services also extend to integration of modern technologies
and management best practice into traditional business segments. The
award-winning cemetery management system we built for the Board of
Management of the Chinese Permanent Cemeteries is one of the many
successful examples of ours.

Our staff is the most important factor for our success. We recruit and
develop high caliber professionals who are both knowledgeable and
skillful in latest technology spectrums including web-based development,
cloud services, mobile applications and security networks. Our people are
also experienced in large-scale software implementation ranging from
project management and technical design to system development and
maintenance. Our sustained accomplishment is also a reflection of our
committed practice of IT development standards and methods in related to
resources and project management, quality control, system implementation
and support methodologies.

Together with our extensive business domain knowledge in human
resources, information management, procurement handling and retail
solutions management, C&T is committed to providing all our clients with
best-of-breed software products and high quality system development and
related services and, putting all these together, to building a better world
with Information Technology for all of us.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
DEER(E)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MR

For the year ended 31 December
BET-A=T-RILER
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

ZE-RFE ZE—tF ZE-N\F ZZE-hF ZE-EF
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million | HKS$ Million
BEBTT BEBTL BEBT BEBTT BEETR

Revenue WA 2587 2539 2814 2759 256.3
Profit attributable to shareholders  F% B2 J& {5 4F & 3% ) 503 543 68.0 559 60.1
HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents
il il il il AL
Basic earnings per share FREREF
("EPS") (IFREXZEHN]) 2081 2243 27.85 2263 24.31
Interim dividends AR B 7.00 7.00 9,00 9.00 5.00
Final dividends REIRR S 7.00 7.00 12.00 8.00 12.00
Special dividends R Bl A S 3.00 8.00 - - -
Dividends per share FREE
("DPS") (I=EE D) 17.00 22.00 21.00 17.00 17.00
Revenue Profit attributable to shareholders EPS vs DPS
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBE

Dear Shareholders,

OVERVIEW

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The outbreak of the unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic (the “Outbreak”)
and tightened public health measures including work from home and
social distancing measures materially impacted the Group's business and
operations during the reporting year. Although the operation performance
had been improved in the second half of the year, the Group’s overall
revenue inevitably dropped by HK$19.6 million, or 7.1% to HK$256.3 million
(2019: HKS$275.9 million). In line with the revenue drop, the Group'’s gross
profit also recorded a decrease by HK$10.5 million, or 6.7% to HK$144.8
million (2019: HK$155.3 million) while the gross profit margin maintained at
56.5% (2019: 56.3%).

On the other hand, the Group had participated in the Employment Support
Scheme (the “ESS") and received HK$14.5 million subsidies from the HKSAR
government (the “Government”). The ESS subsidies, which accounted
for approximately 13.3% of the staff costs incurred in Hong Kong during
the year, were consumed by salary paying. Resulting from that the other
income and gains, net increased by HK$14.4 million, or 182.9% to HK$22.3
million (2019: HK$7.9 million). Conversely, the Group's financial assets and
investment properties triggered losses of HKS$3.7 million (2019: gains of
HK$3.9 million) due to downward valuations caused by the Outbreak.

The selling and distribution expenses decreased as a result of lessen
marketing and sales activities during the Outbreak. The general and
administrative expenses were also reduced with savings derived from
various accommodative measures carried out by the PRC and HKSAR
government. The income tax expense also reduced in line with the decrease
in assessable profits generated in both Hong Kong and the PRC.

With the abovementioned, the Group’s consolidated net profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company increased moderately by 7.6% to HK$60.1
million (2019: HK$55.9 million). The basic earnings per share also moved up
to 24.31 HK cents (2019: 22.63 HK cents).
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

OVERVIEW (CONTINUED)

Amidst the severe operating environment, the Group has continuously
generating positive cash inflow from operations and maintained a sustained
healthy financial position. The Board declared the distribution of a final
dividend of 12 HK cents (2019: 8 HK cents) per ordinary share for the year
ended 31 December 2020. Counting the previously paid interim dividend of
5 HK cents (2019: 9 HK cents) together with this proposed final dividend, the
Group's full year dividend payout reached 17 HK cents (2019: 17 HK cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Application Software
Despite the operation performance had been improved in the second half

of the reporting year, the Group's Application Software'” business recorded
a moderate drop in both revenue and profit contributions for the reporting
year.

Although the Outbreak caused delay in conclusion of new contracts, the
Group’s Human Resources Management Software (“HRMS”) business in
Hong Kong, serving a vast number of enterprise customers covering almost
every bases of the city, performed stably with recurring incomes from its
strong customer base and order backlog carried from previous year.

As reported in the interim results, the HRMS business in Mainland China
was impacted seriously by the Outbreak in the first half of the year. While
the performance improved in the second half of the reporting year, the
contributions of the related business were inevitably lower compared with
last year. Nevertheless, the business managed to secure contracts from
prestigious customers including several multi-year Software as a Service
("SaaS”) contracts including those from a leading global logistics company
and a multinational consumer goods corporation.

The Outbreak had caused serious delay of investment decisions of both new
prospects and existing customers for HRMS applications. On the other hand,
it had created increasing awareness for enterprises to improve their human
resources system in order to cope up with remote office and other business
challenges. The related sales activities have been gradually improving and
despite the difficult operating environment, the business unit managed to
expand the install base with new customers from various industry sectors
during the reporting year.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Application Software (continued)
The Group'’s Enterprise Information Management Software (“EIMS”) business

achieved satisfactory results during the reporting year, riding on the
strong customer base and sustainable prospects from the public sectors.
Capturing timely the demand for more flexible and secured online business
platform, EIMS was also successfully entrusted by several securities and
financial service companies in enhancing their online customer acquisition
processes.

With the appropriate SaaS based business model, the Group's Enterprise
Procurement Management Software ("EPMS”) business performed steadily
with the continuous expansion of the recurring SaaS income streams from
new customers during the reporting period. However, the Outbreak caused
deferral of procurement decisions of certain potential new customers and
slowed down the fast-growing SaaS revenue of EPMS.

The Group'’s Enterprise Retail Management Software ("ERMS”) business
weathered the COVID-19 storm impacting badly the retail industries and
managed to deliver a steady contribution to the Group during the year. The
solid performance was primarily driven by the successful market adaption
of the new Mobile POS (“mPQS") Module of the Group’s ERMS product as
well as close partnership with existing clients. However, the management
anticipated that the recovery of the retail industry may take a prolonged
period which may introduce challenges to ERMS's business growth in the
coming year.

Through the connection with its open platform frameworks that interfaced
with the Group's core application software, the Group’s research and
development team (“R&D team”) has continued to develop new product
functions by adapting the latest technology. The architecture of the
underlying foundation had also been improved with additional security
measures such as configurable encryption features which are now available
in the Group's application software.

The R&D team had also developed a generic e-Form builder that would
integrate with the existing workflow engine to accommodate various
customisation requirements for clients’ projects for higher programming
efficiency which will reduce the overall project implementation cost and
shorten delivery time.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Application Software (continued)
Furthermore, the Group had taken another move to expand its software

offerings and R&D capabilities by acquiring 40% equity interest of CISC
Limited ("CISC"), a research spinoff company carrying the technology and
innovation from the Center for Information Security and Cryptography,
Engineering Faculty of The University of Hong Kong. The Group is actively
exploring cooperation with CISC to integrate some of their technologies
into the Group's application software and to expand CISC's offering into the
Group’s customer base.

Solutions and Integration Services
Benefiting from completion of delivery milestones for various projects

by the Group’s Solutions Services, the Group’s Solutions and Integration
Services? business experienced a V-shaped rebound in the second half of
the year and recorded improvement in its full year performance.

The Managed Services? under the Group's Solutions Services business
continued to generate stable maintenance income from the second 10-
year services contract (the “Contract”) of the Customer Care and Billing
System ("CCBS”) for the Water Supplies Department under the Government.
Leveraging on the delivery of a sizable variation order awarded, the
performance of Managed Services business had been noticeably improved
during the reporting year.

Moreover, the business completed the systems analysis & design (“SA&D")
phase of the CCBS's software enhancements in the third quarter of 2020 and
moved to development and testing phase in full force. The related project
is targeted to be completed in 2022. During the reporting year, the Group
capitalised the development costs of around HK$4.8 million as deferred
development costs. The management further decided not to capitalise the
project costs after the SA&D phase and charged the costs of approximately
HK$3.3 million to the profit or loss account.

The performance of Development Services? ("“DS") under the Group'’s
Solutions Services business was improved in the second half of the
reporting year and achieved a positive growth in the overall result. The DS
team completed delivery milestones of several long-delayed projects and
released resources to tackle new projects from various customers including
government organisations, a public transportation body and a non-
government organisation during the reporting year.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Solutions and Integration Services (continued)
The performance of the Group’s Integration Services? business in the PRC

remained steady during the reporting year.

The Outbreak had adversely affected the Group's BPO® business throughout
the whole year but the financial effect to the Group is considered as
immaterial. As mentioned in the interim results announcement, the
management had deployed related resources to support other businesses
of the Group in order to minimise its running costs.

e-Service and related business
As the Outbreak continued to spread across the world and disrupted the

global supply chain throughout the year, the Group’s GETS® business
performance suffered an inescapably hard hit and recorded declines in both
revenue and profit contribution during the reporting year. Despite the fall,
the market share of the business was generally maintained.

As reported in the interim results, the termination of the collaboration with
Hongkong Post in providing paper-to-electronic trade declaration services
in early 2020 also contributed to the revenue drop but had minimal impact
to the profit contribution.

The outlook of the business would be largely dependent on the situation
and duration of the pandemic development.

Investments
The Group recorded a loss of HKS0.2 million in view of material drop in

rental income and valuation losses from its investment properties and
financial assets.

During the year, the Group disposed properties in the PRC to an
independent third party for a total consideration of HK$5.5 million and
accordingly recorded gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment of
HK$2.0 million and fair value gain on revaluation of investment property of
HKS0.5 million in 2020.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

PROSPECT

The Outbreak has caused disruptions to the economic and social activities
of the entire world. Those disruptions pose threats to the markets that the
Group is operating and make the Group’s prospect full of uncertainties. The
development of the Group’s businesses is largely dependent on whether
the Outbreak could be effectively controlled.

In response to the Outbreak, the Group has made every effort to ensure a
safe environment for its workforce. All the workplace hygiene and measures
to prevent the spread of COVID-19 in the working environment would be
continued. The Group will stay alert and impose appropriate measures to
minimise the negative impact on the Group's business operation.

The Group remains cautiously optimistic in a more stable business
environment going forward. Building on our core competitiveness, the
Group will proactively explore further merger and acquisition opportunities
and/or business collaboration and steadfast in our commitment in R&D with
the best endeavors to improve our operation efficiency and profitability of
the businesses.

Footnotes:

m The Group's Application Services business engages in the provision of enterprise
applications software and e-business services for enterprises including (i) the
provision of enterprise applications software with implementation and ongoing
support services for Human Resource Management, Enterprise Procurement
Management, Enterprise Information Management and Enterprise Retail
Management (collectively the "Application Software”); and (i) the Government
Electronic Trading Services ("GETS"), cloud services and other related value added
services (collectively the “e-Service and related business”).

@ The Group's Solutions and Integration Services business includes (i) Development
Services for the provision of IT solutions implementation and application software
development; (i) Managed Services for the provision of IT and related operation/
infrastructure outsourcing services; (i) business process outsourcing ("BPO")
services; and (iv) Integration Services for the provision of IT systems and network
infrastructure with related design, implementation and ongoing support services.

@ The Group's BPO business comprises the provision of services for the operations
and support of specific business functions or processes of customers.

@ Since 2004, the Group has been granted a licence (the “GETS Licence”) from the
Government for the provision of front-end Government Electronic Trading Services
for processing certain official trade-related documents. The Group’s GETS License
was further renewed in early 2018 for operation of additional six years until the end
of 2024.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit
The Group's revenue decreased by HK$19.6 million, or 7.1% to HK$256.3

million (2019: HK$275.9 million) during the reporting year. The Outbreak
has caused postponements or cancellations of various business meetings
and sales activities which resulted in delays of project deliveries and
new contract conclusions, especially to the Group's Application Services
business. The Group's gross profit also decreased by HK$10.5 million, or 6.7%
to HKS$144.8 million (2019: HK$155.3 million) while the gross profit margin
maintained at 56.5% (2019: 56.3%).

Non-operating incomes and gains, net (included other
income and gains, net, foreign exchange differences,

net and fair value gains/(losses), net)
Non-operating incomes and gains, net (included other income and gains,

net, foreign exchange differences, net, and fair value gains/(losses), net)
increased significantly by 47.7% to HK$18.0 million (2019: HK$12.2 million).

The change was due to the mixed effects of the recognition of the ESS
subsidies of HK$14.5 million (2019: Nil) granted by the Government, fair
value gains on disposal of a property in the PRC of HK$2.0 million, losses of
HK$3.7 million (2019: gain of HK$3.9 million) due to changes in the valuation
of the Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
investment properties, and the decrease in bank interest income, dividend
incomes and value-added tax refund.

Expenses
In line with the decrease in sales, the reductions in the incentive related

staff costs and marketing activities accounted for the decrease in selling and
distribution expenses of the Group by HK$3.8 million, or 10.4% to HK$32.8
million (2019: HK$36.6 million).

Primarily due to the savings derived from various accommodative policies
launched by the PRC and HKSAR governments, the Group's general and
administrative expenses, net reduced by HK$2.5 million, or 4.0% to HK$60.9
million (2019: HK$63.5 million).

The Group recognised finance costs of HK$1.2 million (2019: HKS$1.1 million)
following the adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 16
Leases ("HKFRS 16") since 2019.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Expenses (continued)
The other expenses increased in line with the increase in amortisation of

other intangible assets arising from the acquisition of CISC.

Income tax expense
In line with the decrease in assessable profits generated in Hong Kong and

the PRC, the income tax expense decreased by HK$2.6 million, or 59.9% to
HK$1.7 million (2019: HK$4.3 million).

The Group’s overall effective tax rate for the tax charge in 2020 was around
2.8%, compared with 7.2% in 2019. The effective tax rate was lower than
the Hong Kong statutory profits tax rate because several types of onshore
incomes, including subsidies granted under the ESS, dividend and bank
interest incomes were not subject to the Hong Kong profits tax. Besides, the
R&D activities of certain local subsidiaries of the Group were qualified for the
enhanced tax deductions under the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Net profit
The recognition of ESS subsidies primarily contributed to the improvement

of profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year by 7.6%
to HK$60.1 million (2019: HK$55.9 million). In line with the profit for the
year, the net profit margin (profit for the period attributable to shareholders
divided by the revenue) also soared to 23.5% (2019: 20.3%).

Non-current assets
The Group's non-current assets as at 31 December 2020 slightly dropped

by 2.9% to HK$274.3 million (31 December 2019: HK$282.4 million). The
change was primarily attributed to the mixed effects of (i) the disposal of
PRC properties reduced the balances of property, plant and equipment and
investment properties; (i) the valuation loss recognised by the investment
properties; (i) the depreciation of properties, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets and (iv) the reclassification of rental deposit from non-
current assets to current assets.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Current assets
The Group's current assets as at 31 December 2020 increased by 11.8% to

HK$393.0 million (31 December 2019: HK$351.5 million). The change was
primarily attributed to the increase in cash and bank balances (including
the cash and cash equivalents, the money market certificate classified
under financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and pledged bank
deposits) by a net aggregate of HK$47.3 million.

The Group maintains strict controls over its outstanding trade receivables
and considered that the trade receivables (net of loss allowance) would be
all recoverable in the foreseeable future.

Current and non-current liabilities
The Group’s current liabilities and non-current liabilities as at 31 December

2020 dropped slightly by 0.6% to HK$151.7 million (31 December 2019:
HK$152.6 million). The change was primarily attributed by the mixed effects
of the increase in trade payables, other payables and accruals by HK$2.1
million, the increase in contract liabilities by HK$5.3 million and the decrease
in lease liabilities and tax payable by HK$2.6 million and HKS$5.7 million,
respectively.

Segment assets and liabilities
Segment assets of Applications Services business decreased due to the

amortisation of other intangible assets while the segment liabilities of the
business increased in line with the increase in contract liabilities and lease
liabilities arising from daily business operations.

Segment assets of Solutions and Integration Services business increased
in line with the increase in deferred development costs while the segment
liabilities of the business was comparable with last year.

Segment assets of Investments business decreased owing to the disposal
of a money market certificate and PRC properties and the fair value losses
recorded for both investment properties and financial assets.

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Growth in retained profits contributed to the increase in equity as at

31 December 2020 by HK$31.8 million, or 6.6% to HK$513.2 million (31
December 2019: HK$481.4 million).
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position
throughout the period under review. The Group strives to reduce exposure
to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations
of the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity
structure of the Group's assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet
its funding requirements from time to time.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had pledged an investment property
with a fair value of HK$63.0 million (31 December 2019: HK$64.2 million),
listed debt and equity securities of HK$7.3 million (31 December 2019:
HKS$12.7 million) and bank balances of HK$0.7 million (31 December 2019
HK$2.5 million) to secure certain general bank facilities including guarantee/
performance bonds facilities granted to the Group/subsidiaries of the
Company in aggregate of HK$112.0 million (31 December 2019: HK$112.0
million) of which HK$21.6 million (31 December 2019: HK$21.7 million) have
been utilised as at 31 December 2020.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's cash and cash equivalents were
HK$295.6 million (31 December 2019: HK$200.7 million).

All of the Group’s on hand fundings are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars. The Group has not adopted any hedging policies, as these
currencies carry relatively low exchange fluctuation risks. Nevertheless, the
Group had been monitoring the foreign exchange exposures closely and
hedging any significant foreign currency exposure in order to minimise the
exchange risk should the needs arose.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no bank borrowings (31 December
2019: Nil). The Group’s current ratio representing current assets divided by
current liabilities was 2.9 (31 December 2019: 2.6) and the gearing ratio,
representing total liabilities divided by total assets, was 22.7% (31 December
2019: 24.1%).
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(E)

REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBER OF FMERKREESEHAE

EMPLOYEES

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, working AEEKEBRE  TELRRERITHRMAIE
experience and prevailing market conditions. Apart from basic salary, EXNEHM BREXRF I REEATRER
discretionary bonus and other incentives are offered to employees of the EERHBEARAEMER UEREKSE ZKRR
Group to reward their performance and contributions. NER -

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed 374 full time employees and RZEZEF+—A=+—8 KEEER34
5 contract-based employees (31 December 2019: 407 full time employees HZEBEERSEENEE (ZE—NAF+ZA
and 5 contract-based employees). =tT—H: 40722 BEBRSEEHEER) °
As at 31 December 2020, the Company operates a share option scheme and RZZEBEZEF+_A=+—0 XxRAFEHRL
a share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards R B R AR RENET & BB R ERE
to the employees who contribute to the success of the Group's operations BEBKINEREMZEEURBRER ZHF
as well as to retain them for the continual development of the Group. BEEBREEBARES -

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS EXRE

For the year
As at ended
31 December 31 December
As at 31 December 2020 2019 2020
B=E
i —B-%F
—E-hEF +=A
+=A =t+—8H
R-B-_BHF+-A=+—H =t+-—H LFE
Approximate
percentage of
financial assets Approximate
at fair value percentage
through profit to the total Net fair value
Fair value or loss assets Fair value gain/(loss)
RAYE
KRERARZ
MBEE HREEE DR EWER
AFE BABE D BABE DL AFE (B1]) #8
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FHET TAT

Money market certificate (note a)

BEEMBFE (fita) - - - 43,195 71
Others (note b)
H b (MsEDb) 9,483 100.0% 1.4% 14,754 (2,826)

Total financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
BRATERLREBEZARZUBEE
#at 9,483 100.0% 1.4% 57,949 (2,755)
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

a. Money market certificate was acquired at cost of HK$42,829,000 in August 2019.
The certificate is an investment instrument that provides a specific interest rate
for a specific period of time. The issuer of the certificate is UBS AG Hong Kong
Branch. UBS AG is one of the leading personal and corporate bank in the world.
The principal and the return of the certificate were not guaranteed and the interest
rates of the certificate may change from time to time. The interest of the certificate
was reflected in its fair value and had been realised upon disposal. The certificate
was disposed in February 2020 and an additional gain of HK$71,000 was being
recorded in 2020.

The Group considered that the certificate was a liquid investment instrument
and the purpose for acquiring the certificate was purely to utilise the surplus cash
reserves of the Group for a perceived stable return.

b. Others comprised of various listed equity investments and debt investments, none
of which accounted for more than 5% of the Group’s total assets as at the year end
date.

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group had no significant investments
held as at 31 December 2020.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in note 31 regarding the acquisition of a subsidiary, the
Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
during the reporting year and up to the date of this report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the report, there was no specific plan for material
investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2020.

EARE (F)
Wi

a. ERMBFER T —NEN A LL42829,000% 7T
RAWE ZFEA—BRETR AJRETH
HARHEBEMNER FERITEAKBERETE
DITWIREE A B RIBLANEARDER
T HFENEAES RORTEER BFER KK
TR EL TENFNERBREQAFE L
REEREE - ZEEER_ZS-_TF_AHE -
WK ZZEZTFEHE—AEINIE 71,0008 7T °

AEERRZEERMPRETE  MEUSZTF
BENBENARSMNAASRENRBRSHEBRE
IBE O -

b. HiBEEBELTREREREFRE RFEEH
HIGMMEREEBEES% AL

BAREMBEEIN BE_T_TF+_H
=+t—B" $;‘%i’ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬂiﬁ&é

E&WEKEEW%QEZEkﬁ

BRMaE ARRE —HNB AR AREEIN
AEERBEFEAREEARE A HL HEHE
TEFREREBERLEHNBAR ZERRS -

EARENEXREEZARKETE
BAREHFRBEN BE-T-FTF+-A
Zt—B AEEEEREARERATEE
HIE AR E -

HREE

BRABRESHAREESIN BE-_FT_FTF+_-A
=t—A" $%§E?ﬁ$ﬁ§z%%1ﬁ °

B ZSEEFR A —E-TFFIR

17



18

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(E)

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of 12 HK
cents (2019: a final dividend of 8 HK cents) per ordinary share for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 12 HK cents (2019: a final
dividend of 8 HK cents) per ordinary share payable to shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on Friday, 4
June 2021. The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 24 May 2021 to Thursday, 27 May 2021 (both days inclusive) for
the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the annual general meeting (“the AGM"). In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM to be held on Thursday, 27 May 2021, all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 21 May 2021. In addition,
the Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 3
June 2021 to Friday, 4 June 2021 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of
ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final dividend. In
order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 2 June 2021. During such periods,
no share transfer will be effected. The final dividend will be distributed on or
about Thursday, 17 June 2021 to shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company on Friday, 4 June 2021.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of reviewing
and providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process,
risk management and internal controls. The Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive directors of the Company. The Audit
Committee has reviewed with the management the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed
risk management and internal controls and financial reporting matters
related to the preparation of the annual results for the year ended 31
December 2020.

APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to express our
sincere thanks to all employees, shareholders, customers and business
partners for their supports to the Group during the reporting year.

By Order of the Board

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
Ng Cheung Shing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2021
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENENEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ir. Ng Cheung Shing, aged 59, the founder and Chairman, is responsible
for the corporate strategies and business development of the Group. Ir.
Ng graduated with a Bachelor of Science (Honours) Degree in Computer
Science from the University of Manchester in the United Kingdom in 1984
and has over 30 years of experience in IT industry. Before establishing the
Company, Ir. Ng held executive positions in companies such as Hewlett-
Packard Asia Pacific Limited and Sun Hung Kai (China) Limited. Ir. Ng is
the Honorary Fellow of Vocational Training Council and the Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries and a fellow of the Hong Kong
Computer Society and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. Ir. Ng was
also the awardees of “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong’, “Ten
Outstanding Young Persons Award of Hong Kong” and “Directors of the
Year Awards”.

Ir. Ng is the brother-in-law of Mr. Leung King San, Sunny.

Mr. Cheung Wai Lam, aged 57, was the Group's Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ") and is now responsible for overseas business development. Mr.
Cheung has over 30 years of experience in IT and consulting business
ranging from software development to enterprise solutions implementation
and is one of the founders of Y&A Professional Services Ltd. (the "Y&A"). Mr.
Cheung joined the Group in 2006 when Y&A became a subsidiary of the
Group. Before Y&A, he held various consulting positions in IBM in Hong
Kong and Australia. Mr. Cheung graduated from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in Computer Science in 1985 and an
Executive Master Degree in Business Administration in 2011.

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny, aged 59, is responsible for finance and
administration strategies of the Group. Mr. Leung has 30 years of experience
in finance, administration and planning in the IT industry. Before joining
the Group, Mr. Leung held senior management positions in IBM and
its associated company in Asia Pacific. Mr. Leung graduated from the
Simon Fraser University in Canada with a Bachelor's Degree in Business
Administration in 1983.

Mr. Leung is the brother-in-law of Ir. Ng Cheung Shing.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEE(A)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, aged 47, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group
and the Secretary of the Company. He has over 20 years of experience
in accounting, auditing, finance and business advisory. Before joining
the Group, he was a financial controller of a Hong Kong listed company
and worked as a manager of assurance and advisory business services
department of an international accounting firm. Mr. Ng graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts Degree
in Accountancy and is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ha Shu Tong, aged 72, joined the Board in 1998. Mr. Ha has involved
in the financial industry for over 40 years and has substantial experience in
corporate finance and corporate development.

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, aged 60, PhD, joined the Board in
1998. He is Vice-President (Development & External Relations) and Chair
Professor of Information Systems & E-Commerce at the City University of
Hong Kong. Professor Lee is the Chairman of the Hong Kong Committee for
Pacific Economic Cooperation, and a member of the Hong Kong Deposit
Protection Board. He has substantial senior management experience and IT
related research expertise. Professor Lee is an independent non-executive
director of Glory Sun Financial Group Limited (Stock Code: 1282). He holds
the following UK. university degrees: BEng (first-class honours) in electronic
engineering & MBA in business studies (University of Sheffield); MSc in
computation (University of Oxford); PhD in computer science (University
of Manchester); LLB and LLM in commercial & corporate law (University
of London). He is a charter engineer of the UK Engineering Council and a
professional member of the British Computer Society. Professor Lee has
been admitted as a barrister-at-law in Hong Kong and England & Wales.

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ACA,
CTA(HK), FHKIoD, aged 67, joined the Board in 2004. Mr. Ting is an
accountant in public practice as a partner of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan,
Certified Public Accountants since 1987. He is currently a non-executive
director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (Stock Code:
116) and holds independent non-executive directorship in six other listed
companies namely, China SCE Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1966),
Dongyue Group Limited (Stock Code: 189), New Silkroad Culturaltainment
Limited (Stock Code: 472), Texhong Textile Group Limited (Stock Code:
2678), Tong Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited (Stock Code: 1666)
and Tongda Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 698).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEE(E)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Poon Ka Chi, William, aged 55, the Group’s Deputy CEO, joined the
Group in 2018 and focuses on consolidating the Solutions & Integration
Services and driving further development of the business in Hong Kong and
the Greater China region. Mr. Poon has over 30 years of experience in the
IT industry and has held various leadership roles in renowned businesses
of technology solutions and outsourcing services across the region.
Graduating from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science
Degree in Computer Studies in 1988, Mr. Poon received an Executive Master
of Business Administration Degree from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 2001.

Mr. Yeung Sai Cheong, Steve, aged 55, the Group’s Senior Vice President,
is in charge of the corporate development as well as Application Software
business units of the Group. Mr. Yeung joined the Group in 1998 and has
over 30 years of IT experience in general management. He graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Computer
Studies in 1988 and received a Master Degree in Business Administration
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 1999.

Mr. Kwok Ka Chun, Erik, aged 42, the Group’s Chief Technology Officer,
joined the Group in 2018 and is in charge of the Research & Development
("R&D") division focusing on the Group's software products. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Kwok had worked in both Canada and Mainland
China where he led multiple R&D teams across Canada, China and India
working on cross-industry software products and vertical solutions. In
addition to building R&D teams and products, he was responsible for sales
development activities and project delivery for multinational corporations.
Mr. Kwok graduated from the Simon Fraser University in Canada with a
Bachelor's Degree in Computing Science.

Ms. Ng Ka Yan, Karen, aged 44, the Group’s General Manager of enterprise
software, leads the operations and growth of the Group's enterprise
software businesses. Joining the Group in 2019, Ms. Ng brought in 20 years
of extensive business experience from international software and solution
companies. Ms. Ng graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor Degree of Arts and a Master Degree of Science.

Mr. Poon Chi Shing, Anthony, aged 48, the Group’s Assistant Vice
President of Managed Services, joined the Group in 2003 and is in charge
of the Managed Services under the Group’s Solutions Services. Mr. Poon
graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in
Computing Science.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the principles
of integrity, transparency and accountability. The board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate governance is essential
to the success of the Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’
value.

The Board opined that the Company has complied with the code provision
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG code”) as stipulated in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) during the reporting year
except on the deviations noted below.

The CG code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer ("CEQ") should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. As disclosed in the announcement dated 30
December 2019, Mr. Cheung Wai Lam has been re-designated from an
executive director of the Company and the CEO to an executive director
effective 1 January 2020.

Mr. Poon Ka Chi, William has been appointed as the deputy CEO of the
Group with effect from 1 August 2018. Deputy CEO mainly focuses on
certain business operations and administrative functions of the Group,
assists the Board to formulate strategies for the Group and to make sure
they are implemented successfully. With the present board structure and
scope of business, the Board considers that there is no imminent need to
appoint a CEOQ. However, the Board will continue to review the effectiveness
of the Group's corporate governance structure and will consider whether
any changes, including the appointment of a CEQ, are necessary.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that its corporate governance practices are similar to those provided in the
CG Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises four executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors (“INEDs"):

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung

INEDs:

Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

INEDs constitute more than one-third of the Board. The Company has
received from each INED a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers that all INEDs are independent. One of the three INEDs is a
professional accountant, which is in compliance with the requirement of
the Listing Rules.

One-third of the directors shall retire from office at every annual general
meeting and all directors (including INEDs) are subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company (“Bye-laws”) as amended from time to time and the CG Code.
Retiring directors are eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting
at which they retire. Any director appointed to fill a causal vacancy is subject
to re-election at the next annual general meeting of the Company. Separate
resolutions have been proposed for the election of each director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
DEERRE ()

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Board nomination policy
The Nomination Committee shall endeavour to find individuals of high

integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in their chosen
fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities and skills to effectively
represent the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
Candidates will be selected for their ability to exercise good judgement, and
to provide practical insights and diverse perspectives. Candidates also will
be assessed in the context of the then-current composition in the Board,
the operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this assessment,
the Nomination Committee will, in connection with its assessment and
recommendation of candidates for director, consider diversity (including but
not limited to gender, age, ethnicity, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, industry knowledge and length of service)
and such other factors as it deems appropriate given the then-current and
anticipated future needs of the Board and the Company, and to maintain a
balance of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills on the Board.

The Company shall review and reassess the nomination policy and its
effectiveness on a regular basis or as required.

Nomination process
The Nomination Committee shall assess whether any vacancy on the Board

has been created or is expected on a regular basis or as required.

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods for identifying
director candidates, including recommendations from Board members,
management and professional search firms. All director candidates,
including incumbents and candidates nominated by the shareholders,
are evaluated by the Nomination Committee based upon the director
qualifications. While director candidates will be evaluated on the same
criteria through review of resume, personal interview and performance of
background checks.

The Nomination Committee retains the discretion to establish the relative
weighing of such criteria, which may vary based on the composition,
gender, age, knowledge, skills and experiences of the collective Board rather
than on the individual candidate for the purpose of diversity perspectives
appropriate to the requirement of the Group's business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Selection criteria
The Nomination Committee considers the following qualifications at a

minimum to be required of any Board members in recommending to the
Board potential new board members, or the continued service of existing
members:

broad experience in business and the ability to provide insights and
practical wisdom based on their experience and expertise;

the highest professional and personal ethics and in compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

with sufficient time to carry out their duties effectively and to make
contributions to the Company’s success and such other factors
as it may deem are in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders; and

ability to develop a good working relationship with other Board
members and to assist and support management of the Group.

Board Diversity Policy
The Company noted that that people from different backgrounds and with

different professional and life experience are likely to approach problems
in different ways and accordingly, members of the Board with diverse
backgrounds will bring different concerns and questions to the table, and
allow the Board to consider a wider range of options and solutions when
deciding on corporate issues and formulating policies for the Group.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board's composition, the Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Board appointments will
continue to be made on a merit basis and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

The composition of the Board is reviewed on an annual basis by the
Nomination Committee to ensure that the Board has the approximate
mix of expertise and experience, and collectively possesses the necessary
core competence for informed decision making and effective functioning.
The Company adopted its own Board Diversity Policy and recognises the
benefits of having diversity in the composition of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) BEET (&)
Board Diversity Policy (continued) EEgZnbEE (R
The current board composition was also evaluated by reference to, among BR BEFGCAXNIK2E(HFBE)&F
other things, the gender, age, educational background, professional 2R FR CHEER BELR B
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service of each director, against MBRREFE  LRAQF 2 EBENRE
the Company’s business model and specific needs. EH BB -
As of the date of this report, the Board comprises seven directors and is RABRERBH -E5ehHERESFHEN BA
characterised by great diversity, whether considered in terms of age, length BIRFER  REFH BEER FELH -
of service, educational background, professional experience, skills and AT R AN # o
knowledge.
Composition of the diversified Board LZRtEEENAR
Age group Length of service
FERAR PR % 4 28
Less than 10 years
Name of director 40to 49 50 to 59 60 to 69 70to 79 10 Years or more
EEpg 40F495  S50E59m  60F69m  70E79H  HRI10F  10FFHLE
Ng Cheung Shing RER v v
Cheung Wai Lam RER v v
Leung King San, Sunny R=H v/ v
Ng Kwok Keung KBl v v/
Ha ShuTong Effix v v
Lee Kwok On, Matthew TEZ v/ v
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TR#E v v
Educational background Professional experience
HEER HEZR
Accounting
Name of director Accountancy Law IT/Others  and finance Law IT/Others
ERME/ a5t ERNE/
EEpg y Hity REw R Hitr
Ng Cheung Shing REE v v
Cheung Wai Lam RER v/ v
Leung King San, Sunny REF 4 v/
Ng Kwok Keung KRBl v v
Ha ShuTong Effix v v
Lee Kwok On, Matthew EXEib v/ / v/ v
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE v v
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
DEERRE ()

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Composition of the diversified Board (continued)
The Company believes diversity is important to enhance the Board'’s

effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and to maintain
high standards of corporate governance. The Company will continue to
monitor and develop new objectives for implementing and achieving
improved diversity on the Board as and when it considers appropriate with
regard to the specific needs of the Company from time to time.

The directors’biographical information is set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section on pages 20 to 22. Two executive directors, Mr. Ng
Cheung Shing and Mr. Leung King San, Sunny, are brother-in-law. Save as
disclosed, there is no relationship between each of the Board members.

The Board has the ultimate decision on the Group's overall strategy, annual
budget, annual and interim results, appointment or retirement of directors,
significant contracts and transactions as well as other significant policies
and financial matters. The Board has delegated the daily operations and
administration to the Group’s management.

According to the division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
CEO approved by the Board, the Chairman is mainly responsible for long
term strategic development of the Group as well as the operation of the
Board, to make sure that the Board is run in the best interests of the Group
and all the Board meetings are effectively planned and carried out. CEO
mainly focuses on the business operations of the Group, assists the Board to
formulate strategies for the Group and to make sure they are implemented
successfully. CEO is fully responsible to the Board for overall business
operations of the Group.

Every director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. In addition, every director has separate and independent access
to the Company'’s senior management to facilitate them to make informed
decisions. All directors, in the discharge of their duties, are allowed to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at a
reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

The Company has not established any committee responsible for the
corporate governance function of the Group and the function has
been collectively performed by the Board. The Board acknowledges the
overseeing of the corporate governance function by the Board collectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Composition of the diversified Board (continued)
During the year, the Board has reviewed and monitored the training and

continuous professional development of directors and senior management.
The Board has also reviewed and ensured compliance of the relevant legal
and regulatory requirements, the code of conducts, the CG Code and the
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
ensure their contributions to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities under the relevant
statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is a continuing process. The Company updates directors
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. Directors
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. In addition, all directors are
provided with monthly updates on the Group’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole to discharge their duties.

During the year, all directors, namely Mr. Ng Cheung Shing, Mr. Cheung
Wai Lam, Mr. Leung King San, Sunny, Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, Mr. Ha Shu Tong,
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development, including
the training provided by the Company on 19 November 2020, to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate governance, the Directors (in
person or through electronic means of communication) held at least four
regularly meetings at approximately quarterly interval to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operational matters and financial performance of the
Group. Attendance of each director at the Board meetings is set out below:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung

INEDs:

Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

The Chairman also met with the INEDs without the presence of other
directors on 13 August 2020.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board, there are several Board
Committees namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Investment Committee and the Risk
Management Committee formed under the Board, with each performing
different functions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 24 April 1999 and during the
reporting period, the three INEDs, namely, Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen,
Mr. Ha Shu Tong and Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, are the members
of the committee and Mr. Ting was elected as the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation of
dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to
supply non-audit services;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with external auditor;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and to review significant
financial reporting judgments contained in them;

to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to
have an effective risk management and internal control systems;

to review the financial and accounting policies and practices of the
Group; and

to review the external auditor's management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and management’s
responses.

B
YA
il

BREEE

£ %E@ﬁ’é-hﬂhﬁ@ﬂ iy it Y S U VAR
RBEHE RESEXKEBE=RBUIFNT
BE= 'EDTEEG‘EE Eﬁﬁ?ﬁi&??%ﬁ% '
mTEEEEREZZRES:

BERZEGZIERERE

BEMIMNERBEI 2 RE  EHEERE
eREFSRHEES - RAUESNEZEE
B 7 BN e B AR MG R - AR IR () B B AR R
SR B B3 S B R A% AR AP A R R

RIBE AR TR R ERINEZEE 2B
TEREBIEREZIEFHRE

SRR TSNS AL BREM AR (HIE X BRAR A I 5T &%
TR

EEERARAEINEZBMBERIEE
&

ERARAMBHRRLRFEREREKE
FFEERE 2 TBMY  UEHZFHERR
¥RE PTELE B 15 B R 2 B K

R ARE 2 M - B EE kA B
B ARG

EEE AR EE AR
ﬁﬁ{% BEERITHEBERYAXNER
BN ARREIE R

BAAEEMBREFBRENRER &
BRI ZBEN G TERE Z(ERE
FAAR) - BN L& AT ARS8 EM%EE

E FEERGAEEERL 2 EMERER
AN E B 2 DI fE -

MEEREEERA —E-BEER



32

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee shall meet (in person or through electronic means of
communication) at least twice every year. Attendance of each director at
the meeting is set out below:

INEDs:

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

During the year, the Audit Committee, among other matters, reviewed and
provided supervision over the Group’s financial reporting processes, risk
management and internal control systems, reviewed interim and annual
results of the Group and met with the internal and external auditors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 September 2004 and
comprises of three INEDs, namely, Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On,
Matthew, and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and two executive directors
namely, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing and Mr. Leung King San, Sunny. Mr. Ha is
currently the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all directors and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management
and the terms of their service contracts;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive directors;

to consider and approve the grant of shares and share options to
eligible participants pursuant to the share award scheme and share
option scheme of the Company;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive; and

to ensure that no director or any of its associates is involved in
deciding his own remunerations.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet (in person or through electronic
means of communication) at least once every year. Attendance of each
director at the meeting is set out below:

Executive directors:
Mr. Ng Cheung Shing
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny

INEDs:

Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

During the year, the work performed by the Remuneration Committee
included the review of the Group’s remuneration policy for its executive
directors and senior management, determined their levels of remuneration
and approved the grant of shares to eligible participants pursuant to the
share award scheme.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG code, the remuneration of senior

management by band for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out
below:

FMESES (&)
EERSREEE 2HMH

BREBEEEERTRIEBISHETRMG  BEZ
EEFSA A=+ -BULFESREBENK
BrHmMEEFEIMT

Number of Individuals
A

HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

Further particulars in relation to directors'remuneration and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 22 September 2004 and
comprises of three INEDs, namely, Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On,
Matthew, and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and two executive directors
namely, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing and Mr. Leung King San, Sunny. Mr. Ha is
currently the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships;

to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy, and monitor the progress on achieving the
objectives, and make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report annually;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

to assess the independence of INEDs and to ensure at least one-third
of the Board should be INEDs; in that the Nomination Committee

should always have in mind the factors set out in the Listing Rules;

where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an
INED at the general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall set out
in the circular to shareholders of the Company and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting:

the process used for identifying the individual and why the
Board believes the individual should be elected and the

reasons why it considers the individual to be independent;

ii. if the proposed INED will be holding their seventh (or more)
listed company directorship, why the Board believes the
individual would still be able to devote sufficient time to the

Board;

ii.  the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can

bring to the Board; and

iv.  how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board.

to determine the policy for nomination of directors. The policy for
the nomination of directors of the Nomination Committee shall be

disclosed in the annual report of the Company; and

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in

particular the Chairman and the CEO.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Committee shall meet (in person or through electronic
means of communication) at least once every year. Attendance of each
director at the meeting is set out below:

Executive directors:
Mr.Ng Cheung Shing
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny

INEDs:

Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the diversity,
structure, size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence
of INEDs and made recommendations to the Board on reappointment of
directors and succession planning for chief executive of the Company.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee was established on 17 May 2012 and comprises
of an executive director, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing and an INED, Mr. Ha Shu
Tong. Mr. Ng is currently the chairman of the Investment Committee.

The Committee is responsible for, inter alia, identifying investment
opportunities, reviewing investment proposals and making investment
decisions; monitoring the performance of investments; reviewing the
soundness of existing investment portfolio; devising investment guidelines
and strategies for approval of the Board; and executing investment
guidelines approved by the Board. The investment strategy of the Company
is to exercise prudent treasury investment and management involving
diversification of low to moderate risk investments with a view to counter
the depreciating value of cash and to generate stable income to support
existing business operations.

During the year, the Investment Committee executed the investment
guidelines approved by the Board, reported the performance of
investments and reviewed the investment strategies with all directors in the
Board meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established on 17 August 2016 and
comprises of three executive directors namely, Mr. Leung King San, Sunny,
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam and Mr. Ng Kwok Keung and one INED, namely, Mr.
Ha Shu Tong. Mr. Leung is currently the chairman of the Risk Management
Committee.

The principal duties of the Risk Management Committee include:

to review the Group’s risk management (“RM”) and internal control
("IC") strategies, policies and guidelines and submit them to the Audit
Committee for approval;

to review the Group’s risk framework and approved risk policies,
standards and limits within the overall appetite and tolerance
approved by the Board;

to review the Group's processes for determining risk appetite
tolerance, monitoring compliance with approved risk tolerance levels
and policies and the resultant action in respect of policy breaches;

to review the Group’s compliance policies and submit them to the
Board and/or Audit Committee for approval;

to review the Group’s key risks and submit to the Audit Committee
for approval half-yearly;

to report to the Audit Committee that, to the best of the Risk
Management Committee’s belief, the disclosures made in the annual
report on its activities, the risk governance and related sections are
fair, balanced and understandable;

to consider issues raised by external auditors, the Audit Committee
or any member of the Board who has lodged a request for a meeting;
and

to liaise with the chairman of the Audit Committee to determine
on a case by case basis which Risk Management Committee takes
responsibility for undertaking deep dive reviews and keeping the
Audit Committee updated on any relevant findings from reviews
requested.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Risk Management Committee shall meet (in person or through
electronic means of communication) at least twice every year. Attendance
of each director at the meeting is set out below:

Executive directors:

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung

INED:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong

During the year, the Risk Management Committee reviewed the Group’s
risk framework and key risks, RM and IC reports and submitted them to the
Audit Committee for approval.

INEDs

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs with
at least one INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each INED of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the
contents of such confirmation, the Company still considers all of the INEDs
to be independent.

The INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgment to the Board. Through active
participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving on Board Committees, all
INEDs make various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

INED WHO HAS SERVED FOR MORE THAN NINE
YEARS

Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew and Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen have served as INEDs for more than nine years. The future
appointment of these three INEDs without the approval by way of passing
a separate resolution of the shareholders is regarded as a deviation from
Code Provision A4.3 of the CG Code.

To comply with this CG Code Provision, all these three INEDs had retired
at the previous annual general meeting of the Company and offered
themselves for re-election.

The Board is of the opinion that all these three directors remain
independent notwithstanding the length of their services and believes that
their valuable knowledge and experience in the Group’s business and their
general business acumen continue to generate significant contribution to
the Board, the Company and the shareholders as a whole. The Company’s
circular to be despatched to shareholders of the Company in April 2021 will
contain the biographical information of Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and
the detailed reasons behind the Board's recommendation of his continuing
appointment as an INED.

INED WHO HAS SERVED AS DIRECTORS FOR
MORE THAN SEVEN LISTED COMPANIES

The CG code provision A.5.5(2) stipulates that where the Board proposes
to elect or re-elect an INED (who will be holding their seventh (or more)
directorship, the Board should explain why such individual would still be
able to devote sufficient time to the board in the relevant shareholders’
circular.

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen has served as directors for more than seven
listed companies. He has maintained his profession in various directorships
of listed companies he served, and has actively participated in the Board
meetings and various committees held by the Company in the past, and so
his time committed for his director’s duties is not affected. The Board agreed
that he has devote sufficient time to perform his director’s duties.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. Based on a specific enquiry of the Company’s
directors, the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
DEERRE ()

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on 31 January
2019 and is disclosed as below.

The Dividend Policy is to allow its shareholders to participate in the
Company'’s profits whilst to retain adequate reserves for future growth.
The Company may consider whether to pay dividends, if any, twice a year,
which are the interim dividend and final dividend. The Board may declare
special dividends in addition to such dividends as it considers appropriate.

Factors for consideration

In determining/recommending the frequency, amount and form of any
dividend in any financial year/period, the Board shall consider the following
factors:

the actual and expected financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”);

economic conditions and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Group;

the Group’s business strategies, including future cash commitments
and investment needs to sustain the long-term growth aspect of the
business;

the current and future operations, liquidity position and capital
requirements of the Group; and

any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board may, based on the above criteria, declare interim dividend (as
it considers appropriate) and recommend final dividend (subject to the
approval by the shareholders in a general meeting). The Company considers
that the dividend payout ratio may vary from year to year and there is no
assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.

Subject to the Bye-laws and applicable laws and regulations, dividends may
be paid in cash or be satisfied wholly or partly in the form of allotment of
shares of the Company. The Board may also consider the issuance of bonus
shares on a basis permitted by the applicable laws and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
RIGHTS

Information of the Company and the Group are delivered to its shareholders
through a number of channels, which includes annual report, interim report,
announcements and circulars. The latest information of the Company and
the Group together with the published documents are also available on the
Company’s website.

The Company's annual general meeting provides a useful platform for direct
communication between the Board and shareholders. Separate resolutions
are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if
they are unable to attend the meetings.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored and
reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to
ensure that shareholders’' needs are best served.

The annual general meeting in 2020 (“the AGM") was held on 28 May 2020.
All directors and the Company’s external auditor attended the AGM.

According to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the "Act”)
and Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company, shareholders holding
in aggregate not less than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to request a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition, and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

Any number of shareholders representing not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of the Company on the date of the requisition or not less than
100 shareholders of the Company are entitled to put forward a proposal for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company. Shareholders should
follow the requirements and procedures as set out in Section 79 of the Act
for putting forward such proposal at a general meeting.

In relation to the shareholders communication, the shareholders can
contact the Company Secretary or the Senior Vice President of Corporate
Development and Communications by email to InvestorRelation@ctil.com
or by mail to Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year of review.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and have adopted the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and complied with the requirements of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which include all Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

During the reporting year, the management has provided such explanation
and information to the Board as necessary to enable the Board to make
an informed assessment of the financial information and position of the
Group put forward to the Board for approval. The directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditors are
set out in the Independent Auditors’Report on pages 63 to 71.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal controls of the Company, including
material financial, operational and compliance controls, risk management
functions and particularly the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the accounting and financial
reporting function. The Board, assisted by the Audit Committee and the
Risk Management Committee, is required to assess the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis.
Appropriate policies and control procedures have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper use or
disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and complied with,
reliable financial and accounting records are maintained in accordance with
relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting requirements, and
key risks that may impact on the Group'’s performance are appropriately
identified and managed. These control procedures are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
such procedures can only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or losses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Effective risk management is a fundamental part of the Group’s business
strategy. Recognising and managing risk is central to the business and to
protect the shareholders’interests and value. The Company operates within
overall guidelines and specific parameters set by the Board. Each transaction
is comprehensively analysed to understand the risks involved. Responsibility
for managing risks lies initially with the business functions concerned,
working within the overall strategy and risk tolerance established by the
Board, in conjunction with the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Committee.

The Board meets quarterly, or more often if necessary, to review the
Group's operations and financial performance. The Board also reviews
the risks to the assets and operations of the Company, and acts upon any
comments from the internal and external auditors. The Board considers the
economic environment and the industry risk in assessing business risk. The
management also meets at least monthly to review the operations of the
Group and discuss any identified issues.

Key risks, control measures and management actions are continually
identified, reviewed and monitored by the management as part of the
Group's enterprise wide risk management framework. The internal auditor
assists and guides the management in the formulation of risk policies and
processes to effectively identify, evaluate and manage significant risks. The
management has established a risk identification and management process.
The risk profiles are reported to the Risk Management Committee, the Audit
Committee and the Board on a regular basis to highlight changes in the risk
assessment, quantitative and qualitative factors affecting the inherent risks
and effectiveness of respective controls. The ownership of these risks lies
with the respective business functions with stewardship residing with the
Board. Action plans to manage the risks are continually being monitored
and refined by the management and the Board. The internal auditor
conducts audits to review the risk management framework and processes
and assess the effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group, including
material financial, operational and compliance controls. Any material non-
compliance or lapses in internal controls together with corrective measures
are reported to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee.

In performing its audit of the financial statements, the external auditors
perform tests over operating effectiveness of certain controls that they
intend to rely on which are relevant to the Group’s preparation of its
financial statements. The external auditors report any significant deficiencies
in such internal controls to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit
Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls
undertaken within the Company, from time to time, the Board and/or the
management will engage professional third parties to assess and comment
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
controls and, where appropriate, recommendations will be adopted and
enhancements to the risk management and internal controls will be made.

Based on the framework established and the reviews conducted by the
internal and external auditors, the Board opines, with the concurrence of the
Audit Committee, that there are adequate and effective risk management
and internal control systems in place within the Group in addressing
material financial, operational, compliance and information technology
control risks in its current business environment.

Risk management framework
The Group has established an effective risk governance and management

framework in line with the requirements set out by the Listing Rules and
other regulations. This framework was built around a structure that enables
the Board and the management to discharge their risk management-related
responsibilities with appropriate delegation as well as checks and balances.
These responsibilities included defining risk appetite in accordance with
the Group’s business strategies and objectives, formulating risk policies that
govern the execution of those strategies, and establishing procedures and
limits for the approval, control, monitoring and remedy of risks.

The members of the Risk Management Committee positioned at the highest
level of the Group’s risk governance structure under the Board. Members
included three executive directors and an INED. The Risk Management
Committee had direct involvements in formulating the Group’s risk appetite,
and determined the levels of risk that the Group is willing to undertake
with reference to its financial capacity, strategic direction, prevailing market
conditions and regulatory requirements.

The Risk Management Committee will continuously ensure the Group'’s
risk appetite is realistically reflected in the policies and procedures that
the management adopted in executing its business functions. The Risk
Management Committee will regularly review the Group’s risk management
framework and ensure that all important risk-related tasks are performed
according to established policies and with appropriate resources.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Inside information
Regarding procedures and internal controls for the handling and

dissemination of inside information, the Company:

(i) is aware of its obligations under the SFO and the Listing Rules and
the overriding principle that inside information should be announced
immediately if it is the subject of a decision;

(i) conducts its affairs with close regard to the applicable laws and
regulations prevailing in Hong Kong;

(i) has included in the Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of non-public or inside information;

(iv)  has established a policy and implemented guidelines for monitoring,
reporting and disseminating inside information to our shareholders,
investors, analysts and media. These policies and guidelines also
identify who are the Company’s authorised spokespersons and their
responsibilities for communications with stakeholders; and

(v)  has communicated to all relevant staff regarding the implementation
of the policy and the relevant trainings are also provided.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young has been re-appointed as the independent auditors of
the Company by shareholders at the last annual general meeting. The
remuneration in respect of services provided by Ernst & Young to the Group
in 2020 is summarised as follows:
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Auditing services EIZR 1,320
Non-auditing services (which included agreed upon procedures and EEZIRE (BRERE
other professional services) By RAEMEZERS) 160
Total wat 1,480
COMPANY SECRETARY NEWE

The company secretary, Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company on 18 May 2007 and is a full time
employee of the Group. Mr. Ng is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has confirmed that he
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings during the
reporting year.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year under review and
a discussion on the Group's future business development and important
events affecting the Company occurred during the year ended 31
December 2020 are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement”
on pages 6 to 19 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 31 December
2020 using financial performance indicators is provided in the section
headed “Chairman’s Statement” of this report and other key performance
indicators are set out below.

Strategies
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Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”)

B BEAYER (BREMERD

Maintain the Group’s liquidity for future development

REBAEENESRBDEAERRER

Net cash flows from operating activities in 2020: HK$78.3 million
(2019: HKS$48.2 million)

R-E_TFENELEEDEREREFHE 783088 7T
TE—NF 482088 7T)

Cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December 2020: HK$295.6 million
(31 December 2019: HK$200.7 million)
RZZB_ZF+_A=+—HNREAERBRLEE
2056 BT (ZE—AF+-A=+—8 :2007B#ET)

Enrich and enhance the Group's product portfolio
LERRAAEENERES

Keep the Group’s staff turnover rate with no material
adverse change

RRAEEE TRALEEEATHED

Number of new product/module launched: 10 (2019: 6)
HER/BEBHHEE  10(ZZT—hF :6)

Staff turnover rate, representing number of resigned and terminated staff
during the year divided by number of staff of the Group as at the year
end date, in 2020: 20% (2019: 21%)

R-ZZ_TFNBTIRAX (DRFAGBEBERE TABBRUR
FHEAAEEBRTAHGE) 1 20% (ZF— 15 : 21%)
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The key
risks and uncertainties identified by the Group are discussed in this section.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below, which are not known to the Group or which may not be material
now but which could become material in the future. Furthermore, risks can
never be eliminated completely due to inherent limitations in measures
taken to address them. Also, risks may be accepted for strategic reasons or if
it is deemed not cost-effective to mitigate them.

Strategic Risk
The business strategy may require the Group to develop its business both

organically and through new business combinations, strategic investments
and acquisitions. If market conditions change or for any other reasons, the
Group may decide to delay, modify or forgo some aspects of its growth
strategies.

Business Risk
The Group constantly faces the challenge of gauging and responding

promptly to market changes within the industry it operates in. Any failure
to interpret market trends properly and adapt its strategy to such changes
accordingly may have a material adverse effect on the Group'’s business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

The Group has been looking into different kinds of business and investment
opportunities to broaden the revenue sources of the Group in order to
manage the associated risk and to create greater value for the shareholders.

The Board meets quarterly, or more often if necessary, to review the
Group’s operations and financial performance. The Board also considers the
economic environment and the industry risk in assessing the strategic risk as
well as the business risk. The management meets at least monthly to review
the business developments of the Group and keeps the Board informed on
any issues identified.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of financial loss or reputational damage resulting

from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems.
Responsibility for managing operational risks in the Group rests with every
function at both divisional and departmental levels.

Key functions in the Group are guided by standard operating procedures,
limits of authority and a reporting framework. The Group will continuously
identify and assess key operational exposures and report such risk issues
to the Board and/or senior management as early as possible so that
appropriate risk responses can be taken.

Technology Obsolescence
The Group's operations depend on its ability to innovate and the successful

deployment of continuously evolving technologies, particularly its response
to technological and industry developments, as well as its ability to foresee
and/or rapidly adapt to the emergence of disruptive technologies. The
Group cannot be certain that technologies will be developed in time to
meet changing market conditions, that they will perform according to
expectations or that they will achieve commercial acceptance. The Group
has made relentless efforts in producing and delivering premium products
and high quality services. Looking forward, the Company will continue with
its research and innovation to enrich and enhance its products portfolio.

Manpower and Retention Risk
The Group's success and ability to grow depends largely on its ability to

attract, train, retain, and motivate highly skilled and qualified managerial,
sales, marketing, administrative, operating, and technical personnel. The
loss of key personnel, or the inability to find additional qualified personnel,
could materially and adversely affect the Group’s prospects and results of
operations.

The Group recognises the employees as one of our most valuable assets
and will keep on providing competitive remuneration package to motivate
the employees and to attract any suitable candidates in the market. The
Group also regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market standard.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial Risk
In the course of its business activities, the Group is exposed to various

financial risks, including market, liquidity and credit risks. The currency
environment and interest rates cycles may significantly affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations.

The Group's earnings and capital or its ability to meet its business objectives
may be adversely affected by movements in foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and equity prices. In particular, any depreciation in the Group's
functional currency may affect its net profit margin. The Group closely
monitors the relative foreign exchange positions of its assets and liabilities
and allocates its holdings of different currencies accordingly in order to
minimise foreign currency risk.

The Group may also be subject to liquidity risk if it is unable to obtain
adequate funding to finance its operations. In managing liquidity risk, the
Group monitors its cash flows and maintains an adequate level of cash and
credit facilities to enable it to finance its operations and reduce the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group is also subject to exposure to credit risk from its customers. New
customers are subject to credit evaluation while the Group continues to
monitor its existing customers, especially those with repayment issues. Cash
is deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

The financial risk management policies and practices of the Group are
shown in note 37 to the financial statements.

Hazard Risk

The Group’s business had been, to a certain extent, affected by the
recent global outbreaks of COVID-19. The global epidemic has resulted
in lockdowns and disruptions of transportations in various countries and
regions as well as a downward pressure in the global economy. In the event
that the outbreak of COVID-19 is not contained in Hong Kong, China or
globally in the near future, the economic activity across many industries in
the PRC, Hong Kong or worldwide, can be further adversely affected, which
could in turn have negative impact on the overall economy in the PRC,
Hong Kong and worldwide. Any economic downturn may adversely affect
the customer sentiment, weakening the demands for our products, and
in turn result in the reduction or even cessation of purchase orders for our
products, or delay in payment by our customers.

Further details are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement”
on pages 6 to 19 of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has established procedures in place to ensure that its operations
comply with applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Board is responsible
to monitor the Group’s policies and practices for achieving compliance with
legal and other regulatory requirements, and such policies and practices
are regularly reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operating units whenever necessary.

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has in all material respects complied
with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group's
business and operations.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Employees are valuable assets to the Group. The Group provides equal
employment opportunity and competitive remuneration packages to
attract and retain employees. In addition, the Group subsidises employees
to attend job-related training courses to enhance their career progression
and provides occupational health and safety information to employees to
raise their awareness. The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective
and congenial work environment and it values the health and well-being
of its staff. Adequate arrangements, training and guidelines have been
implemented to ensure its working environment is healthy and safe. The
Group provides communications on health and safety matters and other
programmes to employees in order to raise their awareness of such issues
and enhance their related behaviour.

To suppliers and customers, the Group values mutually beneficial long
standing relationships with them by providing high quality services to

customers and developing mutual trust with suppliers.

Details of the Group’s trade receivables and trade payables are set out in
notes 19 and 24 to the financial statements, respectively.

There was no material dispute between the Group and its business partners.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group does not operate in an environmentally sensitive business
and is predominantly service-oriented. However, the Group is committed
to the long term sustainability of the environment and communities in
which it operates. As a supporter of environmental protection, the Group
endeavours to comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of
resources, energy saving and waste reduction. The Group also strives for a
greener future by eco-friendly practices in various aspects of our operations.
Efficient and effective use of energy and resources are encouraged in the
operation and management level of the Group. “Green Guidelines and
News"” are formulated and launched on a continuous basis via intranet or
email to promote the concept of “"Reduce, Reuse and Recycle”and to arouse
the employee’s awareness of the importance of environmental protection.

The Company will issue Environmental, Social and Governance Report in a
separate manner and publish the report on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited'’s (the “Stock Exchange”) website (www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company's website (www.ctil.com).

DONATIONS

The Group's charitable donations during the year amounted to HK$7,000.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the Group’s
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 72 to 201.

An interim dividend of 5 HK cents per ordinary share was paid on 16
September 2020. The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of 12 HK cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders on
the Register of Members of the Company on 4 June 2021.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on pages 203 to 204. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND AWARDED
SHARES

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital, share options and
awarded restricted shares of the Company during the year are set out in
notes 27, 28 and 29 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or
the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the trustee of the Company’s restricted share award
scheme had, pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed of such
scheme, purchased from the market a total of 111,000 shares of the
Company being the awarded restricted shares. The total amount paid to
acquire these shares during the year was approximately HK$235,000.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, amounted to HK$99,299,000, of which HK$29,702,000 has been
proposed as final dividend for the year. In addition, the Company's share
premium account, in the amount of HK$53,104,000, may be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 38.1% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 28.6%. Purchases from the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for 47.0% of the total value of external
supplies purchased and services consumed for the year and purchases from
the largest supplier included therein amounted to 19.9%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’'s five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:
Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)

Cheung Wai Lam
Leung King San, Sunny
Ng Kwok Keung

INEDs:
Ha Shu Tong

Lee Kwok On, Matthew
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, Ng Cheung
Shing, Leung King San, Sunny and Ting Leung Huel, Stephen will retire
by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

All INEDs of the Company renewed their appointments with the Company
for specific terms of three years but are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the provisions of the Bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Ha
Shu Tong, Lee Kwok On, Matthew, and Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, and as at
the date of this report still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 20 to 22 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors'fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general meetings.
Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board of directors
with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group. In addition, the directors’ remuneration is reviewed by
the Remuneration Committee annually.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, every director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may
incur in or sustain or about the execution of the duties of their office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group throughout
the year.

DIRECTORS’INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No director nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any
of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year and up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the directors in the share capital
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFQ"), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EEEHN

REARBEERFRABIL BB LHFAE
TAEBARRZHBREFNEAF D EBHE
B RITHEH

%%E@Hﬁfﬁ&*ﬁ B R 1 2 2 K

RZE_TF+-_A=+—0 FEENEKLD
AIREEEEE (T RESFRBEEKRD ([F
FREEEG)) EXVED) 2 BA R AR (D
BEAERRAIARBEES KRG KO ZE 3521487
EHFEZECMATRSRE EMETAE
FHTEHFRHINEETASTHEARARAR
BT 2 =T

ARAAEBRZHER

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEBROBE  SFoRERMEE

Percentage of

Directly Through the Company’s

beneficially controlled issued share

owned corporation capital

{HZRAF

=k ZEB BBITRA

Name of director BERER FEFEAR Btk
Ng Cheung Shing REB (a) 4,684,000 114,614,000 119,298,000 47.82
Cheung Wai Lam RIER 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 040
Leung King San, Sunny 2 S %7 1,030,000 - 1,030,000 041
Ng Kwok Keung REoA 520,000 - 520,000 0.21
7,234,000 114,614,000 121,848,000 48.84
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DIRECTORS’INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in shares of an associated corporation:

EERKRORAEBERD 2 Em KR
7 (&)

R—EHEBEEERD 2HFR

Number of shares Percentage of
BRAHE the associated
Name of Relationship Directly Through  corporation’s
associated with the Classof  beneficially controlled issued
Name of director corporation Company shares owned corporation share capital
AL
LR BARQF HiZ 7B ZEE BT
Esps =t ZE% IR 17 %8 5l BEEHA FEHAT BRAT DL
Ng Cheung Shing Computer And Company's Non-voting 1,750,000 3,250,000 N/A
REB Technologies subsidiary deferred (note T #E (b)) TNE A

International ARFz BREERLE

Limited YN
MERRARAQR
Notes: M5

(a) The 114,614,000 shares were held by Chao Lien Technologies Limited (“Chao Lien”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.S. (BVI) Limited. Mr. Ng Cheung Shing was entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at
general meetings of C.S. (BVI) Limited, which in turn was entitled to exercise or
control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general meetings
of Chao Lien. Accordingly, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing was deemed, under the SFO, to be
interested in all shares held by Chao Lien.

(b) The 3,250,000 non-voting deferred shares were held by Chao Lien.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the directors had
registered an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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DIRECTORS’RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share option scheme” and “Restricted
share award scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
primary purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Further details of
the Scheme are disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements.

No share option of the Company was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the year.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the "Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 and renewed the Award Scheme on 31 May
2017 (the “Renewed Date”"). Pursuant to the Award Scheme, shares of
the Company (the "Awarded Shares”) are granted to eligible employees
(including directors) of the Group until the 10" anniversary from the
Renewed Date. The Company shall also pay cash to the appointed trustee
company for its acquisition and holding upon trust of the Awarded Shares
for the benefit of these employees and directors. The Awarded Shares will
then be transferred to these employees and directors upon vesting. The
aggregate number of shares to be awarded under the Award Scheme
throughout its duration shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time or such other percentage as notified to
them by the Board (provided that the overall limit on the number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under any other incentive or share option schemes
and under the Award Scheme must not exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time).

Details of the Award Scheme and the shares awarded thereunder are set
out in note 29 to the financial statements.

EEREROIES 2EF

Br TN TRERRRE AT &1 Jo [ AR B A {0 22 By =t &1 ]
METWEEI  REREFAEHE  HERTE
MEBEFRFFEE 2EBHRKNF FLAEE
ARRABBRMDHELFMER < EN - LB EE
ZEENCEREFTE AR A HE MM
BARBER LML JEEFERBAL
MEMEABE MR -

BB R T &

AT BRETE ((ZEr8l) EEAR
SEEBRINELERMcAER2MERMEHE
B REHRME - it 8l 2 E— T BRI B R
EMIFE 28 EE o

MEARRBERERFARDL 176 - ik
KA e

BRI 42 SR B 5t &

ARARR_ZEENFEA -+ _BRBERS
Betn BERhat &) (2R3 ) RN —F—tFF
A=+—RB(E8RH]) EEZEBTE - 1R
ERBEE - ARERD ((REBERN) B EE
FHEETRAFLERTARESRERESR (B
BEE) - ARANBIREEZFEARABA
LRZERERESZZMmAERPAREE
Bk kAESNRE  REKROERENE
ERBEEZSAHRRERENRES - 2 HE:E
HEAKBTROZBENER  TRZRARQE
TREBTRAIDHEETENEREZEH
H A0 H 2t (38 2 AR 15 A (7] H A 22 B 5k B Ak
a8 R BB S E RN ERTENMAERBR
RETERA TERTZROBE 2BEBRED
BHEARNRRTEDEITRMZ30%) °

BRI LB R L 2 R FBHNE
B E M TE29 ©

—E-TFFER

MR EEER AR



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EEgREA)

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME BRH RO ERBE S (F)
(CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the number of and movements of the TREVNBE_Z-_TF+_A=+—HILF
Awarded Shares under the Award Scheme for the year ended 31 December ENZ R EIE T RZE RN BB RE#E) -
2020.

Number of Unvested Awarded Shares

ABRRBROHA
Weighted
At Awarded Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category of 1January during during during 31December Vesting period of fairvalue
participant 2020 theyear theyear theyear 2020 Award date Awarded Shares per share
BRERA it St 23 -t Sk
FRER -f-A ERERR ERERE FRERN REZRAE RRRGERYE THAVE
HKS$
B
Directors
g2
Ng Cheung Shing 200000 - (50,000) - 150000 14 May 2018 30 Aprl 2019 to 30 Apri 2023 pIx;
REB 505 ZE-NEMAZTRE
RATHA ZEIZEMAZTA
Cheung Wai Lam 100000 - (50000 - 50000 14 October 2016 30 September 2017 to 243
RER “E-5E 30 September 2021
TATEA “E-tERR=TEE
ZR-EAAZTH
Cheung Wai Lam 200,000 - (50,000 - 150000 14May 2018 30 April2019t0 30 April 2023 248
BeR = “2-hEBAZtAE
RATHA ZEIZEMAZTH
Ng Kwok Keung 24000 - (24,000 - - 4May 2015 30 April 2016 to 30 April 2020 262
£ “3-5f “3-AFBAZTAE
RAMA ZEIZFMACTH
Ng Kwok Keung 200,000 - (50,000) - 150000 14May 2018 30 April 2019 o 30 April 2023 2183
RE® “E-)\f “E-NENA=1EE
TATHmA ZEIZFMAZTH
Sub-total
15t 724000 - (224000) - 500000
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EERHE ()
RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME BRI R0 R B s & (&)
(CONTINUED)
Number of Unvested Awarded Shares
AERRBROHE
Weighted
At Awarded Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category of 1January during during during 31 December Vesting period of fair value
participant 2020 the year theyear theyear 2020 Award date Awarded Shares per share
SEENE RZB2BE 3-% sRNE
il k3 -A-A FRERE FnEER ERERN RIEZRES RARGGRE THATE
HKS$
BL
Other employees
EfifEE
In aggregate 24000 - (24,000 - - 4 May 2015 30 April 2016 t0 30 April 2020 262
At ZI-1f ZZ-NEMAZTRE
TAmA ZECZEMAZTH
In aggregate 48,000 - (24,000 - 24000 14 Qctober 2016 30 September 2017 to 248
Bt ZE-NF 30 Septernber 2021
TATHA “TEAAZTRE
ZRZ-ERAZTH
In aggregate 1,060,000 - (265,000) - 795,000 14May 2018 30 April 20190 30 April 2023 243
Bt 55 “5-NEMA=TAZ
RATHA ZEIZEMAZTH
In aggregate 420000 - (84000) - 336,000 4y 2019 30 June 2020t0 30 June 2024 Al
At ZE-NF ZECEERAZTRE
tAmA ZEImERACTA
Sub-total
It 1,552,000 - (397,000) - 1,155,000
Total
@t 2276000 - (621,000) - 1,655,000
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FTERRREMAL (EFADT
EEPFETBRAR)RRORM
ARG 2 S

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ (NOT BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OF THE COMPANY) INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the following interests of more than 5% of the RZEBEZEF+_A=+—H UTAEXA
issued share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in ARBREREBEILSRBAEGKRAZE 336l|7r<fEXE

\

the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to FEBZ2REZEDMAEARRFEBITRARE
section 336 of the SFO: A& #E 5% LA | 2 #Eas -
Long positions: ¥R

Percentage of
Numberof  the Company’s Number of
Name of shareholder ordinary issued share share options
of the Company Capacity and nature of interest shares held capital held
EART
i ERTRA Fi
FARRREE/EB SoRERME EBRYE BAL BREHA
Chao Lien Technologies Limited @ Directly beneficially owned 114,614,000 4594 -
BYMNMRBRAF ERERREAR
CS. (BVI) Limited (@) Througha controlled corporation 114,614,000 4594 -
FERTERD
Puttney Investments Limited (‘PIL") (b) Directly beneficially owned 29,148,938 11.68 -
BERERRE
Hutchison International Limited (‘HIL") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 1168 -
BB EHDF
Hutchison Whampoa Limited ("HWL") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
MEEHARRA ([ME]) BRI EHR
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (‘CKH") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 1168 -
RIEX (RE)BRAR(RE) BRXEHR
CKHutchison Holdings Limited (‘CKHH *) (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
RINZERARAR ([RM)) i EREL VN
Hui Yau Man Directly beneficially owned 26,782,000 10.73 -
X EREREAR
Webb David Michael Directly beneﬁcially owned 5,564,665 223 -
BERERER
(@] Through a controlled corporation 9,397,335 377 -
ERTESR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ (NOT BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OF THE COMPANY) INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions: (continued)

Notes:

(a) The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Ng Cheung Shing in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” of this
report.

(b) PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of HWL. CKH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKHH and subsidiaries of CKH are
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the voting
power at the general meetings of HWL. By virtue of the SFO, CKHH, CKH, HWL and
HIL were deemed to be interested in the 29,148,938 shares of the Company held by
PIL.

(@] The 9,397,335 shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited ("PSAL"). PSAL
was 100% directly owned by Mr. Webb David Michael and accordingly, Mr. Webb
David Michael is deemed to be interested in the said shares held by PSAL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person, other than
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section

"Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”

above, had registered an interest or a short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there was no connected transaction nor continuing
connected transactions which need to be disclosed pursuant to Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Company and the Group are set
out in note 33 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no other material subsequent event undertaken by the Company
or by the Group after 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual
report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report”in this annual report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ng Cheung Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RS

EYzx

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
COMPUTER AND TECHNOLOGIES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) set out on pages 72 to 201, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By REE®RE ()

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BAZBERE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

REELEE

Revenue from contracts with customers

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised
certain contract revenue from solutions and integration services
and application services over time, generally using the input
methods, by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the services. Input methods recognise revenue
on the basis of the efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation (for example, labour hours or costs
incurred) relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction
of that performance obligation. The determination of the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the services involves significant
management judgements and estimates, including various factors
affecting the total expected inputs to the complete satisfaction of
the services.

We focus on this matter due to the significant accounting
judgements and estimates required in the recognition of contract
revenue due to the variability and uncertainty associated with
estimating the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
services. Changes in the underlying estimates could have a
significant effect on the amounts of contract revenue, costs and
gross profit recognised for the year.

The related disclosures about significant accounting judgements
and estimates are included in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FEREM BT NARERREERSE

We obtained an understanding and performed testing of the
Group's controls over its processes to record contract costs and
contract revenue, including the measurement of the progress
towards complete satisfaction of solutions and integration
services and application services. We selected a sample of
contracts entered into during the year to understand their key
contract terms, such as contract price, scope of services and
deliverables. We checked to their project status reports and
related supporting documents showing, for example, labour costs
incurred to date and compared to the total budgeted labour costs
to evaluate the measure of progress used by management for
revenue recognition. We have also checked the project revenue
calculations prepared by management.

Apart from the above, we assessed the significant judgements
and estimates made by management through the examination of
a sample of project documentation, including, inter alia, the total
budgeted inputs, by checking to relevant internal records and/
or the invoices or quotations provided by subcontractors/other
suppliers; comparing to the labour hours used by similar projects,
as appropriate; and discussion of the status of those projects in
progress and relevant factors affecting the total expected inputs
to the complete satisfaction of the services with management
and/or project personnel of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BAZBERE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

RRERSE

Gooadwill impairment assessment

The Group had goodwill acquired through business combinations
with a carrying amount of approximately HK$135 million allocated
to two cash-generating units ("“CGUs"), being the application
services CGU and solutions and integrated services CGU. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may
be impaired.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amounts
of the respective CGUs to which the goodwill relates and whether
the recoverable amounts of the respective CGUs are less than
their carrying amounts. For the year under review, the recoverable
amounts of the respective CGUs have been determined based
on the respective CGUs' value in use using cash flow projections
specific to each CGU and applying a discount rate which reflects
specific risk to each CGU.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FEREM BT NARERREERSE

We evaluated management's impairment assessment of goodwill
and the key audit procedures we performed included, inter alia,
the following:

assessing the key assumptions and estimates used
in management’s discounted cash flow projections,
including, inter alia, budgeted/forecasted revenue and
margins, growth rates and discounted rates, taking into
consideration the historical accuracy of the prior year's
assumptions and estimates made by management, as
appropriate;

obtaining an understanding of the current and expected
future developments of the relevant CGUs and factors
that might affect key assumptions and estimates of the
respective cash flow projections and discount rates
applied;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BAZBERE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

HEERER

The impairment testing of goodwill required management to

make certain significant accounting estimates and assumptions
that would affect the reported amount of goodwill and related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

We focus on this matter due to the magnitude of the balance
involved and the significant judgements and estimates required
in determining the recoverable amounts of the relevant CGUs.

The related disclosures about significant accounting judgements
and estimates and impairment testing of goodwill are included in
notes 3 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ARz BT NAEERREREE

involving our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in evaluating the methodology used and certain key
assumptions and estimates made by management in
their goodwill impairment assessment, including, inter
alia, the specific discount rates and long term growth
rates applicable to the respective CGUs, with reference to
market and other relevant information;

evaluating management’s assessment about reasonable
possible changes in certain key assumptions and
estimates, as appropriate; and

assessing the adequacy of related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By REE®RE ()

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By RBE®RE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By REE®RE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By RBE®RE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Yat Fai, Peter.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

16 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEEER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #{Z —Z —ZFF+-A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—ECEF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET T
REVENUE WA 5 256,265 275,893
Cost of sales and services SHE K ARTS A A (111,477) (120,639)
Gross profit E7 144,788 155,254
Other income and gains, net H A I A K Wz F =8 5 22,279 7,875
Foreign exchange differences, net N ZREFE (625) 335
Fair value gains/(losses), net: AEERE, (BB) F5E -
Financial assets at fair value through EATFELEZARY
profit or loss MgEE (2,755) 323
Investment properties wEYE (941) 3,626
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HMAX (32,812) (36,631)
General and administrative expenses, net — MR RITBA S 5 (60,906) (63,455)
Finance costs Bi5E A 7 (1,155) (1,102)
Other expenses HAx (6,233) (6,024)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B AT R 6 61,640 60,201
Income tax expense FrEHiAX 10 (1,726) (4,308)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEHF 59,914 55,893
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: BT AL :
Owners of the parent HAREAA 60,125 55,893
Non-controlling interests FEE B 1 A 2 (211) -
59,914 55,893
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO RAFEERKR R
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE EBEgRAEF
PARENT 12
Basic HAR 24.31 2263
Diluted e 24.19 2249

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SLEETHEWRER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #{Z —Z —ZFF+-_A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—EB-EF ZE-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REFRF 59,914 55,893
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Htt2EW A (FER)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be WA EEEIRE - Hh2 @A (EIE)
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:  AJBE B D IEEBEEK ¢
Exchange differences on translation of foreign BREBINEBREE VERZE
operations 2,608 (2,169)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR TEEREBALRE
THE YEAR 62,522 53,724
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: T AL
Owners of the parent HAREAA 62,733 53,724
Non-controlling interests FEPZE I 1 A 7 (211) -
62,522 53,724

MR EEER AR

—E-TFFIR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BRI R

31 December 2020 —E=-EF+—-F=+—H

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Right-of-use assets

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss — debt investment

Deposits

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Tax recoverable
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss — listed equity investments
and derivative financial instruments
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss — money market certificate
and debt investment
Pledged bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables, other payables and accruals

Contract liabilities
Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

EREEE
WE - R RRE
REME
A
e
A
AT EGIERARY
B EE - ABIRE
me
EAERIE A B
SERE A ER(E
TEE
i
R 558 5
AtEE
TR - 2% REA
FEEOR
TR EBIE
AT EGIE AR B
aE- LHRARER
FARBTA
AT EEIA AR BT
BE-EETBTER
B A
BERBTER
ReREARSEE
RBEERE
BN
BATE S8R - B SR
R EOR
AthafE
AEAME
A 0E
RBA EeE
TEN R E
MEERRD A M

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

~N o5 oW

22
20
26

22

22
23
23

2020 2019
—ECEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT THT
1,987 3,183
66,290 70,091
4,983 8,486
135,001 134,485
60,956 59,999
2,100 2,100
628 1812
2,320 2,288
274,265 282,444
7 597
44,498 50,159
20,248 20226
19,414 14,745
5,155 6,674
7,383 10,121
- 45,728
666 2,541
295,632 200,730
393,003 351,521
66,581 65,023
58,708 55,712
4,614 5,886
3,973 9,662
133,876 136,283
259,127 215,238
533,392 497,682




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
maMBRRR (&)

31 December 2020 —E —ZTF+ - A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EH —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F# T T T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBAEE
Other payables H e 5k I8 24 537 -
Contract liabilities e ON=Kr= 25 2,309 -
Lease liabilities HERE 15(b) 2,424 3,788
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIEAE 26 12,563 12,515
Total non-current liabilities ERBEERE 17,833 16,303
Net assets BEFE 515,559 481,379
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &2 T #EH A EIGEE
Issued capital BT 27 24,949 24,949
Share premium account % 1 % B Bk 27 53,104 53,104
Shares held under the restricted share award RIEERSIRG ERTEER
scheme 3% 27 (4,480) (5,462)
Other reserves H A 409,945 389,028
Proposed final dividend ¥R R BRI B 11 29,702 19,760
513,220 481,379
Non-controlling interests eI 2,339 -
Total equity Atk 515,559 481,379
Ng Cheung Shing & & Leung King San, Sunny 2 5 37
Director 2 F Director Z %

M EGEEERAR —T-TFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #{Z —Z —ZFF+-A=+—HILFE

emium

account

At T January 2019 R=E-nE-f-B 24949 53,104 (5809) 4246 7220 1972 746 (1022) 377,506 29599 478064
Profitfor the year RERRT - - - - - - - - 55893 - 25893
Other comprehensive loss REEEBRERE:

for the year:

Exchange differences on translation BERINEBRES

of foreign operations ZERER - - - - - - - (2169) - - (2169

Total comprehensive income AEE2ERANEE

for the year - - - - - - - (2169 95893 - 53724
Purchase of shares held under the EEERHRNREEE

restricted share award scheme BTRG 29 - - (623) - - - - - - - (623)
Vesting of shares held under the ARSIRG R EET

restricted share award scheme BhnEE b - - 970 (970) - - - - - - -
Share award arrangements Rin BT H 29 - - - 2110 - - - - - - 2110
Transfer of asset revaluation HE-BRENFGEREAE

reserve upon the disposal of BitEE

an investment property - - - - - (1972) - - 1972

Final 2018 dividend declared - - - - - - - - (56) (29599) (29,655)

Interim 2019 dividend 11 - - - - - - - - (22241) - (22241)
Proposed final 2019 dividend 1 - - - - - - - - (19760) 19760 -
At 31 December 2019

24949 53,104 (5462) 5386 7227 - 746 (3191) 393314 19,760 481379

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
REERSBR(R)

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 £ —Z _ZF +_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRRERARLY

Other reserves

Rtofdte

Shares held

under the

restricted Share-based
shareaward  payment
reserve

Share
premium

Exchange Non-

fluctuation

Proposed
final
dividend

Total
equity

Issued Goodwill Reserve Retained

capital

controlling

scheme funds Total interests

REERH

RH%R
FHER  REAR
2B e
HK$'000  HK$'000
Thn TR

account reserve reserve profits

EXRD
1
HK$'000
Tén

KRS
S
HK$000
Tén

FEHE
i
HK$000
Tén

BRI
HK$000
TEn

Rt EER
HK$000
Tén

HERE
HK$'000
TR

g
HK$'000
-

REuA
HK$'000
Tén

2
HK$000
-

RH4R
HK$000
Thn

Notes

LiF:d

(note 30)
(& 30)

(note 30)
(R 30)

At T January 2020 RZBZ5§-F-H 24949 53,104 (5,462) 5,386 (7,227) 746 (3,191) 393314 19,760 481,379 - 481,379
Profitfor the year REERT - - - - - - - 60125 - 60125 (@11) 59914
Other comprehensive income REERB2EMA
for the year.
Exchange differences on BEBNERREL
translation of LERER
foreign operations - - - - - - 2,608 - - 2,608 - 2,608
Total comprehensive income FEEREMAEE
for the year - - - - - - 2,608 60,125 - 62,733 (211) 62,522
Acquisiion of a subsidiary WE-HNERR 3 - - - - - - - - - - 2,550 2,550
Purchase of shares held underthe B E AR 411 1) 2851 &
restricted share award scheme BT 29 - - (235) - - - - - - (235) - (235)
Vesting of shares heldunderthe AR HIk (7 s8I T
restricted share award scheme RiAER 29 - - 1217 (1,217) - - - - - - - -
Share award arrangements D BT 9 - - - 1,504 - - - - - 1,504 - 1,504
Final 2019 dividend declared k=% - - - - - - - (29) (19,760) (19,789) - (19,789)
Interim 2020 dividend 1 - - - - - - - (12,372) - (12,372) - (12,372)
Proposed final 2020 dividend 1 - - - - - - - (29,702) 29,702 - - -
At 31 December 2020 ES
+-A=t+-8 W9 53104 (4480) 5613 (1.220) 746 (563) 41133 29702 51320 2339 515559
Mg RGEEARAT T TFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #{Z —Z —ZFF+-A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
S

R Sy g

HK$000 HK$'000
FEx TAET

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & ZEBfE2HERE

Profit before tax R 354 A5 7 61,640 60,201
Adjustments for: IR L
Finance costs % ER 1,155 1,102
Bank interest income RITHEWA 5 (3,400) (5,245)
Dividend income from listed investments BATEEERAR 2 LT
at fair value through profit or loss & R B 5 (480) (698)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BWEREHEE
plant and equipment, net 2 W ER 6 (1,999) -
Fair value losses/(gains), net: NEEEE, (W) F5E -
Financial assets at fair value through RATELEERARZ
profit or loss & E 6 2,755 (323)
Investment properties B 6 941 (3,626)
Depreciation of property, plant and W BERREBNE
equipment 6 1,437 1,388
Depreciation of right-of-use assets RAREEEZITE 6 4,885 6,885
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of FEWE 5 R FURE, (B
trade receivables, net RAE) F5E 6 408 (108)
Reversal of impairment of contract assets, net B[4 %) & &R (B F 58 6 - (68)
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hmp & E#s 6 6,233 6,024
Equity-settled share-based payment expense  IRAEZAE ARG XA HX 29 1,504 2,110
75,079 67,642
Decrease in inventories FERL 590 126
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables JEUWE SRR, (38 h0) 5,544 (6/479)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERTSRIE - e R E MR
deposits and other receivables RIER D, () (3,042) 702
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BREERD,(35mM) (22) 469
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, FERTE SRR - H A e
other payables and accruals FIE K FEET AR IEE N,
ORLA) 1,480 (9,073)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities aHaEEm Ogd) 4,823 (1,242)
Cash generated from operations B IRATISIR & 84,452 52,145
Hong Kong profits tax paid EHEBNEH (4,709) (124)
Overseas taxes paid ERUGINGIIR (1,400) (3852)
Net cash flows from operating activities CEEHMEZREREFH 78,343 48,169

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
RERERERE)

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #{Z —Z —ZFF+-_A=+—HI-FE

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAIT
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEBFB R REFE 78,343 48,169
CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING R ESEEFE (FiA)2BE
ACTIVITIES RE
Bank interest received EYERITRE 3,400 5,245
Dividends received from listed investments BATEKLER AR LT
at fair value through profit or loss FERSUWA 480 698
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEVE BERZEEE
equipment (777) (1,460)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through BEEZ A FELEZARZ
profit of loss — money market certificate Mg EE-—BE¥METE - (42,829)
Additions to other intangible assets NEEMEREE (4,843) (11,961)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEME - BERZBIER
plant and equipment FTiS §E 2,655 -
Proceeds from disposal of an investment HE—IRIREVMEMSHRIA
property 2,860 9,196
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HERATFESESZARZ
fair value through profit or loss B EEBHIE—EB
— debt investment & 2,535 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HERAFELERARY
fair value through profit or loss B EEFGHIE-—8
— money market certificate miSFE 43,267 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary and call options Ue B — I B A 5 M iR B R 31 208 -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits & IR ERITEZR A, (& 0) 1,875 (447)
Increase in non-pledged bank deposits with WEERREI AR BR = A
original maturity of more than three months 2 R IR FE 0
when acquired (14,361) (52,872)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities & EBFT1S, (i) 2
Remne#H 37,299 (94,424)
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING METBHAZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of shares under the restricted BB BRI, ZEE 2l
share award scheme H ) (235) (623)
Principal portion of lease payments HMENRNAEAS D (4,018) (5697)
Dividends paid ERIRE (32,161) (51,896)
Interest paid ERFE (1,155) (1,102)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEETHMACHAESREFE (37,569) (59318

MR EEER AR

—E-TFFIR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
RERERERE)

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #{Z —Z —ZFF+-_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
S

R Sy g

HK$000 HK$'000
FEx TAET

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASHAND RERZFEBEEEE2EM

CASH EQUIVALENTS (RD) FE 78,073 (105,573)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F# 2R & RERIB G EE 147,170 254,857
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net RS W EFRE 2,468 2114)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZASRERAATEE

AT END OF YEAR 227,711 147,170

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND HEeRERBEESEELEBRIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the REVBHRARAT RS R

consolidated statement of financial position ZRREEE 295,632 200,730
Non-pledged time deposits with original W RIBAEBEB=@A 2

maturity of more than three months IR R E B

when acquired (67,921) (53,560)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the HEReRERAMRZEAS R

consolidated statement of cash flows ZRBEEE 227,711 147,170

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ¥R R Y 5

31 DECEMBER 2020 — = -ZF+_-A=+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

provision of enterprise applications software and e-business
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise
applications software with implementation and ongoing
support services; and the Government Electronic Trading
Services ("GETS”), cloud services and other related value-added
services;

provision of information technology (“IT") solutions
implementation and application software development;
provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure outsourcing
services; business process outsourcing (“‘BPO”) services; and
provision of IT systems and network infrastructure with related
design, implementation and ongoing support services; and

property and treasury investments.

RFAREEER

MEBASREEBERARDIRABRES
Mz zBR AR HFEMFERALN
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda ° ANA &) & Z & 2 i B 7
B EIE B E 1009 BUS B 2 104E -

FARAEEEEATERERR

ATERECEERSGLE TS
BRI RERESEERLFE
TEBREOCEERASNGE  RKF
BETBSRBE ([GETS]) ~ iR
M E A BRI AR

REEMBE TERBE]) BRT
REBMERBRFER: EHEM
R R AR & E RN AR
% EBREINA ([ EHRIEIMALD
RIS RIEHERAR KRG R ABR
EpERie MAMEERT Bk
FESER &

MERBBRE -

M EGEEERAR —T-TFFR

81
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 — - &+ _-A=+—H

Issued ordinary/
registered capital

BRTER/

afER

Ordinary US$1,000
L@k 1000 T

Ordinary HK$2

Non-voting deferred*

HKS$5,000,000
E@ER AT
ERERERT
5,000,000/ 7T

Ordinary HKS2
EER2ET

US$200,000

200,000 7T

US$3,500,000

3,500,000 7T

Ordinary US$1
EERIET

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
Place of incorporation/
registration and
business
EMARYLERE
EEMHY
Computer And Technologies British Virgin Islands/
(BVI) Limited Hong Kong
RERAEE/BE
Computer And Technologies Hong Kong
International Limited B
REES YN
Computer And Technologies Hong Kong
Integration Limited e
BB ERBRAR
Computer And Technologies PRC/Mainland China
International Trading HE/ RER
(Shanghai) Company Limited®
HBRGERERE S
(L&) ARRA!
Computer And Technologies PRC/Mainland China
(Shanghai) Company Limited® R /s Bl fuith
HEMBERRGARAR
Computer And Technologies British Virgin Islands/
Investment Limited Hong Kong
EERAEE/BE
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

1. RARKEEEHN (&)

MEARZER
ARAEEWERRAZHENT -

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
ERAEERE
EEED

2020 2019
—B-%F | _FF
100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

Principal activities

TERH

Investment holding

RERK

Provision of IT solutions
development and
implementation services,
investment holding and
treasury investments

REAAMBBRATRER
RERRYE  REERK
BBRE

Provision of system and
network integration services

REZR LB ERRE

Sales of computer networks
and system platforms

HEERBRRER TR

Provision of system and
network integration services

REZR LB ERRE

Investment holding and
treasury investments

REBBRERRE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 —ZE =&+ _-A=+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

C&T (Guangzhou) Investment
Limited
B (BM) REBRAA

C&T (Hong Kong) Investment
Limited
it (BR)REARRA

C&T (Nanjing) Investment Limited

M (AR)REARRA

Computer And Technologies
Solutions Limited

HBEHrERAR

Computer And Technologies

Solutions (Shenzhen) Company

Limited™

HEEr (RIDBRRE"

Computer And Technologies
Resources Limited

RBERERBRAA

Place of incorporation/
registration and
business

EEBY

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RBRARE/BA

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
BB

PRC/Mainland China
B R E

Hong Kong
BB

Issued ordinary/
registered capital
BRITEE/
AMER

Ordinary HK$2
EER2ET

Ordinary US$1
ERIET

Ordinary HKS2
LER2ET

Ordinary HK$10,000
TEAR1000078 7T

US$1,128,000
1,1280003 7T

Ordinary HK$10,000
TEAR1000078 7T

1. RARKEEEHN (&)

MEARZER (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

ADREERAE

RZADLL

2020 2019
—B-%F | 3R

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

MR EEER AR

Principal activities

FEXRH

Property holding
RENE

Property holding
RENE

Property holding
RENF

Provision of IT solutions
development and
implementation services

RUEEARBBATRRE
RE iR

Provision of IT solutions
development and
implementation services

RUEBARBBATREE

Bk

Provision of human resources
management

REANEBRER

—E-TFFIR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS ER AR B AE ()

31 DECEMBER 2020 — - &+ _-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/
registration and
business

i3 A 531D

BEMH

Issued ordinary/
registered capital
BRTEE/
AMER

1. RARKEEEHN (&)

Ordinary HK$10,000
AR 10000787

Computer And Technologies
Software (Hong Kong) Limited
B RGa (F8)

Hong Kong
EE

ARAT
Global e-Business Services (BVI)  British Virgin Islands/ Class A USS1,600
Limited Hong Kong Class B US$400
RERETEE/BE  ARI60ET
BAB400ETT
Global e-Business Services Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,010,000
Limited Ei @R 101000078 7T
ERETHERBEBERAA
Global e-Trading Services Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2,501,000
BEIRBERAF Eit T8k 2,501,000 7T
IPL Research Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,000,000
G Non-voting deferred**
HK$300,000
38 30000003 7T
BEREEEL
300,000/ 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

MEQE2ER (&)
Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company  Principal activities
KD RBARE
BEEDL TEEH
2020 2019
222 | CTNF
100 100 Provision of enterprise
applications software and
related operation
RECEFHHEAR
EEEE
100 100 Investment holding
REZK
100 100 Provision of enterprise
applications software services
R REEBRS
100 100 Provision of e-business related
services, including government
electronic trading services
REETESHERY
BDERNETE SR
100 100 Provision of enterprise

applications software and
related operation outsourcing
services and investment
holding

RS EBIERA RIEE
LB FIRB AR EE
e



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 —ZE =&+ _-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEAIREEEERE (E&)

(CONTINUED)
BB 2 & (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/

Platinum China Limited

Platinum Software Systems
(Shanghai) Company Limited®

A& Z5(LE)
BRRA"

Sanyo Extended System Services
Limited
ZHRRZGARRAA

Sanyo Extended Data Systems
Limited
—HARERBRAA

registration and
business

AL R E
EEBY

Hong Kong
AR

PRC/Mainland China
FE RE R

Hong Kong
Eit

Hong Kong
BB

Issued ordinary/
registered capital
BRITEE/
AMER

Ordinary HK$10,000
EBAR 10,0008 7T

Ordinary U5$200,000
TR 200,000 7T

Ordinary HK$1,000,000
38k 1,000,000 7T

Ordinary HK$180,000
3% 180,000/ 7T

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

AQEEERE
BBt
2020 2019
ZEZEF —TNF

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

MR EEER AR

Principal activities

FEXRH

Trading of computer software
licences, provision of
training, implementation
and maintenance of software
services, and investment
holding

BEESREMSIE  ’4)
HHE - B R AER
BARREER

Trading of computer software
licences, provision of training
and implementation,
maintenance and support
services

BEERATEE
RESEI R BB R
&R SURRE

Provision of computer support
and programming services,
and investment holding

REERELEFRG
RIS A RIRE IR

Provision of computer support
and programming services

REERELEFRG
R

—E-TFFIR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 — - &+ _-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

LEAREHAERAR"

e O&M) AR A

CISC Limited?#

Place of incorporation/
registration and
business

i3 A 531D

Issued ordinary/
registered capital
BRTEE/

EEBE afEx

PRC/Mainland China
RERE R

Ordinary US$450,000
AR 450,000 F T

Macau Ordinary MOP25,000

i @A 2500038 T

Hong Kong
BB

Ordinary HK$2,202,950
L@k 2,202950% T

RFAREEER (FH)

MEARZER (&)

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company
ERARERE

Principal activities

BEAIL TEXRH

2020 2019
—E-8F

==

“B-NF

100 100 Provision of enterprise
applications software and
related operation outsourcing
services

RECEEARY RS
SEIN IR

100 100 Provision of enterprise
applications software and
related operation

RELRERRM R
HEEE

Provision of products, solutions
and consulting services on
cyber intelligence, and cyber
security

REBEBENBER D
Em BRARR
& AR

" The subsidiary is registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture under PRC * HM B AR REFEAREMRABTINEG
law. B

" The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under " RE W% RATRBEREEEEMAING
PRC law. BERKE-

Liid

HHH

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, carry no
rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting. In the winding-up of the subsidiaries, the holders of the deferred
shares carry the rights to receive a return of capital after the holders of the
ordinary shares have received a sum of HK$1,000,000,000 per ordinary share.

CISC Limited, a Hong Kong incorporated company, is accounted for as a
subsidiary of the Group even though the Group has only 40% equity in
this company based on the factors explained in note 31 to the financial
statements.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

e ZEWAAEERACERERELR
NREZEERBREZEN TEEZES
KWERAMBRREASBEREFEEBARAE N
REERBZEN - MHMBRARESR BT
BOFBEAEBRAREBRFBEARTRY
3 AZ UER A ££1,000,000,000 7 TT 14 - 1A R
BEAK o

e g SR B CISC Limited (— & B M2
A)) {27 400 R4 - ME B BE 7S SR 3R M 5 31
FTEENEEZ ZARNEATEENE
NSIPN: =



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 — £ -ZF+_-A=+—H

2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Except for Computer And Technologies (BVI) Limited, all of the above

subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group
or of particular importance to the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HKS") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power

over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated

until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the

assets (including goodwill and other intangible assets) and liabilities
of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (i) the cumulative translation differences recorded in
equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis
as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for
the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are described below:

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
"Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance
to all parties to understand and interpret the standards.
The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance, new
guidance on the derecognition of assets and liabilities, and
updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and
liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The
Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of
the concepts contained therein override the concepts or
requirements in any standard. The Conceptual Framework did
not have any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input
and a substantive process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business
and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on
whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the definition of
outputs to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess
whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce an
optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to transactions or other events that occurred on
or after 1 January 2020. The amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

22 B ERERKEZ2E ()

ZE-NFHBEREHERTRERTZ
ERPBHREER WL BRI T

(@)

ZE-NFHBFHREHER (T
SER]D RMBHRE R ER G ER
T —E2ENHMDT RUBRSK
RmEENE B BREMRE
5l W TT B NREER -
BOERBEENAERREMB
XENFES BREERABER
IFERNHFES AREEREE
M ERMERTE - ZFER
MEBVHHRETEE  FENMG
ETETEEMNER - BSHERIL
ER - HFRFEa s EafRe
ERENETMERMESIHER -
BESE 2R B AR S B 9 B A KO0 S R
B BEMEATE -

BERPBREERFEIR (BFIA)
HEBZERFELES  LRERHER
SMESl e ZFERTAGTHAIMRAE
BH—HERERPMNEE BAEAS
LEE-BRERAM-BEEEBIE -
MmmEGBEHEEELENBEK
BR-XBHARRIEKELAS
P E R ASIBIE - ZFER] B
HMSE2RESTRRNEBRD
VHEEEEL ZFH -HR &
HENEBSZBRANRBEEEBRRER
BHRBREELENBBRERR -
RZEEFREREELZESR  EH
RIREPRHEZEMIRE
BWASRE —RIEB 2 EMUA -
BEAN - HFERTIRH AR 5l - AR
s BESRAEE NN L3
AFEZ A FESTEAR - B
BBz RIEABREERETE
REBETEHETE AEED IR
AIEMAEIE 224 —-HA—H
L ERBEENRZHHEMEER %
FEFTH AR BB BN KRR
WEAEAIRE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 — £ -ZF+_-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(0

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address
issues affecting financial reporting in the period before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with an
alternative risk-free rate (“RFR"). The amendments provide
temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue
during the period of uncertainty before the introduction of
the alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to investors
about their hedging relationships which are directly affected by
these uncertainties. The amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position and performance of the Group as the
Group does not have any interest rate hedging relationships.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition
of material. The new definition states that information is
material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that materiality
will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, or
both. The amendments did not have any significant impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendment to HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2¢

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Covid-19 — Related Rent Concessions'

Insurance Contracts*

Insurance Contracts*’

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current*®

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract®

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 412

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

s No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

° As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation

5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised
in October 2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

7 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020,
HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3
an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or
a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since
the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first application,
the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 CHEMAEEREMR 2E BB

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which
affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is
replaced with an alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount when accounting for changes
in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the
interest rate benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition, the
amendments permit changes required by the interest rate benchmark
reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with through the
normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge
ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary relief to
entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement
when an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief allows an
entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the separately
identifiable requirement is met, provided the entity reasonably
expects the RFR risk component to become separately identifiable
within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments require an
entity to disclose additional information to enable users of financial
statements to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark
reform on an entity’s financial instruments and risk management
strategy. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied retrospectively, but
entities are not required to restate the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28
(2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion
of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify that
if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the
entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to
defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period
if it complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to
items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they
are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity
has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application without restating the
comparative information. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments
to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from the
terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment
to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendment. The amendment is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected to
have a significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from
the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative
Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives when
applying HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 —Z—Z#+—-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition

method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

24 TESTHEME

EREHREE
EBAGTINBEEAR - PTEZEAE)S
NWE Rz X FHEE 2 FE/XR
SEEERCEE  AEBEHREBE A
BAREZBBERASEEBBRERBES
EHIE TR ITIR A RSN B R 2 A
BZRM - REXBEHFT  AREEE
WA ESIE DGR IREEDT A B B EF
BB stEREIE 2 FFE b
(fﬁﬂ—iﬂ%%*ﬁ%%\ CRETREBEARBE

BENDFEEFEZLLD) - FAAEEMIE
T'”“%lJ s D DR AT ERE - WEA
BARK AR EE AR STEH o

EAEERBN-—AEPREERTE A
AR —HELDRE  MMELXREEE
EELNENEEARER  RETE WS
—IAE -

EAEEWE -TBEBLR  QRESHIE
O AR B B 2 4GB R IR R AR
FEERECVBEERARE  UEDE
AZOBERER  BESRERES TR
FEHNPZRETETIR -

WM HFOEBOETT - RATHA 2B
BEZWBERARZ A FEENRGE - KA
SIEMEmERARBRRT -

WhETT 8 T 2 R RS AR ERN RS
Bz AFERER - HOBER—REEN
BEZHIAREBEAFEFE QA FEE
Ebfﬁ’\%iﬁéﬂiﬂ FER - DA RS 2 KRHE

SEME  HEEENRBEAIIRR -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 — £ -ZF+_-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the

aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group'’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 — = -ZF+_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTBERBE ()
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Goodwill previously eliminated against NEHRFEREHHE2EHE
consolidated reserves
Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA’s Statement of Standard RZZEZE—FHNBHEEZETRI A GRS
Accounting Practice 30 Business Combinations (“SSAP 30") in 2001, ZEHERENENREFSH (S5
goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated against consolidated ERERE305 AT WEEE ZEHER
reserves in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such WIS E MRS EBmEE - IRWB BT
goodwill remains eliminated against consolidated reserves and is not WMEEAFEIRE  ZEHEBNHEEESR
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when all or part of the B BEEFARE D EmEBEH X
business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash- BHESEMEFEC REEFESURME
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired. BreniamkmEg -
Fair value measurement IL\\ SF{E%H-%
The Group measures its investment properties, debt investment, REBRSREAREERZRAFESNE
equity investments, money market certificate and derivative financial HIREME GBEHRE REAKE B
instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair MSFERTEMBIAR - RV EETS
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid SEERFEAMRNERFRSTEALE
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market EEMBMAEZREEMIGT ER -2
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement FEAEDNREBHEEEREEEB IR
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or FIRZEENBBZEEM SN (NEE
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the EmMB)HZEERABAZAEN TS
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most ET2BERET E2ABENZTISE
advantageous market for the asset and liability. The principal or the RASEAEEE BAEXBEIATE
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The DEAMS2HEETEZEERBEETT
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions EENEERACEREMETE R EBR
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, ME2EENRESELEMNEMITE -

assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account FMBEEZ AT EFEZERMISRESE
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using FERUAGERREEARERAZAENER
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market BEHETFHEAGa RRERAGFERZE
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 25— Ti5S mE i BREUEE N 2 82
Ik

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the REBRARSBEAEBEERITNGRE
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure WHEB G E R T EHERDT - # &
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and HEABRE ASE s RAEZREEARE
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. TR ABB cAERERD -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B aE (AR
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets,
deferred tax assets and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to

which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 —Z —Z&+_-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESFBERBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued) M BEERE(E)
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an BEBBEREEROEEGATHRES
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the B TR A ERAEER  gF
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value ARUNRMMIZERRZEEEEL2E
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments IRy F 8 K2 JR B TV BT 2 B0 AT B 3R 3R i1
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An FFRRBEREMAERE - REBER
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the ELAMEEERKRAR -

period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as REEREHEESEEHETHESEDM
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised KRETBICHERCBBERBENETHE
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. ERBFRD - B ERZETR - A
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. AILET AN E &5 - ERIE R Z —HE
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than EREEE (MERIINERETZEE
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates AT e S AT 2 AT H IR F R E
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not HEROE CRAETNSHBARKBEFE
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have WERZEERRBEBEMEE KA
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no B85 (R IR E #iE) - BHES
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A B BEREERABG ABRE -

reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties BEAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETIERT  BEALTBHERALRSE
ZEEANT
(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family @ THMBUIATAL BIZZALTiZAL
and that person: ZATIREANEE E F RS
() has control or joint control over the Group; () Rk EEEGAEE
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEBEBEEARATE: X
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the iy ABAEBXAEEZFARZE
Group or of a parent of the Group; EEREKE
or %
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

i

) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working

condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with

specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for

this purpose are as follows:

Ownership interests in
properties held for own 2% to 4%
use and buildings

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease terms and

20%
Computer equipmentand ~ 20% to 33'/,%
software
Furniture, fixtures and other  18% to 25%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year

end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting

period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in

which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year

of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at

each financial year end.

Customer relationships

Purchased customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over

their estimated useful lives of 8 to 10 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives of 5
to 10 years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products/services not exceeding
five years, commencing from the date when the intangible assets are
available for use.

Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or

contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

24 FTESHBEME (F)

B EE (BRI (&)

B

B8 A B4 T bA B AR A R E 1B 2 51
A A AT PR F A 2 4 PUA AR R
B -

i ZE BR R B AR A
FTEMRRRAREERGBERNR -

EEARKE BT K ELEEMY &R
BAEXM EAIITARERNKEE - AR
BEZREERERIHEEE  EEA
EERKEENZ - BB RHEIRTHKIA
B REER SR EREFAXE  FA¥EMEM
ZBEBFEERX T @RRERRIFRELT
R - MR FREZERMAERIRN
BT STEH o

5 RIE 7R 3 P 7S T DA R A BB 10 OB (B /5 1R
SRR - WIRARRER R ZBEFR (T
BBREF) mEVEEANHRERAEER
RIAB SRS -

HE
AEBREGHRERFEANEER/RE
EHE - WEHNRERREMS TE—R
By A AE B 2 B B EE R AR - Bl
BHRIBEEME -

REMEREEA

AEEHMERE (FEHHRERKEE
BEMERIN KIE —HRNFEE -
AEBBAEEGEMELBEN - M
EREEEREERAEEENRER -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a
change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of properties (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

HE ()
AEMER/EAA (H)

© FKHHE
AEBHHEYENEREE (ZE
REE B MO BEBS12ME A AT
ATEaRERENEE) EREHA
EHERIMR

AEMAERSHEA
EASEECLHEAR  AEEXEER
mE (REAHERR) $ERERE
DRSREHEIMERE -

P 7 SR [ 30 R 8 5 16 E P B A PRI 75 9
BAREDRREOAKNEERBELSEEHE
E -HEANBSHEEMFHEEARENE -
AEBERBEBUEESANTHRED
e r&EXHD - HEWAREHARNIZE
BORIIBRE A ABRROBAR - RER
HEaME MuEBLTHREMRERE
EWRERKAR DG AREEENERT
B YREHAZEREER SHE S
A o AT THR PTERER ) HA R A HE AR R
YA

HEEEEMB RS D E KB RS
BEABEANHEEFESREHEEARK -
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B35 R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 — £ -ZF+_-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “"Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value change recognised in other comprehensive
income is recycled to the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value profit or loss are
also recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability
or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as
a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative;
and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment
only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in
its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or

part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received

cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")

for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account
any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and
contract assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED) (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued) (Continued)

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at

an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a significant
financing component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating

ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group are classified, at initial recognition, as

loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of

directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and

financial liabilities included in accruals.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher
of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as
set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount

is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares
Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the

Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly in
equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own
equity instruments.

Shares held under the restricted share award

scheme
Where shares of the Company are purchased from the market for a

restricted share award scheme, the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs, is presented as “Shares held
under the restricted share award scheme”and deducted from equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case
of finished goods and work in progress, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash

and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions
A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or

constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in the statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating

to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Government grants
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is

reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue from the sale of goods and provision of software, GETS
and BPO services is recognised at the point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
goods and services.

Revenue from the rendering of solutions and integration services
and application services (other than sale of goods or the provision
of maintenance services) is recognised over time, using an input
method to measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the
services, because the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced,
or the customers simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group. The input method recognises revenue based
on the proportion of the actual labour hours or costs incurred relative
to the estimated total labour hours or costs for satisfaction of the
services.

Revenue from the provision of maintenance services is recognised
over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods

or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract
assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of which are
included in the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities
A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a

payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e, transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Contract costs
Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,

plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil
a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance

obligations in the future.

(©)  The costs are expected to be recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Contract costs (continued)
The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the

statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the
asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments
The Company operates two equity-settled, share-based

compensation schemes including a share option scheme and a
restricted share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations. Employees of the Group (including directors
of the entities comprising the Group) receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (‘equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at
the date at which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or
loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTBERBE ()
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based payments (continued) BRONARR S (&)
Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into EERENFEBHNATER e
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but ZRRBE RIETHESIGM - BT hE
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the K E GG ER RSB B REK
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will FBEBNRETIASENREM - THE
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within R R AR L BB A EA - S2EFT
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, Bt 755 18 7 488 18 B PR 75 2 Sl A A AT L Atb 4
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to BEIERBIEMS - BRIEFRINORFB R
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in SR BUGM - & R FEER B IR 1 e B 0 BB
the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an B AFEA - AN SHAEE) o

award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market A RERIETIBE R, AR 518
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no BERIUAGBENREmS - ToERE
expense is recognised. fAFx -

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a ERELEE RN ETEETR  BRR
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been EREGEHEEEN  BemRRERE
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an WA BRI BAS AT © WA - B IRE
expense is recognised for any modification, that increases the total I BHARET & - (EHEET B BUIARG 7 5K
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to 2RV ELEREN S EETKRH
the employee as measured at the date of modification. o - AR ZE BT mRAX
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it ERELEERETEN  SRERBER
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet HHEERRR  MERERER A
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes LR ER - ERREEAERERE
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of S B E 8 Al G FEER B 1T 2 (AT 22D -
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new SAT - fil 5T 84 Y B 45 1 fl B SR ER AR -
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a WIEFEAEHE ANENRER - AIZZIEE
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and TR IRE 1 LR T AR R B R
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original HMERT R IR -

award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options and unvested shares held 8 AR AT {5 i AR TR AR 15 75 PR 1 AR 1) 2R B =1
under the restricted share award scheme is reflected as additional EFfEREERD c#HEXLEG ARIR
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share. FTEERAT RN EE -
The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in REBECRMAB U HEHRELERE2HRE
respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only to ST RENBER] - W(ESR_F
equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had not ToFT-AEBZEREER-_ZFR
vested by 1 January 2005 and to those granted on or after 1 January F-A—BAIMABE CRESEE R
2005. URR_ZZRF-A—HIZEBERLEZ
R EREERE S KRG ERZE?

A
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits
Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of
each reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised
by the respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made
at the end of each reporting period for the expected future cost of
such paid leave earned during the year by the employees and carried

forward.

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group's employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully,

in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central retirement
benefit scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central retirement benefit scheme.
The contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central

retirement benefit scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of

termination benefits.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTBERBE ()
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Borrowing costs BE A
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group BERABERAREERESKRESE ZF
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds, and they are BREMKA  ZESRBREEIBTHE -

expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Dividends BRE

Final dividends proposed by the directors, excluding those relating EFERRCARPARE (HRBARARARBR
to the Company’s own shares held under the Company’s restricted RGN BT B2 AR BIRD BBEE
share award scheme, are classified as a separate allocation of retained BN o IR R ZER D A D
profits and/or other distributable reserves within the equity section BARBENE SEMAIHEREREZ—
of the statement of financial position, until they have been approved EBUNEIEE  BEESRENBRRERE
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends HEBIL - EZER SRR ELTIR
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are % BIERREE BERERERIME
recognised as a liability. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the MR THEE -

notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because RARIRANEZLERFEHRE  REA
the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the authority to declare RATRMBE TESHATRFHARE -
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised E it - R HAAR SO0 B I Bk 2 B B R R
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared. RABE-

Foreign currencies HhiEg

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, W EMBHRERTIARNRB 2 N &% BT
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group 25 - REFEBTEEBIRTRATHER
determines its own functional currency and items included in the B2 EY MEEBZHBERERME
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional BIHBYRAZNEETE - AEEE
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in TEEBMLEINNBEERIVLURSE
the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional AEZEB e ERERTD R - UINEET
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary BrEBEERBERREHELER .
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated M EMIERBE - HEF I REEKIE
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the Holf o ZBH ST ABRE -

reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e, translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group concluded that certain contract revenue from solutions
and integration services and application services is recognised over
time because the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced or
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group. The fact that another entity would not
need to re-perform the services that the Group has provided to
date demonstrates that the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits of the Group’s performance as it performs.

The Group determined that the input method is the best method in
measuring the progress of the services for certain contract revenue
from solutions and integration services and application services
because there is a direct relationship between the Group’s efforts or
inputs (for example, labour hours or costs incurred) and the transfer
of services to the customer. The Group recognises revenue on the
basis of the inputs to the satisfaction of the services relative to the
total expected inputs to the complete satisfaction of that services.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)
Property lease classification - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property and industrial
property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions
of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a
major part of the economic life of the commercial property and
the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property, that it
retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of these properties which are leased out and accounts for
the contracts as operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that
is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately
or leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)
Income taxes

Significant judgement is involved in determining the provision
for income taxes. Determining income tax provision requires
management to make estimates and assumptions and involves
judgement on the tax treatment of certain transactions, assessment
of the probability of tax uncertainties and interpretation of applicable
tax rules. These estimates, assumptions, judgements and assessments
affect the amounts that are reported in these financial statements
and accompanying disclosures. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to
take into account any changes in tax legislation and/or underlying
assumptions.

Estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value-in-use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value-in-use of each relevant cash-generating unit
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2020 was
HK$135,001,000 (2019: HK$134,485,000). Further details are given in
note 16 to the financial statements.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value-in-use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at their fair values. The fair value
at the end of each reporting period was based on a valuation on
these properties conducted by an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers using property valuation techniques which involve
making assumptions on certain market conditions. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result in changes
in the fair value of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurement, are given in note 14 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days
past due.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can
lead to an increased number of defaults in the sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables and
contract assets is disclosed in notes 19 and 21 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises certain contract revenue from solutions and
integration and application services by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the services at the end of the
reporting period. The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
services is generally measured by reference to the labour hours or
costs expended relative to the total expected labour hours or costs
to the complete satisfaction of the services. Significant assumptions
such as the duration and other project specific factors are generally
required to estimate the total expected labour hours or costs to the
complete satisfaction of the services. The estimates are made based
on past experience and knowledge of management and/or relevant
project personnel.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay’, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or when
it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the
lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such
as market interest rates) when available.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@)  the application services segment that primarily engages in the
provision of enterprise applications software and e-business
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise
applications software with implementation and ongoing
support services; and the GETS, cloud services and other related
value-added services;

(b)  the solutions and integration services segment that primarily
engages in the provision of IT solutions implementation and
application software development; provision of IT and related
operation/infrastructure outsourcing services; BPO services;
and provision of IT systems and network infrastructure with
related design, implementation and ongoing support services;
and
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(©)  theinvestments segment that primarily engages in various
types of investing activities including, inter alia, property
investment for rental income and/or for capital appreciation
and treasury investment in securities for dividend income and
interest income and/or for capital appreciation.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss, which is a
measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss
before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before
tax except that unallocated interest income, unallocated other
income and gains, net, unallocated foreign exchange differences, net,
corporate and other unallocated depreciation, and corporate and
other unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable, pledged
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these

liabilities are managed on a group basis.

There were no material intersegment sales and transfers during the
current and prior years.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFHER (F)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (@) BEDH
Solutions and Integration
Application Services Services Investments
EREH BARRRERRE k&
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020
—7—7¢ :27h¢ —7—7¢ Z —7—7$
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 0 HK$'000
TR ThL TR BT TR BT TR
Segment revenue: AHUA
Salesto extemal customers note§)  HETFIANREP
(B3£5) 152,923 164372 102,668 109151 674 2370 256,265* 275893
Otherincome and gains,net AMARNETE 1,743 1931 86 - 2,502 699 43310 26300
Total ag 154,666 166,303 102,754 109,151 3,176 3,069 260,596 218523
Segment results PHEE 47,205 57971 28,010 25434 (184) 6,306 75,031 8971
Reconcilation: HE:
Undllocated interest income RARMEUA 3,400A 545
Unallocated otherincomeand gains, ~ AAEEMMAR
net hasE 14,5481 A
Unallocated foreign exchange AORELERTE
differences, net (625) 335
Corporate and other unallocated PEREBRALNE
depreciation (524) (502)
Corporate and other unallocated CERABAIERR
expenses (30,190) (34,588)
Profit before tax )t 61,640 60201
Segment assets ABEE 209503 21378 76,581 70463 75,126 18760 361810 41296
Reconcilation: HE:
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMRAEEE
assets 305,458 220999
Total assets BElE 667,268 633965
Segment iabilities AHER 97,949 91920 26,950 5707 693 4 12559 117,64
Reconcilation: HE:
Corporate and other unallocated tEREBRAREE
liabilities 26,117 34892
Totallbiltes BERE 151,709 152586
* This represents the consolidated revenue of HK$256,265,000 (2019: * ERBEAEBEBaRZEAEKRA

HK$275,893,000) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

A These comprise the consolidated other income and gains, net of A
HK$22,279,000 (2019: HK$7,875,000) in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

256,265,000/8 7T (= & hi :
275,893,000/ 7T) ©

BREEGEERERAZEAHMIR
AN B U 25 55 58 5 22,279,000 8 7T (=%
— L4 ¢ 78750008 7T) °

B ZSEEFR A —E-TFFIR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 _E_ZF+_A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(a) Operating segments (continued)

Application Services

ERE®
2020 2019
k- Ja 23
HK$'000
THT
Other segment information: A2 HEH:
Net far value gains flosses) on RENELTESE/
investment properties (EB)5E - -
Net fairvalue gains/losses) on financill ~ RATEBBEAEZ
assetsat fairvalve through profitor T E’“—Fﬁ
s/ (B8) 58 (30)
Amartisation of other intangiole assets M%éﬁﬁ% 4 6,233 6024
Depreciation ne 2183 2668
Corporate and other unallocated CERAMAIENE
depreciation
Impairmentlosses recognised/(reversed) NG ABERER/
inthe consoldated statement of proft (&) Z R E S8
orloss, net* B 403 (175)
Capital expenditure™ BRfE» 2802 41
Corporate and other unallocated capitel - EREHAATRER
expendiure A%

*%

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Including impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss attributable to the application services
segment of HK$815,000 (2019: HK$824,000) and the solutions and
integration services segment of HK$73,000 (2019: HK$68,000),
respectively, and impairment losses reversed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss attributable to the application services
segment of HK$412,000 (2019: HK$999,000) and the solutions and
integration services segment of HK$68,000 (2019: HK$69,000),
respectively.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets including assets from the
acquisition of a subsidiary.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

4.

ReETHER (&)

(a)

Solutions and Integration
Services

BRARRRHRHR

2020
-8o%F
HKS$'000
Thn

547

4,963

2019
“E-0F
HK$000
i

663

gea

& (%)

Total
aB
2020

Investments
kg
2020 2019

—7—7¢ 76%7#1& :?—?

*%

HK$'000
TET

HK$000
TEn

HK$'000
TER

(941) 362 (941) 3626
(2,725) 33 (2,755) 3B
- - 6,233 6,024

28 34 2,758 3365
3,564 4908

6,322 8273

- - 408 (176)

- - 7,765 12,733

308 688

8,073 13421

BREAGABESRMERREER
REDBRERRTRREKRE D
b2 B RSB 5 Bl 48150008 7T (=
= — JL4F © 824,000 7T) K 73,0007
TL(ZZF—NF 1 680007T) * LUK
RERARIBRERTBLREEARSE
DERAERT R R ER R DI
BEEIED B A412008 T (ZF
— JLEF 999,000 JT) & 68,000 T
(ZZ—N%F : 6900087T) °

AR BERENE  BERRE
DA R o R 2B B (B 45 YRR — P Y
BARMBSNEE) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 —ZE =&+ _-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFBER (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Geographical information (b) it EEHR
(i)  Revenue from external customers (i) FREIREEFZWA
Hong Kong and other
countries/regions Mainland China Total
BEREMER/HE mER ag
2020 2019 2020 2020 2019
“ECEF “ECEf -1 ZEC8F T )\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TiEn BT T BT T TEn
Segment revenue: ABUA
Sales to external customers BETIARP 206472 207,346 49,793 68547 256,265 75893
The revenue information is based on the locations of the WABR YA FEAE BE
customers. 4E o
(i) Non-current assets (i) FRBEE
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET FABTT
Hong Kong BE 146,237 146,486
Mainland China R 122,980 129,758
269,217 276,244
The non-current asset information is based on the FRBEEENTIREEME
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments HWEY ERWRFRABLT
and deferred tax assets. AERBRERIBEE -

M EGEEERAR —T-TFFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 — - &+ _-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BEFWER (B

(CONTINUED)

(c) Information about a major customer (0 —BEXFEXFZEHR
Revenue from an external customer individually amounting to e —BINATP 2 WA BB AR
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue: EEBUIRA 0% KA E -
For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue from a HE—_Z-_ZTF+=-_A=+—8H
major customer of HK$73,171,000 (2019: HK$67,672,000) was EFE RE—RBXTEEFP2ZNK
derived from transactions with the customer reported in the AA73171,0008 7L (ZF — N F -
application services segment and the solutions and integration 67,672,000/87C) - BESEIIRE 2
services segment. FIRNERRE D EMAARATRERE

AR DR E PR 5 °

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA - HttW A R s F a8
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WADITAT -

2020 2019

—B-EF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT T

Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHHERA 255,591 273,523

Revenue from other sources REHEMRIFEHEA

Gross rental income from investment properties & ¥ % 2 & WA B EE K

and interest income from treasury investments B E1%E 2 F B U A 674 2,370

256,265 275,893

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



139

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 —ZE =&+ _-A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA -HMWARIKESFEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEFEHHBA
() Disaggregated revenue information (i) DFBEAER

Solutions and

Application Integration
Services Services Total
BRI RER
FE A BR 7% SRR R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FTHERT FTHERT
For the year ended BE-Z-_ZF+=A
31 December 2020 =Et+—BLEE
Segments -1

Types of goods or services & T = fR 75 38 5l
Sales of goods and provision  $8%& & m RIBHEF - BUT
of software, GETS and BPO EFEIREREBRIZ

services SN AR 36,644 9,736 46,380
Provision of software R R AAE R -
implementation and BMBRBATRERR

related services, IT solutions  #8 B8 R 7%
implementation and related

services 57,533 45,571 103,104
Maintenance services HEIRTS 58,746 47,361 106,107
Total revenue from contracts KRB B & XML A

with customers 152,923 102,668 255,591
Geographical markets & T %

Hong Kong and others BE R EA 107,905 98,081 205,986
Mainland China B A 45,018 4,587 49,605
Total revenue from contracts  2RE B F A LRI A

with customers 152,923 102,668 255,591
Timing of revenue R ARG

recognition
Goods and services transferred 723 — R R 828 & 2 I AR

ata pointin time 36,644 9,736 46,380
Services transferred over time 72— E& f il 0 83 5 AR 7% 116,279 92,932 209,211
Total revenue from contracts  2RE B F A LR UL A

with customers 152,923 102,668 255,591

M EGEEERAR —T-TFFR



140

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 — - &+ _-A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA -HMKARKZFEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFESHHNWA (HE)
(continued)
() Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) DHFEAER(E)

For the year ended
31 December 2019

Segments

Types of goods or services

Sales of goods and provision
of software, GETS and BPO
services

Provision of software
implementation and
related services, IT solutions
implementation and related
services

Maintenance services

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

Geographical markets
Hong Kong and others
Mainland China

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

Timing of revenue
recognition

Goods and services transferred
ata pointin time

Services transferred over time

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BE-_Z—-hE+=AH

=+—HLEFE

B E

ERRBEER
HEEmMIREET - BUS
BETFEHRGEREBHRTR
SN BR 7%

Mt B e AR R AR
BRI RERK
HH R AR

KAEEFAHMBIA

E TS
BB N EAM
HR R A
REBRFAONBEWA

BRBRARED
MR HEEE m MR

A — B ] AR RS
KEEPAKNBIEA

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

Application
Services

& FA AR 75
HK$'000
TAET

Solutions and
Integration
Services

ORI

SR ARTS
HK$'000
TET

Total

M
HK$'000
TAET

49,489 18,103 67,592
57,169 43,625 100,794
57,714 47,423 105,137
164,372 109,151 273,523
109,768 95,804 205,572
54,604 13,347 67,951
164,372 109,151 273,523
49,489 18,103 67,592
114,883 91,048 205,931
164,372 109,151 273,523




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 —ZE =&+ _-A=+—H

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA -HMWARIKESFEE (&)
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEFEHHWA (F)
(continued)

() Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) DIFBAER(E)

(ii)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised
in the current reporting period that were included in the
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

SRARERVIANEEND
L ONE

Revenue recognised that was included in contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting
period:

Sales of goods and provision of software, GETS — $H& & @ Mg H & « BT
BEFEIRBEEEBRIZ
SN AR 7S

R T & i L ABREARTS
BRI AR R RE R

and BPO services

Provision of software implementation and related
services, IT solutions implementation and

related services RS
Maintenance services e E RS

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

(ii)

Sales of goods and provision of software, GETS and BPO
services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon product/service
delivery, where payment in advance is normally required, and
the balance is generally due within 30 to 60 days from the date
of delivery.

Provision of software implementation and related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to 60 days
from the date of billing.

MR EEER AR

TRETHFABSHONAHNERE
RARERECERSBWASHE

2020
—g-%fF

—

2019
—E-hF
HK$'000
FHETT

HK$’000
TET

2,801 4,875
18,430 18,356
34,481 33,723
55,712 56954

BHREE
EBEASERBEORE AN ERB
T

HEEmRIEHEM - KTEFE
IR R E TSN AR
BHOETRER,REFEIEK
—MEEEENR MEH—KE
T BEE30ZE60BREH -

TR B B 1 R G R
BHOETRERERB R BEER -
M — /% B 5 AR E B HB R 30
60 HNEIH -

—E-TFFIR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 — - &+ _-A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5.
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)
(ii) Performance obligations (continued)

Provision of IT solutions implementation and related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days
from the date of billing. A certain percentage of payment is
retained by customers until the end of the nursing period as
the Group's entitlement to the final payment is conditional on
the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over a
certain period as stipulated in the respective contracts.

Maintenance services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment in advances are normally required
before rendering the services. Maintenance service contracts
are in general for a period of one year.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as
at 31 December are as follows:

Amounts expected to be recognised as revenue: & ZETBEIRER AU ¢
Within one year —F R
After one year il —4F

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be recognised
as revenue after one year relate to maintenance services, of
which the performance obligations are to be satisfied within
five years. All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated
to the remaining performance obligations are expected to
be recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts
disclosed above do not include variable consideration which is
constrained.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

WA - Bt AR Wz FEE ()

REEFEHNBA (B)

(i) BEHEMF(E
FEHE IR AR T R E S KGR
Vi
& %) B {1 8 12 1 AR 755 #0 B R A -
MR — B HRE R MER30R
NEH - FEFERENENETE
PHEEHENTE  AARAKEER
BERENFNENBURREF M
BRRTANE THREAEREEE
HimERE -

waERE
EABEEBERERB R REX
T T8 5 3R E — AR B 10 E AR 75 Bl 32
- HERBAN—RASH—F -

RTZA=+—BoREHRTREL
BECRBITREBORET) XS
EBRESB|HOT :

2020 2019
—ESE-8F —T—NF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHExT T
58,708 55,712
2,309 -
61,017 55,712

ENEEHRTENETHRSER
THRBHSR - FRERB/EAY
KA A& RIER R M EIRTS - T
BEEREMEAEERTROEENR
SEBRBAPBR —FAERA
WA L BENERLTEBER
PRI ERAE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 —ZE =&+ _-A=+—H

5.

143

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA - HMW AR FE (&)
(CONTINUED)
pLop ) 2019
—E-EF —T-NEF
HK$'000 HKS'000
F#ET FETT
Other income and gains, net HM WA R W= 558
Bank interest income IRITH BUA 3,400 5,245
Government subsidies* BT 47l B * 14,548 -
Value-added tax refund received g Bl BB R 935 1,242
Dividend income from listed investments at fair ~ #E A FELKEBR AR £
value through profit or loss FERBWA 480 698
Gain on disposal of items of property, plantand ~ HEWE - MERREEE 2
equipment, net W ek 558 1,999 -
Others Hth 917 690
22,279 7,875
* The subsidies were granted under the Employment Support Scheme by the * ZEMUBBBENITRRBEN ([

Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region ("HKSAR").
There were no unfulfilled conditions, relating to the subsidies.

RITRERRFD) ORRETAET - %%
T B A )

M EGEEERAR —T-TFFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 — - &+ _-A=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBIAIER
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBZBBANSEMEMER, GIA) T
HEIg
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-hF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHEx FHEIT
Cost of inventories sold BEHEGFEKA 43,945 55,946
Cost of services provided ERHEARTE KA 67,410 64,570
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BERBEITE
equipment* 13 1,437 1,388
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEEZNE 15(a) 4,885 6,385
Amortisation of other intangible assets** Efh & iy 17 6,233 6,024
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant ~ HEWE  BE M REEE
and equipment, net 2 W R (1,999) -
Lease payments not included in the TEFFEREAEL
measurement of lease liabilities HERK 15(c) 301 -
Auditor's remuneration Al 1,320 1,320
Employee benefit expense (excluding EEEMNFEZ (TBE
directors’' remuneration — note 8)* E=HM-RKiTEs)
Wages, salaries, allowances and I8 e EME
other benefits H 18 F) 133,703 131,655
Equity-settled share-based payment [i% e 45 E LARR 19
expense SRAX 1,107 1,410
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKABFIFT B K
(defined contribution schemes) (EREMHRETED 4,306 6,799
Less: Amount capitalised in other intangible  J& @ RMEMhE & E
assets =N e x| (4,598) (8,997)
134,518 130,867

Impairment of financial and contract assets, ~ B 7% k& &8 ERE 58 ¢

net:
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of FEUWE R FURE,”
trade receivables, net (B EIRE) F5E 19 408 (108)
Reversal of impairment of contract assets, BRE&NEERBTE
net 21 - (68)
Direct operating expenses (including RS 2 IREME
repairs and maintenance) arising from BEELLERX (B
rental-earning investment properties Wi RHEE) 54 74
Fair value losses/(gains), net: RTEFBE, (W) F5E -
Financial assets at fair value through profit BEATELERARY
or loss IS EE 2,755 (323)
Investment properties wEYHE 14 941 (3,626)
Interest income from treasury investments  EEFEI%E 2 F B WA (41) (79)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS R AR B AL ()

31 DECEMBER 2020 —ZE =&+ _-A=+—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED)

* Depreciation of property, plant and equipment for the year of HK$122,000
(2019: HK$123,000) is included in “Cost of sales and services” on the face of

the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

x* Amortisation of other intangible assets for the year of HK$6,233,000

6. FRBiATRF ()

* REFERDE - BEREZE 298122000
BT (ZZ— NLF 11230008 7T) AALRA
BRRZEERBRBERAIA -

** REE N E A A S E# 8H 6,233,000 87T (=
T — L4 60240008 7T) M ARG BImE

(2019: HK$6,024,000) is included in "Other expenses” on the face of the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

products of HK$19,241,000 (2019: HK$17,860,000).

# Inclusive of an amount of HK$67,410,000 (2019: HK$64,570,000) classified

under “Cost of services provided”above.

7. FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense arising from discounted lease liabilities of an amount
of HK$1,155,000 (2019: HK$1,102,000) has been recognised and
classified under finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss for the year ended 31 December 2020.

8. DIRECTORS'REMUNERATION

Directors' remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), () and (f) of

Inclusive of research and development cost for application software

ZIEMFES A -

5 BREAHEARMERFREMEKAE

19,241,000 7t (ZZF — JLF : 17,860,000 78

JT) e

’ BREIEA LMD RERBKA] 2 8

67,410,00078 7t (= Z — JL & : 64,570,000 7

JT) e

7. BBEHA

BRIRFEAEEE 2 F B FX 1,155000%
T (ZZ—AF 1 1,102000/87T) EREZE
CECEFE+-_A=t+—RIEEZEA

BREANBRXSBRMBER -

8. EEFN
ERNEEHHRESS

RERXSMAERN
AESF EMARN(LERRA]) - FERF

fRBIZE383(1)) ~ B) ~ (O ROEREER

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Hong Kong A (BBEESMEER) KOS 25 HEN
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefit of Directors) T

Regulation, is as follows:

Fees:
Executive directors
Independent non-executive directors (“INEDs")

Other emoluments:
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Bonuses*
Equity-settled share-based payment expense*
Retirement benefit scheme contributions
(defined contribution schemes)

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F#& T
e
WITES - -
BYIEWITES
([BIERITEE]) 780 780
780 780
Hab e
e EMEREDANGS 5,151 6,498
TEAT™ 1,097 2,549
At s E AR SR S 397 700
BRIREFIFTEI 5K
(EREMHKETED) 72 69
6,717 9,816
7,497 10,596

MR EEER AR

—E-TFFIR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 — - &+ _-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

* Certain directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments which are
determined on a discretionary basis.

! In prior years, certain directors were awarded restricted shares of the
Company, subject to certain vesting conditions, in respect of their services
to the Group, under the restricted share award scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.
The fair value of such restricted shares, which has been recognised in the
statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above directors’remuneration disclosures.

(a) INEDs

The fees paid to INEDs during the year were as follows:

8.

EEHM (&)

(a)

ARBETEEARENMBEE 2 LA
5K e

POBEFE  RBEARFZH RSB
BiE RETHBEGEHZART ETE
FERBRENAEEFREEREEXAR
AAERGIRD  BRE - SHBERRUB
BERME20 - ZEERBMD ZAFED
RELAMET YCRBEBRANERS
REER - M ARNFEABRERZ I
CEEREXEEHMBER -

BYFITES
TR XNTFTRERILFATEFTZH
T

INEDs: BUFMITES
Ha Shu Tong ERE
Lee Kwok On, Matthew FHE
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE

Save as disclosed above, there were no other emoluments
payable to the INEDs during the current and prior years.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

2020 2019
—EB-FF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT
240 240

240 240

300 300

780 780

BREXBEEN RAFERBE
FEIEEGBENTEIIFNTE
FZME -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 —ZE =&+ _-A=+—H

8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors
The fees and other emoluments paid to executive directors

during the year were as follows:

Salaries,
allowances and
benefits in kind

EEHM (&)

(b)

Bonuses

HITES
FR EINTHTES RS RE
e T :

Equity-settled Retirement
share-based benefit
payment scheme Total

expense  contributions remuneration

§é 2R REEEN BB
BYHE AL ROEXAEX HE 5 Wemn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TEL Thx THT TER
2020 It i 22
Executive directors: BIES:
Ng Cheung Shing REE 2,751 537 15 18 3,421
Leung King San, Sunny 28 360 - - 18 378
Cheung WaiLam RER 360 - 162 18 540
Ng Kok Keung REH 1,680 560 120 18 2,378
5,151 1,097 397 7 6,717
2019 “B-NF
Executive directors: BES:
Ng Cheung Shing REH 2751 1128 199 18 409
Leung King San, Sunny 228 360 - - 18 378
Cheung Wai Lam RER 1,707 861 284 15 2867
Ng Kwok Keung RE® 1,680 560 217 18 2475
6498 2,549 700 69 9816

The directors’emoluments paid to Mr. Ng Cheung Shing (“Mr.
Ng”) included a housing allowance of HK$2,471,000 (2019:
HK$2,471,000) which was remunerated by way of rental
reimbursement. The rentals of the related property were paid
directly by Mr. Ng to the landlord, which is a company jointly
controlled by Mr. Ng and one of his family members.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the current and prior
years.

TRHFREBAE(TREE)ZE
=S BIEAE2471,0087T (ZF
— N 1247100078 7T) 2 F 528, -
LEe#EEZ AN -B@AME
JHEHAREEEESINTEE
MZEFARARLEREES—
ARG B ERZES 2 AF] -

RAFENMEBEFE EFLEW
HHFR B REWEEIH M2 25 -

M EGEEERAR —T-TFFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 _E_ZF+_A=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. TEERGHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2019: FN AL EaTHEEREMA
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 —NF =R)EZ REZHFMFER
to the financial statements. Details of the remuneration for the year of R IEHREMES - HBp =R (ZF—NF:
the remaining three (2019: two) non-director highest paid employees 2 ) B = 5 B #ﬁ EREB Z2F AT
for the year are as follows: BT :

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

2020 2019

—E-BF — N

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET T T

Salaries and allowances & MOEBRL 4,688 3,360

Equity-settled share-based payment expense IR HE 45 E AR (9 2 B S 389 318

Bonuses TEAL 689 630
Retirement benefit scheme contributions ROKEF T B3R

(defined contribution schemes) (CEREHFRETE)) 54 36

5,820 4344

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose N FUTER z &m S HEESREE

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

ZANEIT

Number of employees

BEAH

2020

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

In the prior year, restricted shares of the Company, subject to certain
vesting conditions, were awarded to one non-director highest paid
employee in respect of his services to the Group, under the restricted
share award scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 29 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
restricted shares, which has been recognised in the statement of
profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date
of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above non-director highest paid
employee’s remuneration disclosures.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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1,500,001 7% 7T & 2,000,000 7% 7T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 —ZE =&+ _-A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX 10. FifEH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019: BBFEBRINBEBERNFENREBEEY
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong HETERBUE AT E165% (ZF— NLF -
during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is 16.5%) 1E L B - AL E — KB R A
a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. BABTERETMAH N EE - %M B
The first HK$2,000,000 (2019: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of DA E %E2,0000008 7T (ZF—LF :
this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2019: 8.25%) and the remaining 2,000,000 7T) FE& 3R B s F) 16 12 8.25% (=
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%). Taxes on profits T—NLF 1 825%) BIF - i H R ERBE
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax FAEZ165% (ZF —NF 1 16.5%) BFi o
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates. E fth 30 [ JE R A0 M) 2 IR THAR IR AR £
KEEBMERR RUEEERERRE
TE
2020 2019
—BoFF —E-NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Current - Hong Kong BVER— &%
Charge for the year FREZH 2,485 3,660
Overprovision in prior years TFEEZIREE (1,669) (2,344)
Current - Elsewhere B ER — H b 3[R
Charge for the year FRZM 482 482
Underprovision in prior years TEEVIREE 515 -
Deferred (note 26) EIE (MI5E26) (87) 2,510
Total tax charge for the year FARB HEER 1,726 4,308

M EGEEERAR —T-TFFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 — - &+ _-A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 10. Fri8 % (&)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory profits tax rate for Hong Kong in which the Company

and the majority of its subsidiaries operate/are domiciled to the tax
charge at the effective tax rate is as follows:

ERANEARBREKRE D HERFLE
M EE EEFEREAEMSR
BADG A 2 MBS - BIRERRERFE
ZHBS RN

2020 2019
—BoEF —F—NF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEx T
Profit before tax R 854 A 5 7 61,640 60,201
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of 16.5% 1R & B A E L K 16.5%
(2019: 16.5%) ZE-NF 165%)FEZ
IR 10,171 9,933
Effect of withholding tax of 5% on the RAEEFEMMNB AR
distributable profits of the Group’s Al R H 2 5% FEE 2
PRC subsidiaries o 148 411
Lower tax rates for overseas subsidiaries YEINT B A B BRE R (61) (269)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of ThiEE EAR 2 BNEAR 1A
previous periods YEH T (1,154) (2,344)
Income not subject to tax BAERBUA (3,992) (1,708)
Expenses not deductible for tax R Ea 934 686
Effect of additional tax deduction enacted by tax 7% 2B P28/ BE SN TB R, 2 A9
authority TE (4,706) (2,838)
Tax losses not recognised RIERTIEE R 254 119
Others HAh 132 318
Tax charge at the Group’s effective tax rate AEEREREWEFEZ
HIE 2 H 1,726 4,308

Under the income tax laws of the PRC, enterprises are subject to
corporate income tax ("CIT") generally at a rate of 25% (2019: 25%).
In the current and prior years, certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
operating in specific development zones of the PRC were granted
preferential CIT rates of 10% to 15% by the relevant tax authorities.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 DECEMBER 2020 —ZE =&+ _-A=+—H

11. DIVIDENDS

Interim — HK$0.05 (2019: HK$0.09) per ordinary

Less: Dividend for shares held under the Company’s
restricted share award scheme

Proposed final — HK$0.12 (2019: HK$0.08) per
ordinary share
Less: Propose dividend for shares held under the
Company’s restricted share award scheme

The proposed final dividend for the year will be payable in cash
and is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

151

11. RE

2020 2019
= = —F-NF

HK$'000
TAT

HK$’000
TET

FEARR B — B R E AR 0.058 7T

share —E—NF 1 00987T)

A IRIBARR BB R A 2
FTEIRE R ATRIRE

BRKREB-SREBRI2ET
(ZZE—N%F : 0088 IT)
B IR AR BB R IR R
FTEIRE RS
FRIRE

12,474 22,454
(102) (213)
12,372 22,241
29,939 19,959
(237) (199)
29,702 19,760
42,074 42,001

EEEZRRRPREHUREXN &
ARARBBERNEERRBFAGHE
% JIEEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 — - &+ _-A=+—H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. BAEIEBRRRELERE
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT F

EREABEFSENRESAFEER
BRHREMFRNRZMNRFAEETE B
DNRE Y9 8047202 5420% (Z B — H 5 -
246947310 5t & - WL BIBR ARG ER
BB B2 B AT 8178 N AT IS AR DB AR o

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
247,292,542 (2019: 246,947,310) in issue during the year, as adjusted
to exclude the shares held under the restricted share award scheme
of the Company.

BRETRNSBEIRES AR EEBBR
REGRFNRNE -AEARZER
BEFHBR B EERERRNMAZ
FROETEBRHAE  URBRRAE
REBEARBE N Z A LEEEREGRS
B BARIERER - ARTCREESR
BT EBRNEFOEGETHE -

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued
at no consideration on the deemed vesting of all dilutive restricted
shares of the Company awarded under the restricted share award
scheme of the Company.

AEEBREAREERNARBENT

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

Earnings

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on

profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.

Shares

AR
SREAREERF DIZEG AR LBBRR
RIEMHEMFHE -

&)

Number of shares

R4 E

2020 2019
—EB-FH —TNF

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year used in the basic earnings

AAEERERBNMAFAD
BT BN

per share calculation 247,292,542 246,947,310
Effect of dilution — weighted average number of HErE - TmRINETr e
ordinary shares:
Restricted shares awarded under the Company's RIE AR 7B PR IR ) 226
restricted share award scheme FHEIRH 2 BREIRG 1,269,160 1,609,589
248,561,702 248,556,899
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS R AR B AL ()

31 DECEMBER 2020 — £ -ZF+_-A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2020

At 1 January 2020:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2020, net of
accumulated depreciation

Additions

Acquisition of a subsidiary
(note 31)

Disposals

Depreciation provided during
the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2020, net of
accumulated depreciation

At 31 December 2020:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

13. % BERRHE

Ownership
interestsin Furniture,
properties held Computer fixtures
for own use Leasehold equipment and other Motor
and buildings improvements  and software equipment vehicles Total
BRN¥ERE HEME ERRBR R EER
ERGRETF % g Hitz AE Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FHET THR THET THET
“B-RFT=A
=t+-H
RZE-TF—f—H:
AR 1,213 6,781 5,776 2,312 647 16,729
DirE (551) (6,555) (3,801) (1,992) (647) (13,546)
EEFE 662 226 1,975 320 - 3,183
—A—8" 1k
ZENE 662 226 1,975 320 - 3,183
NE - - 701 76 - 777
YE—-EREAR
GEED) - - 105 1 - 106
HE (633) - (19) (4) - (656)
FRINERE
(29) (123) (1,154) (131) - (1,437)
EHAE - 10 4) 8 - 14
RZZZTE+ZA
=t+—8 HKREH
e - 113 1,604 270 - 1,987
RZEZZE+ZA
=t+—-A:
A - 6,848 7,076 2,431 647 17,002
ZitiE - (6,735) (5472) (2,161) (647) (15,015)
REFE - 113 1,604 270 - 1,987

Mg R SR E AR QA

—E-TFEFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 — - &+ _-A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BERKE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Ownership
EEY Fumiture,
properties held Computer fixtures
for own use Leasehold equipment and other Motor
and buildings  improvements and software equipment vehicles
BRMEME HEME BRRER &AL EER
BEGRET =3 LN HitRE "E
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET TAT TAT TET
31 December 2019 “E-h%+ZA
=t-H
At 1 January 2019; RZE-NE-R—H:
Cost XA 1213 6,308 5873 2197 647 16,738
Accumulated depreciation 2EtE (518) (6,466) (4,246) (1879) (509) (13618)
Net carrying amount EmFAE 695 34 1627 318 138 3120

At 1 January 2019, net of RZZ-NE

accumulated depreciation —A—B &k
REE 695 342 1627 318 138 3120
Additions NE - 15 1,231 214 - 1,460
Depreciation provided during AT E RS
the year (33) (122) (8%4) (1 (138) (1,388)
Fxchange realignment AR - 9 1 (1) - 9
At31 December 2019, netof ~ RZZE—AF+=A
accumulated depreciation =+—8 NKE
e 662 226 1975 320 - 3183
At 31 December 2019; RZZE-NE+ZA
=t+-H:
Cost A 1213 6,781 5776 2312 647 16,729
Accumulated depreciation Rt E (551) (6,555) (3.801) (1,992) (647) (13,546)
Net carrying amount REFE 662 226 1,975 320 - 3183
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 —Z_Z4+_A=+—H

4. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYHE
2020 2019
—E-—BF —T—hE
HK$’000 HKS'000
T FHIT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RAZEKHE 70,091 75,661
Disposal ang== (2,860) (9,196)

Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments A F{ERE 7 Wz~ (EE)
R 6 (941) 3,626

Carrying amount at 31 December W+—A=+—HZEAEE 66,290 70,091
The Group's investment properties consist of one (2019: two) REBZREMERE—B(ZE—N
commercial property in Mainland China and one (2019: one) FWMB)MRPEA 2 EENER—
industrial property in Hong Kong. The directors of the Company B(ZE—NF: —B)NURBEEZTEY
have determined that the investment properties consist of two X - AAREFCRBESEMEZLMLE
classes of asset, i.e, commercial and industrial, based on the nature, BHEERBETREMEAMEER (B
characteristics and risks of each property. The Group's investment FERIF¥)EE- R_ZE_TF+_A
properties were revalued on 31 December 2020 based on valuations =t—H AEEBZEREMERBUEREE
performed by Landscope Surveyors Limited, independent EERGEMESAERMITAR A R#TT
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$66,290,000. Each year, the 2 & 18 &E 1l 566,290,000 78 JT o 7~ 52 B Bf
Group's Chief Financial Officer decides, after proper approval, to TBHEHRTE  REUSEBHER  BFZ
appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the external EINE(EERT B BN EBYE 2 IMNEBEE o
valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include market ESERIEMSENG B2 BUYMK
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional MR E K o RE BB A EG
standards are maintained. The Group’s Chief Financial Officer has BEMEFRPEHARFEVBREFRNITZ
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and HEMRAZEERE REEERETH
valuation results twice a year when the valuation is performed for L
interim and annual financial reporting.
The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating KREMF¥ERBEEHELEHETE =7 "
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 15 to E—SHEHERN I BmERMTE 5
the financial statements.
At 31 December 2020, one of the Group's investment properties RZZEZZEF+-RA=+—H8 AEE\
situated in Hong Kong with a carrying value of approximately MRE 2 A — I8 R HE {8 4 /63,000,000
HK$63,000,000 (2019: HK$64,200,000) was pledged to secure general B2 EWME (ZF — N4 : 64,200,000
banking facilities granted to the Group. BT ERIEETAEE 2 —RIEITH

BVEER -

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included REBIGEMEZ#E— SFHBEHNE 202
on page 202. B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 —Z —Z&+_-A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REYZE (E)

Fair value hierarchy NEESREE
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRERFEBREME L ATEAES
the Group's investment properties: WBRFE

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020 using

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

&R T i BEAAERE BAFUBRE

#E 0 ARE WA
(E18) (%28) (%38) oy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET TET THET THERT

Recurring fair value REERTESE
measurement for:

Commercial property [EEX/ES - - 3,290 3,290
Industrial property TEME - - 63,000 63,000
- - 66,290 66,290

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2019 using

RIB-NFTZA=+—HZRAFERAUTRIENE

Quoted prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

AT
WwE
(E18)
HK$'000
FET

Recurring fair value KEUATENE:

Significant
observable
inputs
(EYEP)
ERAHE
AR
(%2/E)

HK$'000

TAT

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(EYEE))
BEATAHE
B ABUR
(£3/8)
HKS$'000
FET

85t
HK$'000
TR

measurement for:

Commercial properties [EEL/ES - - 5,891 5,891

Industrial property TEME - - 64,200 64,200
- - 70,091 70,091

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2019: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 —Z_Z4+_A=+—H

4. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy:

14. REY = ()

D ES WM ()
BEAANTESRREAIEODFEF

EYE:

Industrial

Property
TEME
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
THTT T

Commercial
Properties

[ZE /S

Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 S —NWF—A—BZKEE 11,461 64,200
Disposal e (9,196) -
Net gain from a fair value adjustment REZFERZ A

recognised in profit or loss Wz 558 3,626 -
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 and ANZT-hF+ZA=+—HK

1 January 2020 —E-EF-H—HZEHRE 5,891 64,200
Disposal & (2,860) -
Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments RiB s  #ER

recognised in profit or loss Wz, (B518) F58 259 (1,200)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 R-E-_TF+-_A=+—HB2

BRmEE 3,290 63,000

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key
inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

TERR/UREME/RERAZBETER
TEHABEMRE

Fair value Significant
hierarchy Valuation technique unobservable inputs
AVEER HERE EXTAERE
2E BAYE
Commercial property Level 3 Market comparable method Prevailing price per square foot RMB1,301 to RMB1,231 to
BEME FE3E M5 BUE BFHRZBITER RMB1,765 RMB1,858
ARB1301TE ARB1I231TE
AR®1765T  ARK1858TT
Industrial property Level 3 Market comparable method Prevailing price per square foot HK$9,863 to HK$10,033 to
TEYE F3E M5 BUE BFHRZBITER HK$13,090 HK$13930
9,863 B LE 10033/BLE
13,0907 7T 13930/ 7T

Under the market comparable method (or market comparable
approach), a property’s fair value is estimated based on comparable
transactions. The market comparable approach is based on the
principle of substitution under which a potential buyer will not pay
more for the property than it will cost to buy a comparable substitute
property. The unit of comparison applied by the Group is the price
per square foot.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated market price per
square foot in insolation would result in a significant increase/
decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.

RIBTIS A LLBOR (M5 A LB T §) -
MERFETIATLERRZ 5 RBEEMEE
5 Al LL 7 ST AR R RIS AR - Bt -
BEERH T EMENRBEZME
ZALBERMERSZ 28 - NEEK
Rz BREMREFITRZER -

BUME  BFHFREFHEKREL M
WA BEBEREWMENTAEKREEMS
A o

M EGEEERAR —T-TFFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 _E_ZF+_A=+—H

15. &
AEEEAAEA

15. LEASES

The Group as a lessee
The Group has lease contracts for various properties used in its PiNg= 3 l%ﬁﬁf\%@qﬂﬁﬁﬁ HNEEBEYENTE
operations. Leases of properties generally have lease terms between B4 - MERE—ROBEREZ=F -

1 to 3 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and —Mms  ARE I%EZT’UJ:H—;TH BEEEEZR
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. R T AREEAIINGATL

(@) Right-of-use assets (@ HAREE
The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the FAAEEFAEEENREER
movements during the year are as follows: FHNN

Properties

LUE
2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000
FER THT

Asat 1 January Rn—H—H 8,486 15,715
Additions NE 3,701 1,225
Remeasurement on lease modifications HESB 2EHTE (2,303) (1,510)
Depreciation charge e (4,885) (6,885)
Exchange realignment ME H, 38 B (16) (59)
As at 31 December Rt+-_A=+—H 4,983 8486
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEHEF
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements FRNHECENERELESHOT -

during the year are as follows:

2020 2019
—EB-EF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEKmAE 9,674 15,715
New leases s 3,701 1,225
Remeasurement on lease modifications HERE L ENTE (2,303) (1,510)
Accretion of interest recognised during the year  FRIERF| BIE K 1,155 1,102
Payments (RN (5,173) (6,799)
Exchange realignment b H S (16) (59)
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+ZA=+—HZEKEE 7,038 9,674
Analysed into: DT
Current portion mENE > 4,614 5,886
Non-current portion EmEN LS 2,424 3,788
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 37 HEABENNNHS T HERTBHREK
to the financial statements. MfzE37 °
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15. LEASES (CONTINUED) 15. HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) KEBEEREABEA (HE)
() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases () FRAEEMNERBERNSEAT

are as follows:

2020 2019

gt 3 —E-AF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FTET FHAIT

Interest on lease liabilities HEBBZFE 1,155 1,102

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEEZITE 4,885 6,385

Expense relating to short-term leases EHEHEE s AT 301 -

Total amount recognised in profit or loss RERERNESE 6,341 7,987

The Group as a lessor AEBEREBEA

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting of REBBBLEEHERH  BEEEMSE
one (2019: two) commercial property in the PRC and one (2019: (MFzE14) A - BRARFPEN—E (=
one) industrial property in Hong Kong under operating lease T-NF - WME) BRAMERMREER
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants —H(ZE-AF: —E)IEZRAYWE-M
to pay security deposits. Rental income recognised by the Group ENBRR—REFLBEFLPZMERIZSE - K
during the year was HK$633,000 (2019: HK$2,290,000), details of SERFARERHNMES A B633000%
which are included in note 5 to the financial statements. T (ZZ— 1% 2290008 7m) © BRI

BN REMES -

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease payments RFERHEER  AEBREHEERP
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable R 2 AR HUEM A S TH SRR KB FE
operating leases with its tenants are as follows: Wz KRB HERERNKAT :
2020 2019
—B-EF —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAIT
Within one year —FR 1,858 35
After one year but within two years —FRERMEA 1,222 -
3,080 35
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B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 _E_ZF+_A=+—H

16. GOODWILL 16. B&
HK$'000
T
31 December 2019 _ﬁ—j'bﬂi‘l'_ﬁz‘l'—ﬁ
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2019 and RZE-—NWF-—A—BERZZ-NF
31 December 2019 +_H:+—E|W$&EEWE 134,485
HK$’000
FET
31 December 2020 —E-ZEF+=-RA=+—H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2020 RZEZEF—A—HXARETE 134,485
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 31) W iE—RIM B AR (F5E31) 516
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2020 RZBZZF+_A=+—HEX
KREE 135,001
As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial statements, the Group W SRR M 24 AEE LD
applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted goodwill KAEAVBREENEIR 2BEEE
in respect of business combinations which occurred prior to 2001 to X BHFR B -FRIMELEBBER
remain eliminated against consolidated reserves. Gtz BRERRA BN -
The amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated reserves, arising RIEE—FRMASHTEBERE0NRN
from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 ATEEM B A RITE £ WARE R iR
in 2001, was HK$7,227,000 as at 31 December 2019 and 2020. ZEEER R_FT-NFR-_FT_FTF

+=—A=+—H%722700087T °

Impairment testing of goodwill 72 2 R (BRI = \ .

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the E‘#E/)WE BFEME  BBEFEHRE LS

following cash-generating units for impairment testing: BESREZETIREEESBMN :
Application services cash-generating unit; and . FERRBREEESEN &
Solutions and Integration services cash-generating unit. . AT RREKRBEIRGEEEL -

The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the cash- NEEEREELEEN CEREAEBENT

generating units are as follows:

Application Solutions and

Services Integration Services Total

&R RR 3% BRERRERRS X

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
—-\'—-\'ﬁ = —7—7$ :%Eijli —7—7$
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH% = TAn TR TAR TR TAR
Cartying amount of goodwill HEEHE 132,978 132462 2,023 2023 135,001 134485
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B aE (AR
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16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Application services cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the application services cash-generating
unit has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation using
cash flow projections approved by management covering a five-year
period. A zero (2019: zero) growth rate is used to extrapolate the cash
flows of the cash-generating unit beyond the five-year period. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 12% (2019: 16%).
The cash flow projections are determined by management based
on past performance of the cash generating unit and management’s

expectations for market development.

Solutions and integration services cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the solutions and integration services
cash-generating unit has been determined based on a value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projections approved by management
covering a five-year period. A zero (2019: zero) growth rate is used
to extrapolate the cash flows of the cash-generating unit beyond
the five-year period. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 12% (2019: 16%). The cash flow projections are
determined based on past performance of the cash generating unit

and management’s expectations for market development.

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the
application services and the solutions and integration services cash-
generating units for 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019. The
following describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of

goodwill:

Budgeted/forecasted revenue

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted/
forecasted revenue is the revenue achieved in the year immediately
before the budget/forecast year, adjusted for management's

expected change in market demand and customer base.

Budgeted/forecasted gross margins

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted/
forecasted gross margins is the average gross margins achieved in
the year immediately before the budget/forecast year, increased
for any expected efficiency improvements and expected market

developments.

Discount rates

The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks

relating to the relevant cash-generating units.

16. BHE (&)

7 Ol (B A (AR

ERBRBREELEN

ERRGHEEELEUZAIROSHEDR
BEMEEMEE  ZEREERNMAE
BEMEZAFRHESRETRN - HE
ReELENBEAFNRERER &
ANEEEAT(ZE-NF T - HE
MEFRRFAFRER12%(ZF—NF:
16%) - HEREBRAHEEEET - HIK
BERARSELBN ZBERE  UKEHE
BHmsER A -

BARLTRRERBBREEELEN
FRTERERRGREELEM 2K
PEBEORBEEREEETE  ZEREE
AFMBEEEHRECIFHRERER
Ao HERSEABUBLAFNEREESR
ER - ERANERXA/T(ZT—NF:
T) RERETERFAEAITIRER12% (=
T—NF16%) - RERERANHEIEE
BEE  HEEBEARESELEM BERR
UREBBHMSER AL -

RZFZZFTZA=FT—HAR=F A
FH-A=+—8  stEEARE LR
RIRRERBRIBZREEEEM 2
BENOERAZE TRHRK - EREHAR
EREBFARTHBERENSMKEZS
JHEZEERBLLT

EE YA
BEFARAZ BES RIS EREES
R A2 FENE R WA -
YHERRERTSERRE LR &
BB -

FRE A EFE

BE /TAENE 2 BENBERERS
SEAFER 2 FEREEDR 2 FHER
RETF > UHFEERR N EREEM S %
FRAFHIE I -

o
6 B T L AR BT K - I T
ERBIEBES AL B RS -

MERSEEREGRAR —ZBTFFR
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

7. HtwEREE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Deferred
development Customer
costs*  relationships Software Total
I FE B 8% R A EFBF g mE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTHET FTHET THET
31 December 2020 “E-FH+ZH
=+-H
At 1 January 2020; N_ZE_ZEF—H—H:
Cost B 7R 39,494 14,767 43,681 97,942
Accumulated amortisation and Rt NORE
impairment (13,026) (7,445) (17,472) (37,943)
Net carrying amount REFE 26,468 7,322 26,209 59,999
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of RZZE-ZTF—-—H—HZ
accumulated amortisation B - HIBR BETE#E S
and impairment BB 26,468 7,322 26,209 59,999
Additions NE 4,843 - - 4,843
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE— R B AR
(note 31) (F$7E31) - - 2,347 2,347
Amortisation provided during REFHHRE
the year - (1,656) (4,577) (6,233)
At 31 Decernber 2020 RZZE-ZTF+_-A
=+—H 31,311 5,666 23,979 60,956
At 31 December 2020; RZEZEF+=A
=+—HB:
Cost B 44,337 14,767 46,028 105,132
Accumulated amortisation and SETEHEIRE
impairment (13,026) (9,101) (22,049) (44,176)
Net carrying amount REHE 31,311 5,666 23,979 60,956

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 —ZE =&+ _-A=+—H

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2019

At 1 January 2019:

—E-hE+=A
=+—-H

R-F-NE—HA—H:

17. Htb B EE (&)

Deferred
development
costs*®

AEE R B A
HK$'000
AT

Customer
relationships

EPR%
HK$'000
AT

Software
/s
HK$'000
THET

Total
ok
HKS$'000
THT

Cost 7R 27,533 14,767 43,681 85,981
Accumulated amortisation and SR ERRE
impairment (13,026) (5,789) (13,104) (31,919
Net carrying amount REFE 14,507 8978 30,577 54,062
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of RZZE-NFE—-A—-HZ
accumulated amortisation and BCAS - PR 2EHEESE K
impairment E 14,507 8978 30,577 54,062
Additions NE 11,961 - - 11,961
Amortisation provided during REFHHEE
the year - (1,656) (4,368) (6,024)
At 31 Decernber 2019 RZZ—NF+=R
=+—H 26,468 7322 26,209 59,999
At 31 December 2019 and RZZ—NEF
at 1 January 2020: +tZHA=Ft—H8k
RZZEZZF—-A—H
Cost BN 39,494 14,767 43,681 97,942
Accumulated amortisation and RETEE ORE
impairment (13,026) (7,445) (17/472) (37,943)
Net carrying amount RESHE 26,468 7322 26,209 59,999
* During the year, additions of deferred development costs of HK$4,843,000 * FR - IEER IR AR E 48430005 7T (=
(2019: HK$11,961,000) were developed internally. T—NF £ 11,961,000/ 70) Ty A EPBAEE o
18. INVENTORIES 18. F&

2020
—g-%%

— i —

HK$’000
TR

Work in progress

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
F&T

597

MR EEER AR

—E-TFFIR
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B 35 R R M e (7R

31 DECEMBER 2020 _E_ZF+_A=+—H

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Impairment

The Group’s trading terms with its customers vary from contract to
contract or depending on the specific arrangements with individual
customers, and may include cash on delivery, advance payment and

19. EWE Z IR

2020 2019
HK$ ooo HK$'000

FExT T T

U E 5 BR 48,359 53,554
E (3,861) (3,395)
44,498 50,159

REBE 2 X 516N A FEE R & £ 3R T .
AR =P 25 plLgEmE - Al e e E 2
R FBANREREE - MZEURER

on credit. For those customers who trade on credit, the overall credit
period is generally within 60 days, except for certain projects with
longer implementation schedules or for major or specific customers,
where the period may be extended. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding trade receivables and overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group

ETR %Z%ﬁﬁ’ﬁm EREEH—R
TZR6e0X - HEMETEEEILHRE
IRETEXREE,  AEREEH - K
SE-EBRREFEREE ZERKE SR
o BAREEEINE REMBMSRLR -
ARE B ML I F RS 5 R ERTE

does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,

is as follows:

Within 1 month
1to 3 months
4 to 6 months
7to 12 months

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

At beginning of year

Impairment/(reversal of impairment) losses, net
(note 6)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 31)

Exchange realignment

At end of year

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Eﬁﬁﬁ&'ﬂﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁ’r&%ﬁﬂ&%ﬁ%ﬂ &
WE Z BRI A

RBEEHRGEER  BREZFERFRRER
BE R B R AR A 2 R T T

zozo 2019
—E-EF ZT—NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

—EAR 34,828 25,045
—Z==1@A 6,163 15,065
Mz~ {EA 2,548 7,976
+t=Z=+—-{@A 959 1173
44,498 50,159

R E BN RERBRREZSNT

2020
—E-EHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FET

REH 3,395 3,532
BB, (BERIRE) BEBFE

(Mf5E6) 408 (108)

Yo Bg — BB A R) (BEE31) 3 -

P& 5 38 & 55 29)

REK 3,861 3,395

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19. BRE SR (&)
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using REMmE B HBRABEERETREDT -
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision LFFEEBEEESE - %ﬁz—)—ﬁ%ﬁ’\@ﬁﬁ
rates are based on days past due. The calculation reflects the AHEE - et ERM AT IR
probability-weighted outcome and reasonable and supportable REE A ENEEATEE EILJ?UK
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, TR AR RAS B G TERIR S IR R A] SEE K o

current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the TRET AL E B E R PR E A R U
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: ZIERFNEERRER

Past due

Credit-
impaired Less than Over
receivables Current 1 month 3 months
EERE
FE WA B & —@AR SEANL
At 31 December 2020 R-ZEZE§+4Z
BA=+-H
Expected credit loss rate EHEEBEE 100% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 11.26% 7.98%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BRI (E (T8 7T) 3,585 34,891 5,029 2,403 2,451 48,359
Expected credit losses (HK$'000)  FBEAZ B 618
(F%E1) 3,585 - - - 276 3,861
Past due
181
Credit-
impaired Less than Tto3 QOver
receivables Current T month months 3 months
EERE
FEURIR BN E —EAR “EARE
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NE+=
A=t+-H
Expected credit loss rate %E ,H}M EREX 100% 0.10% 030% 030% 11.44% 6.34%
Gross carrying amount (HKS'000)  BREA2(E (T L) 3,024 27,597 10,196 11,846 691 53,554
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 38 Hﬂ 1; EEA
(F&T) 3224 27 30 35 79 3395

B ZSEEFR A —E-TFFIR
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

20. ENRE  RERHEMEW

RECEIVABLES MIE
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHT T T
Prepayments TERTRIE 15,710 12,245
Deposits and other receivables e RE M ERGIE 4,332 4312
20,042 16,557
Portion classified as current assets DEARHEEIS (19,414) (14,745)
Portion classified as non-current assets DERIERBEES D 628 1,812

The financial assets included in the above balances mainly relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and past
due amounts. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the loss allowance
was assessed by management to be minimal.

21. CONTRACT ASSETS

Contract assets arising from: BREBERAUTEIE:
Sales of goods and provision of software,  $56 & @ & IREEUF -
GETS and BPO services BRETFE SRS
N EEBRZINH
PR 7%

RS ER &AM
AR%5 - BB

Provision of software implementation
and related services, IT solutions

implementation and related services RTTERE KRR
PR 7%
Maintenance services HEIRTE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

31 December

+=A=+-8 t=A=tF

BIER RN 2 B 158 E + B i A
WEE R LR 2 GBI e EEAR -
RZBEZEFRZF-NF+ZA=1+—
A EEEFHEEBEREEBAGE -

21. BHEE

31 December 1 January
2020 2019 2019
—E-EF —E-NF —E-NF
—H—H
HK$'000
THT

HK$000
TRERT

HK$'000
TAT

3,060 3,130 898
16,448 16,645 18,097
740 451 1,632
20,248 20,226 20,627
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27. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Contract assets are mainly recognised for revenue earned from
the provision of software implementation and related services, IT
solutions implementation and related services as the receipt of
consideration is based on the billing process. Included in contract
assets for provision of software implementation and related services,
IT solutions implementation and related services are unbilled
amounts of revenue. Upon completion of the billing of the revenue
from contract customers, the amounts recognised as contract assets
are reclassified to trade receivables. The increase in contract assets in
2020 was the result of the increase in the provision of maintenance
services at the end of the year. The decrease in contract assets in
2019 was the result of the decrease in the provision of IT solutions
implementation and related services at the end of the prior year.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets as
at 31 December is as follows:

—FA

Within one year

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract
assets are as follows:

21.

BHREE (A

HARENREDEEERRERENE
B - RSB RAAERS - BB
IR TT ZR B e S AR RE AR 7 P 1S A FERR R
BREE - IREEMHE R L ARERY
BB AR RE M AR RS AR
MEBEEDARFARERATHE - TRANE
PRAFRHEER ZEZCHERBRENE
ENEHEENHDRERKREZHRR - 1
“E_TFEMNANEERMIARFERE
HEERBENAH - R_F—NFNEG
WEEMD TR EFFRIEHE AR
R RE I R AR R ARTS R A PR -

BHEEMERKD

2020
—BRO®F

2019
—T—NF
HK$'000
FET

20,226

HK$’000
TET
20,248

BHEBEEZREBRRBRZHNT

2020
—F-FF

2019
—h#F

HK$’000
TERT

HK$'000
TAET

At beginning of year REF -
Reversal of impairment losses, net (note 6) BEREEEFE (Mte) -
Atend of year NS -

MR EEER AR

—E-TFFIR
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27. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates for the measurement of the expected credit losses of the
contract assets are based on those of the trade receivables as the
contract assets and the trade receivables are from the same customer
bases. The provision rates of contract assets are based on days past
due of trade receivables for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. There was
no recent history of default for the contract assets. Since the contract
assets are still current and the payment is not yet due, the expected
credit loss rates of contract assets are assessed by the management
to be minimal.

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT ORLOSS

Debt investments, at fair value

Listed equity investments, at fair value
Money market certificate, at fair value
Derivative financial instruments, at fair value*

\

Portion classified as current assets

Portion classified as non-current assets

* The derivative financial instruments represented call options to acquire
addition 40% equity in a subsidiary, further details of which are included in
note 31 to the financial statements.

The listed equity investments were classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

21.

22.

RAFEFEZERRE
BATEFE 2 ETRAIRE 7,322 10,121
BAFEFEZEEMSHE -
BAFEFEZITEMBE T A

DEAERBEELT
DEEEIERBDEEILS

BHREE (A

RS B RRAREEMETRED T
UEtEBFRMEEEE -t EBA %7E§F§iﬁﬁﬂ
EEBERNBERTDERERE S RN
HEEBBRRBRZGFEMSH - Elﬁ
DHQF&EWﬁ%ﬁ XK EHRREFPE
CANBEMBEBERLERBHAY

Mﬂﬁ@M%EEﬁWTH%ﬁ“%Z@
BIMETE ° &t EHARRR IS A HA]
BOERBESFE - BRI R REE
RIFFERNAIERAISEEF -

FREEREAYRSRE SHNEELS
WHENRLE - BRSO EE AR
B HEREFGANEENTRMERED
BRBRIE -

BEOVEHEEZARZHE

gE

2020 2019
I

HK$'000

T8

2,100 4,633

_7_

HK$’000
FEx

43,195

61 -
9,483 57,949
(7,383) (55,849)
2,100 2,100

* PTABT 1 T B 45 U8 — R T 8 2 B Hh40%
BENRBEE E2FBIANMBRER
fEE3T ©

R ERBREEEMES E AL

ANFPELEESZARCYHBEE -
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22,

23.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

The debt investment and money market certificate were mandatorily
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as
their contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and
interest.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s listed equity investments with a
carrying value of approximately HK$7,322,000 (2019: debt and listed
equity investments in the aggregate of HK$12,654,000) were pledged
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS

22. BAFELEBEZ AR

BE (#)

EHFREREETMSFE - JHRsEns
BREATEREBEARIMBEE
HANBReREWIHE LRI NASRH

=
o

R-ZE-_EFE+_A=+—H0 Kx&£H
2 EMlRARREREEL 47,322,000 7T
(ZE2E—NF - EBBERETRAZES &
12,654000/870) E AR TASE 2 —
AEARTTBRE (EHE A o

23. REREFRTEEURSE
RRTER

2020 2019
—E-EE —F—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash and bank balances B RIRTTHER 87,077 68,870
Time deposits TEBFER 209,221 134,401
296,298 203,271
Less: Pledged time deposits for performance R MIRITEE 2 BARSE
bonds/guarantees issued by banks S EREERE BT
BN (666) (532)
Pledged deposit for banking facility MBITHE B ZRITRE
granted by a bank* BT 48 45 77 30 - (2,009)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the consolidated & A#R& M AR 2B &
statement of financial position FERRESEE 295,632 200,730

* The bank facility has not been utilised as at the end of the reporting period. *

RREFHAEER WRATHAZRITRE -

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi ("RMB”)
amounted to approximately HK$55,972,000 (2019: HK$47,063,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

RIEHBEER  REBUARE (TA
REDFEZESRBITEH LTS
E 4 5559720008 T (ZF— H &
47,063,000/87L) c ARBANAIEHABRA
EhEE - BRIEDS H R INEE 2 R
MaElE EENNETIERT  AE@EE
B BT EITIMEER 2 RITHEARE
HinBEAING o

M EGEEERAR —T-TFFR
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 23. BEeREFREEEUREIE

BANK DEPOSITS (CONTINUED) RBTER ()
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on relevant bank IRITER @ R BARRITE R IR EBF
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods EEHE - RHBEHERNEFANT—Z
of between one and six months depending on the immediate cash NEATE - BEREEBRER S F KM
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short )E WL AB R AR E HAE SR 5T B - 3R
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are ERREHEREFEREERITAR
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. E@Iﬁ#ﬁ(aﬂﬁzZﬁﬁ °
24. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 24. BENES RN HtENRIEA
e
ACCRUALS K Bt RE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET T
Trade payables ERE SRR 18,094 15,561
Other payables H fth B A 5RIE 26,709 29,355
Accruals TR 22,315 20,107
67,118 65,023
Portion classified as current liabilities SEARBDBELS (66,581) (65,023)
Portion classified as non-current liabilities SERERBBET D 537 -
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting RFERBEER  BHEZEREFIEHE
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: AZEREDITAT

2020 2019
HK$’000 HKS'000
FTHEx FHET
Within 1 month —EAR 10,008 11411
1to 3 months —Z==18A1 7,181 3,070
410 6 months ZE R A 216 385
Over 6 months 7NME A LA E 689 695
18,094 15,561

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled ENEZERLTE S - —RIZ30KER

on 30-day terms. HEE o

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 —Z_Z4+_A=+—H

25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

Advances received from customers BREF#

Sales of goods and provision of software,
GETS and BPO services BRETE SRS
R RIBINA
i3

RMHEME R

AR%5 - BB

Provision of software implementation
and related services, IT solutions

implementation and related services RARE LA
PR 7%
Maintenance services HeE RS

Portion classified as current liabilities

DERRBEERD
DERIERBDAER

Portion classified as non-current liabilities i3
The majority of the contract liabilities mainly include advances
received to render software implementation and related services,
IT solutions implementation and related services, and maintenance
services. The increase in contract liabilities in 2020 was mainly due to
the increase in advances received from customers in relation to the
sales of goods and provision of software, GETS and BPO services at
the end of the year. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2019 was
mainly due to the decrease in advances received from customers in
relation to the sales of goods and provision of software, GETS and

BPO services at the end of the prior year.

31 December

_7_

+=-HA=+—H
HK$’000
FHET

SHE S m MR HE

BHERE
AWBMFEDT -

25.

31 December 1 January
2020 2019 2019
2% —T-AF  —FAF
+=ZA=+—H —A—H
HK$'000 HK$'000

THTT THET

5,898 2,801 4,875
21,229 18,430 18,356
33,890 34,481 33,723
61,017 55,712 56,954

(58,708) (55,712) (56,954)

2,309 - -

RN EHNABEETERERRERTER
Ko B A AR A% éaﬂﬂ?ﬁiﬁmﬁ%ﬁ%:ﬁﬁm&*ﬁ
88 AR 795 DA Bz 4 o AR 7% P UL BR B B2 50

= Tiﬁﬁé%’ﬂﬁfﬁiﬂﬂixmﬁéiﬂiﬁ
FHEEmAREREMN  BRETESR
ﬁ%&%i%mﬁ%ﬁl\ﬂﬁ&i%zEH&%?}E@%’Kia
MeR—F-—NFHNANABERIERMH
Eéfiiiiﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%%’i%&%f#ﬁﬂ# IE
RETB SR EEBRIEIRBZE
WEFHBFRD o

M EGEEERAR —T-TFFR
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26. DEFERRED TAX 26. ELEH A
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year FAN-EREHBEEERBEZZFHNOT
are as follows:
Deferred tax assets EEBEEE
2020
—EEF
Losses Temporary
available for differences
offsetting arising from
against future contract
taxable profits liabilities Total
AHEEARRE RESGHAEE
BB A KB R ZERERE wE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET THET FHERT
At 1 January 2020 WZZE-ZTF—H—H 1,434 2,288 3,722
Deferred tax charged to the FAMBRGEERR S
consolidated statement of EAET IR
profit or loss during the year (610) (134) (744)
Exchange realignment E)‘Z‘Lﬁﬂﬁk - 166 166
Gross deferred tax assets RZZEZEF+A
at 31 December 2020 =+ —RHIRERIE
BEER 824 2,320 3,144
Deferred tax liabilities EEHRIBEEE

2020
It g 2.2
Fair value
adjustments
Deferred  arising from

Revaluation development acquisitionof Withholding

of properties costs  subsidiaries taxes Total
WEHEAR
NREM BERBREF <ATFERER BHH aE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TR TR THER THER TR
At 1 January 2020 —Z-TF5-A-H 826 4,367 8,148 608 13,949
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 31) Llﬁl B-REMBLAR (ME31) - - 387 - 387

Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the & 30k / ( uﬂ\ JEEBER
consolidated statement of profitor ~ Z IEFE T8

loss during the year (314) 799 (1,464) 148 (831)
Exchange realignment [ 5 A% - - - 8 8
Disposal of an investment property & —IETE;QWJ% (126) - - - (126)
Gross deferred tax liabilities E’\_ S-TETZA=1—H

at 31 December 2020 BEHARBER 386 5,166 7,071 764 13,387

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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26. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets

At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—HA—H
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the FRFA IR 74

consolidated statement of profit orloss 185K Z B FHIA

during the year

Exchange realignment ME W S

Gross deferred tax assets RZE—NF+=A
at 31 December 2019 = t+—RIRERIEA

BEER

Deferred tax liabilities

26. JEFERIE (&)

BEEREEE
2019
—E-AF

Losses Temporary

available for differences

offsetting arising from

against future contract
taxable profits liabilities Total

AHEEAKE REAHNAR
ARt A B B 1R 2B AR M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT T
- 2,713 2,713
1,434 (330) 1,104
- (95) (95)
1,434 2,288 3,722

EEBHAR

2019
—T-NF
Fair value
adjustments
Deferred arising from

Revaluation  development  acquisition of ~ Withholding
of properties costs subsidiaries taxes
WEHBLRR
NEER BERERA 2RATEAR RHH

HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
THET TAT BT THET

Total

HK$'000
TAT

At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—HA—H 1578 - 9,578 1574 12,730
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the FRINE/ (GEA) GRABEXR

consolidated statement of profitor 2 EFEFE I8

loss during the year 266 4367 (1,430) 411 3614
Exchange realignment B 5 B - - - 2 2
Disposal of an investrent HE-BERENE BENFE

property/tax paid (1,018) - - (1,375) (2,393)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE-NF+=ZA=1+—H

at 31 December 2019 EEREREER 826 4,367 8,148 608 13949

M EGEEERAR —T-TFFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 _E_ZF+_A=+—H

26. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group
for financial reporting purposes:

26. JEZERIE (&)

AEZNEM ETEEMNREERAE
EREGEEMBRRRAERE - A TH/EE
B e 15 R B 6 RIS R AT

2020 2019
—g-%%  —T h%

HK$’000
TET

HK$'000
TAET

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the REEUBRAKRER IR
consolidated statement of financial position T E EF R 2,320 2,288
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the REFE M BERARERZE
consolidated statement of financial position EHIEBEFRE (12,563) (12,515)
(10,243) (10,227)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied
if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group's subsidiaries established
in Mainland China, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At the end of the reporting period, in respect of certain subsidiaries
of the Group established in Mainland China, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$2,601,000 at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$2,438,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 —ZE =&+ _-A=+—H

26. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

27.

Tax losses not recognised
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unrecognised

tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$570,000
(2019: HK$2,953,000), subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits arising in Hong Kong of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has estimated
tax loss arising in the PRC of HK$1,089,000 (2019: Nil), subject to the
agreement by the tax authority in the PRC, for offsetting against
future taxable profit arising in the PRC which will expire in five years.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and/or due to the unpredictability of future taxable
profit streams of the companies in which the losses arose, and it
is currently not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

26.

27.

EEB T ()

AERNBIEEIE
RFERBEER  AEBREBEER

R AEEIB4 5700008 T (ZE— L&
2,953,000/ 7C)  ATER KB IREE S
EAEBERR ZRRBEREEH - M
BAEBBRRA - AEE B HFHES
BB E B 181,089,000 0 (Z T — A
FoE) D EBRAEFTRE AR F
SRR FE AR g FI) - M e o P B A TS MR
RA - ARZEBEBREES —BHE T
BEEZHBARR XEHARZENE
X B AR 2R E ER T g SRR T AT TEOR A B
R AT KA EREOR T 7] A1EER
HBIEBE W ARZEBERERRLT
RIBEE -

RN
R 12

2020
—g-%f

— i —

2019
—F—NF
HK$'000
FHETT

HK$’000
TERT

100,000 100,000

Authorised: SETE RN
1,000,000,000 (2019: 1,000,000,000) ordinary shares of ~ 1,000,000,000 &% (ZZE— A,
HK$0.10 each £F 1 1,000,000,000 f%) & HE
B0.108 L2 EimAk
Issued and fully paid: BEBITREBRRA

249,488,384 (2019: 249,488,384) ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each

249488384 (ZZE— NG :
249,488,384 i) A% EI(E 0.10
B2 E R

24,949 24,949

M EGEEERAR —T-TFFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 — - &+ _-A=+—H

27. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 27. B (4&)
Shares (continued) B (&)
A summary of movements in the Company’s issued ordinary share RRBEFETEBRAE - RO R ERRE
capital, share premium account and shares held under the restricted BERSIRG ZEEERE 2 R D EBH
share award scheme is as follows: T
Shares held
under the
Number Share restricted
of shares Issued premium share award
Ordinary shares inissue capital account scheme
BEERH
R B
B8 B8 R HERE
R4 2 %S REER 2kt ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THT THT
At 1 January 2019 W-Z-NE—F—H 249488384 24,949 53,104 (5,809) 72,044
Purchase of shares held under the BEARGIRN REE
restricted share award scheme ERN ) 29 - - - (623) (623)
Vesting of shares held under the B HIR 7D REE EIET
restricted share award scheme B EE 29 - - - 970 970
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE-NE+ZA
at 1 January 2020 e e =B
Quk Sk 53
—R—H 249,488,384 24,949 53,104 (5,462) 72,591
Purchase of shares held under the BEBRHIRNZEE
restricted share award scheme RN 29 - - - (235) (235)
Vesting of shares held under the BIR IR M REEEIET
restricted share award scheme BRHEE 29 - - - 1,217 1,217
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZF+ZA
=+—H 249,488,384 24,949 53,104 (4,480) 73,573
Share options B PG
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options BN TR 2 AR B s 2 BT
issued under the scheme are included in note 28 to the financial BERHE ~ SIS B TSR TS 28 o
statements.
Restricted shares A PR 4 B3 45
Details of the Company’s restricted share award scheme and the AN TR SRR 15 B S B R AR R s 2
restricted shares held under the scheme are included in note 29 to BT BRI RGBS NIRRT
the financial statements. 29 o

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme for the primary
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations. The share
option scheme entitles the holders of share options granted under
the scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company at any
time during the exercisable periods of the options. Share options
do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”)
in prior years. Eligible participants of the 2012 Scheme include
the Company’s directors (whether executive or non-executive
and whether independent or not), other employees of the Group,
consultants or advisers of the Group, suppliers of goods or services
to the Group, customers of the Group, the Company’s shareholders,
and any other person, at the sole discretion of the directors. The
2012 Scheme became effective on 19 November 2012 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the 2012 Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the 2012 Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders'approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval
in advance by the INEDs. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an INED of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company'’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HKS5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.
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28.

29.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 10 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HKS1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after
certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of offer of the share options or the expiry date of
the 2012 Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,
but may be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii)
the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

No share option of the Company was outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the current and prior years
and subsequent to the end of the reporting period up to the date of
approval of these financial statements under the 2012 Scheme.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the “Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 and renewed the Award Scheme on 31
May 2017 (the "Renewed Date”) under which shares of the Company
(the "Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected employees
(including directors) of any members of the Group (the “Selected
Employees”) in accordance with the provisions of the Award Scheme
and an irrevocable trust (the “Trust”) was also established by the
Company for the purpose of the Award Scheme. The Award Scheme
became effective on the adoption date and, unless otherwise
terminated or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the
Renewed Date. Further details of the Award Scheme are also set out
in circulars of the Company dated 29 April 2008 and 26 April 2017.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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29. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

(CONTINUED)

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares currently permitted
to be awarded under the Award Scheme throughout the duration
of the Award Scheme is limited to 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time or such other percentage as notified
to them by the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
(provided that the overall limit on the number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under any other incentive or share option schemes
and under the Award Scheme must not exceed 30% of the shares
of the Company in issue from time to time). Subject to the aforesaid
limit, the maximum number of the Awarded Shares which may be
awarded under the Award Scheme shall not exceed 2% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the year end date of the preceding
financial year of the Company for any 12-month period up to and
including the date of the relevant grant. The maximum number of
the Awarded Shares which may be awarded to a Selected Employee
under the Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the year end date of the preceding
financial year of the Company.

Pursuant to the rules governing the operation of the Award Scheme
(the “Scheme Rules”), the Board shall select the Selected Employees
and determine the number of the Awarded Shares to be awarded.
The Board shall cause to pay the trustee of the Trust (the “Trustee”)
the purchase price and the related expenses from the Company’s
resources for the shares of the Company to be purchased by the
Trustee. The Trustee is a third party appointed by the Board for the
administration of the Award Scheme. The Trustee shall purchase
from the market such number of shares of the Company awarded
as specified by the Board and shall hold such shares until they are
vested in accordance with the Scheme Rules.

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which
might include service and/or performance conditions, specified by
the Board at the time of making the award and becomes entitled
to the shares of the Company forming the subject of the award, the
Trustee shall transfer the relevant vested Awarded Shares to that
employee at no cost. The Selected Employee, however, is not entitled
to receive any income or distribution, such as dividend derived
from the unvested Awarded Shares allocated to him/her. The said
income or distributions shall be used by the Trustee for payment of
the Trustee’s fees or expenses or for purchase of further shares of the
Company for the Award Scheme.
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29. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

(CONTINUED)

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of any
shares of the Company held under the Trust, including, inter alia, the
Awarded Shares and further shares of the Company acquired out of
the income derived therefrom.

The fair value of the Awarded Shares awarded was based on the
market value of the Company’s shares at the grant date and the
Group recognised an equity-settled share-based payment expense
of HK$1,504,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$2,110,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 621,000 Awarded Shares
(2019: 537,000 Awarded Shares) were vested and transferred to
certain executive directors of the Company and certain employees
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2020, upon the
vesting of certain Awards Shares, the carrying value of the shares held
under the restricted share award scheme account of the Company
was reduced by HK$1,217,000 (2019: HK$970,000) and such amount
was transferred to the share-based payment reserve of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Trustee acquired for
the Award Scheme 110,000 ordinary shares (2019: 192,000 ordinary
shares) of the Company through purchases on the open market at
a total cost (including related transaction costs) of approximately
HK$235,000 (2019: HK$623,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no Awarded Shares were
awarded (2019: 420,000).
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29. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

The following Awarded Shares were awarded and outstanding under
the Award Scheme during the year:

At 1 January n—H—H
Awarded during the year FRET

Vested during the year ENEE

At 31 December W+-A=+—H

Out of the total of 12,465,000 Award Shares awarded, 4,250,000
Awarded Shares were awarded to the executive directors of the
Company.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 1,655,000 Awarded Shares unvested under the Award Scheme,
which represented approximately 0.7% of the Company’s ordinary
shares in issue at that date.

29. ARFIR 70 R E & (&)

BERGOOAT
2020
= ? —% ¢
Weighted
average Number of
fair value unvested
at grant date Awarded
per share Shares
R A H
shknE KERRRE
FHALE REB#E
HK$
BT
2.56 2,276,000
2.54 (621,000)
2,57 1,655,000

FAR - REZBFESRE REARTRZ

2019
—E-NF
Weighted
average
fair value
at grant date

er share

SR
AT
HKS

7

244

3N

245

2.56

Number of
unvested
Awarded

Shares

FERE
Kin g A

2,393,000
420,000
(537,000)

2,276,000

EFEH 7 A 1246500008 ZEI AL B
B RZARFITE B 4,250,000 % 2 E)

Betn

R ENEMBRRE R - AAFIRER
Bt & R R 2 SEEAR (0 2R B 431,655,000
B EARARZBEZEHITEBRRLY

0.7% °

MR EEER AR

—E-TFFIR

181



182

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 —Z—Z#+—-A=+—H

30. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 76 to 77 of the financial

statements.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations for wholly-foreign-
owned enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries,
which are established in the PRC, has been transferred to reserve
funds which are restricted as to use. The subsidiaries are not required
to effect any further transfer when the amount of the reserve funds

reaches 50% of their registered capital.

The Group's goodwill reserve represents goodwill which arose on
the acquisition of certain subsidiaries in prior years and remains
eliminated against consolidated reserves, as further explained in note

16 to the financial statements.

31. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 20 July 2020, the Group acquired 40% equity interest in CISC
Limited (“CISC") and call options to acquire addition 40% equity in
CISC (the “Call Options”). CISC is principally engaged in the provision
of products, solutions and consulting services on cyber intelligence,
and cyber security. The Group acquired CISC to further expand its
application services business and to extend its existing product
offering. The purchase consideration for the acquisition of 40% equity
interest in CISC and the Call Options in the aggregate of HK$1,700,000

was paid in the form of cash during the year.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling interest in
CISC at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of CISC's

identifiable net assets.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

30.

31.

40% P AN A 2

(G

$E@BAEE BIRBAEFEZHBEeBERE
""""" EE) 2RV BREREI6ETTAZLET
AREREERK -

RIBHNEBELCEERZAAPEIER N
AR R BRI Z AEBEMEQE 28
DHNECEBREREEDS  LRHIEM -
EREMBARZREESEIAEME
RZ50%1%  ZEWMBRARBAEE—F
-

AN KM 5T 16 — SR - RNEE
ZEERBEREEFERBETHER
RELZEE  BEARKRAFELHE-

EBE

R-ZE-ZEFLtA=-+H AEBEKE
CISC Limited ([ CISC J) 40% I A 4 25 2 3R B8
B ([FREBHARE|) DA Uk BE CISC 58 9N 40% A%
AR - ASCEEREIRBPBEETE
BEEMER  BRARENZRARE - K
EEWBASCLAE — P EXEERRS
XBRMEREEMMPEER o Y asc
MR EEREAR
1,700,000 8 TR A F R NIR S Z S ©

AREBEIZACSCZ FEEHI T HEETEE
Al 3% B8 R E A (G L) 2 JEIE A

A
I



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to a call option deed dated 8 July 2020 (the “Deed”), the
Group has the options (the “Call Options”) to require the other
shareholder of CISC (the “Grantor”) to transfer to the Group up to
a maximum of 2,000 ordinary shares of CISC (the “Option Shares”),
representing 40% of the enlarged issued share capital of CISC, at an
agreed consideration (the “Consideration’, as defined in the Deed).
The Consideration per Option Share is to be determined based
on certain formula taking into account the audited profit before
tax of CISC for the year ending 31 March 2021 less any income
not generated from normal business course and any amount
of subventions from government (subject to certain exception)
as further detailed in the Deed, provided however that the
Consideration shall be subject to certain maximum exercise price and
certain minimum exercise price as set out in the Deed.

Notwithstanding anything in the Deed, the Group shall have the
right to exercise the Call Options at the maximum exercise price at
any time after the date of the Deed. Subject to the above and other
provisions of the Deed, the Call Options shall be exercisable once or
more than once until the expiry of twelve months after the audited
financial statements of CISC for the year ending 31 March 2021 are
issued and provided to the Group and unless so exercised before
such prescribed time limit shall lapse and be of no further effect.
Pursuant to the Deed, the shareholders of the Grantor, being also
management of CISC, have guaranteed to the Group the due and
punctual performance by the Grantor of all its obligations under the
Deed.

To determine whether CISC is controlled by the Group, the Group
has considered all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over CISC, including, (a) the contractual
agreement with the other vote holder of CISC; (b) rights arising from
other contractual arrangements; and (c) the Group's voting rights
and potential voting rights (including arising from the Call Options).
When assessing whether the potential voting rights arising from the
Call Options are substantive, the Group has considered, inter alia, the
exercise price, relative to market terms; ability to obtain financing;
and timing and length of exercise period. Based on all relevant facts
and circumstances, including the amount of the Consideration
per Option Share (whether deeply out of the money), the financial
position of the Group and the fact that the Call Options are currently
exercisable, in the opinion of the directors, the potential voting rights
arising from the Call Options are substantive and, accordingly, the
Group has power over CISC because it holds voting rights of CISC
which together with the substantive potential voting rights give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of CISC, and thereby
control over CISC, and has been accounted for as a subsidiary of the
Group.

31. ¥&56t (&)

BIEASRA-Z -_TF+ AN\ BHOREH
BRE((RE]D)  AEBRHBAHE (R
BEHARE]) - ATESRASCHE AR ([ T
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) 2 2 (B 82 8 7 % 2,000 A% CISC & 3R A% ([ 2R
HERRAD]) - AECISCAE ¥ K B B 1T iR AN Y
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RETF  BEFERACEHEZE-_ZT-—F
A=+ —HIEFEMNEEZH R
BEEEWIEAERTEBBEREEANK
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31. ¥ 66t (@)
CSCRUER > T HBIEEREEY AT

date of acquisition were as follows: BT

31. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of CISC as at the

Fair value

recognised on

acquisition
I B SR
2 AYE
HK$'000
FETT
Property, plant and equipment W BERRE 13 106
Other intangible asset EmErEE 17 2,347
Trade receivables FEWE ZRR 291
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TR IR -« e RE R WGRIE 443
Tax recoverable AR B IE 32
Cash and cash equivalents RehkERBETEE 1,908
Other payables and accruals H o E A ZIE R ST 2R IE (615)
Contract liabilities aHEE (482)
Deferred tax liabilities EEIBEE 26 (387)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATEFECAHNEEFEERE 3,643
Non-controlling interests FEI2 ) M b 2 (2,550)
Goodwill on acquisition U b 2 16 516
1,609
Call Options RS R 91
Satisfied by cash RE XA 1,700

The fair values of the trade receivables and prepayments, deposits
and other receivables as at the date of acquisition amounted to
HK$291,000 and HK$443,000, respectively. The gross contractual
amounts of trade receivables and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables were HK$294,000 and HK$443,000, respectively, of which
trade receivables of HK$3,000 are expected to be uncollectible.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$258,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and are
included in general and administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Included in the goodwill of HK$516,000 recognised above is the
expected synergies arising from combining operations of the
Group and CISC. None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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31. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of a
subsidiary and the Call Options is as follows:

Cash consideration RERE (1,700)*
Cash and cash equivalents RekFERBECEE 1,908
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included FAREEHFGRERECRER

in cash flows from investing activities ZRRESEERNFE 208

* Including consideration for the acquisition of the Call Options.

Since the acquisition, CISC contributed HK$1,524,000 to the Group's
revenue and loss of HK$351,000 to the Group's consolidated profit for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, the
revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year would
have been HK$259,063,000 and HK$60,216,000, respectively.

32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-

of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$3,701,000 (2019:
HK$1,225,000) and HKS$3,701,000 (2019: HK$1,225,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for properties.

31.

32.

EBRE 0t (H)

BREWENB AT NREEZRERE
DWW

HK$'000
TET

* BREEERERERE -

AlERR ASCHE—_T-_TF+=-A
:+ BEFERAEERZ WA RKE

4R A F o B E Bk 1,524,000 7 7T K B 18
351,000,%750

WA HFERETK  AEERER 2 U
A K 2N 2 B F) FE 9 Bl A 259,063,000 78 7T
160,216,000 7 JT °

RERERERWE

(@) FEHFHRERS
FRN AEBEEBEYWEAELH®N
FRAREELRMERBENIERESA
E DA A3701,008 T (ZZE—A
£ 11,225,000/ 7t) 3,701,000 7T
(ZZ—N%F :1,225000/87T) °

B ZSEEFR A —E-TFFIR
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 32. MEBERERMNE (&)
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) METEMEEZ2AEED
activities

Lease liabilities

HEAE
HK$’000
FET

2020 —m—®s
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-_FTF—H—H 9,674
Changes from financing cash flows BmERERER (5,173)
New leases EE 3,701
Remeasurement on lease modifications HEBRENTE (2,303)
Interest expense A BF 1,155
Exchange realignment bE 3 & (16)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE_ZEF+_-_HA=+—H 7,038

Lease liabilities

HEBE

HKS$'000

THT

2019 —E—hE

At 1 January 2019 RZE—hF—H—H 15,715
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREF (6,799)

New leases WHE 1,225
Remeasurement on lease modifications HEEHEHTE (1,510

Interest expense FER X 1,102
Exchange realignment b H S (59)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NAF+=ZA=+—H 9,674

(c) Total cash outflow for leases () HEHABSRH
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of AR RERMNEERLESRT
cash flow is as follows: A

2020 2019

—E-EHF —E-NF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FET

Within operating activities LETEBN 301 -

Within financing activities BB EE A 5,173 6,799

5,474 6,799
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided

for in the financial statements were as follows:

Guarantees have been given to certain banks by the Company for
performance bonds/guarantees issued by the banks in relation
to certain contracts undertaken by the Group amounting to
HK$31,700,000 (31 December 2019: HK$31,700,000), of which
HK$20,926,000 (31 December 2019: HK$21,237,000) was utilised as at

31 December 2020.

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions, arrangements and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the following

transactions with related parties during the year:

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

33.

34.

KAREE
REEMRAER  ERRMBBRENME
HEHZ RARENT -

RAFERAEHEAE ZETALOMBESE
MIRITE N 2 BHORE ERMSE TR
R A #31,7000008 T (ZE—LF+=
A =-+—H :31,700,000% 7T) Z &% -
HF20926008 L (ZE—NLF+A
=+—H8:2123700087T) ERN_E =&
FH+-A=+—HH®HH-

BEALXRS
RUSHBRREGESFAZILS &
HERAERRSN AR E R R LT T 5
EALRS

AEBTEEBRABZMEWT

2020 2019

—E-FF —F-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FAT

Short term employee benefits I EE RN 13,848 16,526

Equity-settled share-based payment expense IR i 4 B AR (0 2 T B 2 955 1,308

Post-employment benefits EREER 162 159
Total compensation paid to key management TRNEEERAEY

personnel e saE 14,965 17,993

These included continuing connected transactions exempt from the
connected transaction requirements under Rule 14A.95 of the Main

Board Listing Rules.

Further details of directors’emoluments are included in note 8 to the

financial statements.

W ERER S BIEEREETER LT
FRAIE 14A05 KM BIER SR TE ©

BEEME 2 E— SHBENM RS -
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35 BIBIEZHE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial BB BTAENGERREER ZRA
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BT
2020 —E-EFE
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets
at fair value
through
profit or loss
BAFERLER
ARZHBEE
Mandatorily Financial
designed assets at
assuch amortised cost Total
il 2 18 86 B A
mitiEE ARZHMBEE W
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR K - 44,498 44,498
Deposits and other receivables & ME A FEAGRIE - 4,332 4,332
Financial assets at fair value through EAFELESARZ
profit or loss B EE 9,483 - 9,483
Pledged bank deposits EHEARITIFN - 666 666
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERBCEE - 295,632 295,632
9,483 345,128 354,611
Financial liabilities g 3=k
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
1R85 R A
ARZEBEERE
HK$’000
TET
Trade payables ERE SRR 18,094
Other payables H e 7R IE 26,709
Financial liabilities included in accruals FTAERTRIB MG EE 6,468
Lease liabilities HEBRE 7,038
58,309
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. BT Az (&)
(CONTINUED)
2019 —E-NF
Financial assets MEEE

Financial assets
at fair value

through

profit or loss
BRAFELER
ANRZHBEE

Mandatorily Financial
designed assets at
as such amortised cost

58 REESHRCR
WMtIEE ABRZHMBEE

HK$'000 HKS'000

T T
Trade receivables FEW B 5 R - 50,159 50,159
Deposits and other receivables e RH i EWFRIE - 4312 4312

Financial assets at fair value through BATELEERAREZ
profit or loss B EE 57,949 - 57,949
Pledged bank deposits EEAIRITER - 2,541 2,541
Cash and cash equivalents RehkERABESEE - 200,730 200,730
57,949 257,742 315,691
Financial liabilities BikaE

Financial
liabilities
at amortised

cost

TR SH R AR

AR BEE

HK$'000

FHET

Trade payables FERTE SRR 15,561
Other payables M E T FOIE 29,355
Financial liabilities included in accruals FFABRRIBE BB EaE 5533
Lease liabilities HEBE 9,674
60,123
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. YR TAQAFERAFEER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS £y
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the NGBS ER  AEFI % é“F)SiE
Group’s financial assets and liabilities reasonably approximated to BErrEAEAENTESIEHES
their fair values.
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash EEECTHESEEREBESEE R
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade receivables, current oz o E\WHRITER J?Euﬁz%%ﬁﬁm
portion of deposits and other receivables, trade payables, current e RnehEsn Zﬁﬁﬂfqﬁz RIH - }*H”’
portion of other payables and financial liabilities included in accruals SR EfhERE IE&qu)\FEqu RIE 7
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term B aE Z NFEEEREEMRSE 2
maturities of these instruments or the effect of discounting is not ARZETE ARSI RN E
material. WRERK -
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ?&ﬁﬁz NFEEVIEERR S
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a ZEREBEIIRZGZAIRSTESTEALRE
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or ME o ) 3k F Dgﬂj %,ﬁ\ljjﬂfﬁgugﬁ o NHITTIE
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used FEBERE ARG E TV TAEAFE

to estimate the fair values for certain financial instruments:

The fair values of the non-current deposits and other payables have IER %b%g%&ﬁ{mf‘ﬁ NIE) A BT E
been calculated by discounting the expected cash flows using ARG E’j*ﬁﬂ,{{\%?j{ﬂ’]lﬂ g EAIR
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms. In the =1 Efﬁbﬁﬁpﬂ- cEERE uxﬁﬁﬁfi
opinion of the directors, the fair values of these financial instruments TEMAFEHEERAMEHRS

approximate to their carrying amounts.

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based on FHERAREEEE 2 AN E TV IET SR
quoted market prices. BEE-
The fair value of a club membership debenture included in debt EJr)\fii‘%&éZ/\ﬁﬁA#ﬁ%&flﬁﬁﬁ%
investments and a money market certificate are based on available MBEFEZAFENETEBREL
market prices.
The fair value of the Call Options is determined using a the Binomial AEHE A ATFER - XEERETFT &
Model, which involves the construction of a binomial lattice which W REY - XNEEE RRERESESE
represents different possible paths that might be followed by the HAKRERNRZAIEEE -
stock price over the life of the Call Options.
Below is a summary of the significant unobservable input to the TE;%EA_ T - TF+-HA=+— )
valuation of the Call Options used in Level 3 fair value measurements 3R EFE 2 REH %f“ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ ZE
as at 31 December 2020: KTTQ% A BB E -
Sensitivity of
fair value to
Valuation technique Significant unobservable input the input
RER % EATHRERALE 2 ATEHBMALE
ZHRE
Call Options Binomial Model Volatility 51.12% When the volatility rate
R R ZXEER HE increases/decreases by 5%,

the fair value will be
increased/decreased by
HK$25,000 and HK$21,000,
respectively.

B0,/ /5% -

PN Fﬁﬁﬁ’ PRI,/
425,000 7T K

21,0007 7T ©
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTIN UED)

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 December 2020

Quoted prices

36. R TEAAFERAFEER
28 (&)

DR ESRRE
TRESALEMETAZ ATEFAES
R

BRAFENEZEE :
RZEZZF+A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AVEFRBUATRETNE

Significant
observable
inputs

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)
EAFAHE
BAHE
(#3fE)
HK$'000
TR

inactive
E G
(Level 1)
E IR
miaHE
(E18)
HK$’000
TER

(Level 2)
EATEE
BAHE
(82/8)
HK$'000
THT

L
HK$'000
TR

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: R AFELEBFHAE 2
WBEE -
Listed equity investments LEmRARE 7,322 - - 7,322
Debt investments EBRE - 2,100 - 2,100
Call Options R - - 61 61
7,322 2,100 61 9,483

As at 31 December 2019

Fair value measurement using
RHEFRAATREAGE
Significant
observable
inputs

(Level 2)
EAUER
BAHE
(%28)
HK$'000
FET

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)
BANBE
AR
(£3E)
HKS$'000
THT

Quoted prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

Vg
% mE
(B18)
HK$'000
AT

AR
HKS'000
THAL

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 1R AFEKEBFHAE 2
PBEE -
Listed equity investments EIRARE 10,121 - - 10,121
Debt investments EBRE 2533 2,100 - 4633
Money market certificate BEmniTE - 43195 - 43195
12654 45295 - 57,949

M EGEEERAR —T-TFFR
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. IBTAATFERAFEER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) o4& (1)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEEREE (E)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BAVEFEZEE (&)
The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during the year FAFIENAFEFEEBHUOT !

are as follows:

Call Options
HK$’000
THExT
At 1 January 2020 RZE_TF—H—H -
Additions NE 91
Fair value loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss FFAERKR I ATEEE (30)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZ_TF+_HA=+—H 61
Liabilities measured at fair value: EE’Z\‘$1E=|'EZE1$ :
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value AREBR -_Z-_TEFER-_T—NF+-A
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. =+—H ]IEEH?"H’“EFTE;.‘I‘EZWWE
f& -
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FRN RYBEELRMBEEMNS &
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for 1EBRFEE HEQTE? +§MZ :
both financial assets and financial liabilities (2019: Nil). ﬁﬂﬁiﬂﬁ.ﬁriii\iimgﬁ g (-
—NE &) o
37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. U BEAREEEEREE
AND POLICIES
The Group's principal financial instruments include lease liabilities, AEBZFEFKIABREHREAE B
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The main BRBETHERIARR S RERRSEE -
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group's WEVBRTAZTERRNARNEE 2 ¥
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities BEE AEEFEEMSEMBEENE
such as trade receivables, deposits and other receivables, trade and & WmERE FER Hﬁziﬁﬁﬁﬁfl& b
other payables, financial liabilities included in accruals, and financial H ENESEFNEMEN .]Jr)\
assets at fair value through profit or loss, which mainly arise directly FEZT TR IﬁZEﬁﬁ&Efﬁ&ﬁi@iﬂﬁé« B A
from its operations. ReMBEE WENBKEERABREE
BXEBEEEEES -
The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are ANEFGKTEEA 2 T EZRAM AMNEE
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, equity price risk and & N E R EERE - IRANERER
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for ;m@JﬁiJ—L ﬁ%AﬁﬁcﬁIH ETX
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below. Frigtal & 38 S IE L E R 2 BUR
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk

The Group'’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s cash at banks and bank deposits with

floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on

floating rate bank balances and bank deposits).

2020

Hong Kong dollar
United States dollar
RMB

Hong Kong dollar
United States dollar
RMB

2019

Hong Kong dollar
United States dollar
RMB

Hong Kong dollar
United States dollar
RMB

—g-%fF

/%E
EV
AR

/%E
EV
AR

—2-h#E

/%I
EV
AR

/’%E
EV
AR

37. IREREEEERBE (&)

R R

AR ER B A FE T 5 N R E BT A 2 ELR
ZEARNEEFHRNRITIRR w%@J?’F'JTquE

ZRERRTEREM -

Ti%%tﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁ\ﬁﬂ """"" FPER TR 215
P AR EZBRBA /ﬁn*lj(ﬁﬂ/?ﬁb?ﬁj—v—

ﬁEﬁ B R IRTT P

XTE)HNES

R RE IR E ) 2 GURIRE ©

Increase/
(decrease) in
basis points

EEEm/
(R2)

(25)
(25)
(25)

25
25
25

Increase/
(decrease) in
basis points

—_~ o~
NN N
U1 U1
=

25
25

%’J’EHF/\ )bﬁ.ﬁﬁa

Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
before tax
R A1 % 7
#n, G 2)
HK$’000
TET

(98)
(416)
(129)

928
416
129

Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
before tax

R 75 AT o A1)
#n, CRd)
HK$'000
FAT

—E-TFFIR
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk (continued)

There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained

profits.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
mainly arise from revenue generated and/or costs and expenses
incurred by operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets

37. EEREEEEREEK (E)

A = ke (4])
BRI RIS - YA R B S B A
&,

S L B

AEEEHEXZFEERR - LEREZR
BREEEMERAZEMINEEEUINEG
BRI Z AR HEEZRARFX -

TRUNERS L OERESTE 2R
T AR EREE G E B BB
MRS AERBEATEER) YA
EMERT A RS D B -

and liabilities).

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
exchange in profit
rate before tax

EXLH BR Bt Al 73 7
(NE) i/ (R2)

% HK$'000
FERT
2020 —E2%HF
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB WA AREEZE 5 (723)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB WA THARSHE (5) 723
2019 —E-hF
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB WS TH ARKEE 5 (697)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB WA THAREHE (5) 697
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained BRIRE RN - HAEE#ERMEE AR
profits. =,
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that most customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are to a certain extent subject to
certain credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored by the Group’s management on an ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure

to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at
31 December. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets.

As at 31 December 2020

37. BEAREEEERBE (&)

FERR

AEBETEERANEERFZE=ZNR
EEHRETRS HBRAKEZHEK
RO MREEGRETRIZER &
AXREELMABRBETEEERER - It
S WSR2 MR AN EEETE B R E

.
B

&S E KRS B TR R R
T%%f%#$ﬁlﬁfﬁ RHEHRER
RESEERR ETBUAHEHAER
(%#TET%E@;%$X%ﬁWE/
TREEMER) RRTZA=+—8
FRAMERBEDE - 2SO S B AN
BAEMREAME -

R-Z2-2HF+-A=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 7 &
FEBE ZHEHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—HE FoHER F=HER 1K (07 wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET TET FER FHET
Trade receivables* PR B 5 Bk - - - 48,359 48,359
Contract assets* BHEE - - - 20,248 20,248
Deposits and other Re RAMEK
receivables — Normal** FIB—EF 4,332 - - - 4,332
Pledged bank deposits B RITFH
— Not yet past due — i A B EA 666 - - _ 666
Cashand cash equivalents  RE&RERBE €
— Not yet past due BE-HABHE 295,632 - - - 295,632
300,630 - - 68,607 369,237

Mg R SR E AR QA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 — - &+ _-A=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. B EAREEEERBE (&)

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging BEERRBRREEBFMERR

(continued) (%&)

As at 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-hE+=A=+—8

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A & 5A
= EEE ZHEREEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—BER FREER FE=PEER b7 E PR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FHT T T T FHT THT
Trade receivables* FEWE 5 AR - - - 53,554 53,554
Contract assets* GHEE - - - 20,226 20,226
Deposits and other Re R HAbER
receivables — Normal** SRIE—IEE 4312 - - - 4312
Pledged bank deposits EHEMRITFER
— Not yet past due — A R 460 R 2,541 - - - 2,541
Cashand cash equivalents  IRE&RERBE €
— Not yet past due B E— Wk 8 200,730 - - - 200,730
207,583 - - 73,780 281,363

* For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group applies the * RAEEEREICHEAERENERE
simplified approach for impairment, information based on the provision PERRENEE  ERBEERENER
matrix is disclosed in notes 19 and 21 to the financial statements, DRI BRI B IRARMIE 19K 21 »
respectively.

** The credit quality of the deposits and other receivables is considered to be ** il ¥ & e HL A, S 3R T8 oK 480 B R I 4% E R
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information indicating RIMBEEAVIHEREREERRKE
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial En - BIRIER e REAMEURRIENEE
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered BZRIEF] TR ARMBEENE
to be “doubtful’. BEZAIRE] -

Since the Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised and HRAEEEIZHRIREERTFLE=S

creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. FIREBERIHETRS  WEFERS -

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty, EEEPRBREREF /HFHRibE RIZ

by geographical region and by industry sector. At the end of the TEIMBENER - RNMEHPEEER -

reporting period, the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk BARAEEERE SRR BERE329%
as 32.9% (2019: 23.9%) of the total trade receivables of the Group ZE-NF 1 239%) BEWEBRERTT
were due from certain departments/units of the Government of the BRERF (RAEBSARRE) B THA/

HKSAR, the Group’s largest customer. BUZHE  WAEBRERX —EEEEHF

[2\ Bz e

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit AEBREWEZERMEENEERR

risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 19 to the WEZECTEREZ  BBRERTBRE

financial statements. MsE19 -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price
risk arising from individual equity investments included in financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss - listed equity investments
(note 22) as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. The Group’s listed equity
investments are listed on the Stock Exchange and are valued at

quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% change
in the fair values of the Group’s listed equity investments, with all
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on

their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

37. I EKEE B EREEK (&)

% A {E 4% B B

BB A BB 2 5 R PR IR R A5 AN (R Al 3%
FEEZBCEBRBRAETS 2 A FERE
ZREB - AEEZBAEERBRENE =
ToEFR_E-NFF+_A=+—8HF
ERATFELBSEARZMEEE-LH
A E (M sE22) Z B AT E - A&
Bz EmBRARERBER ET  RikE
HEAE RS RETE -

TRHEINEMBEEMEREFTTE BN
TRAFEMNBBZER - LEERREAS
B AEEEMBRARER RS PRLE
EAZAFESESH 00 HEEE 2
BRRE -

Carrying Increase/
amount (decrease)

of equity in profit

investments before tax
BAREKE BR B A& Fl
ZIREE i CEL)

HKS'000 HK$'000
T FAET
2020 —E-%H
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EEB MRS -
— financial assets at fair value through profit or loss —“BRATVELESAERZ
MIGEE 7,322 732
2019 —F—
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: ERBELEMZRAKRE
— financial assets at fair value through profit or loss —EBRAFELERARSZ
MBEE 10,121 1,012

There is no impact on the Group's equity except on the retained

profits.

BRIRERAIN - HAEE RS E AR
o,

M EGEEERAR —T-TFFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. I EKEE B EREEK (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk REBESRRE
The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to meet REBEBERBRESEHNESUEN
its contractual payments for financial liabilities in the short and long HEHERRHAZUBAEESHANRK - EE
term. In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and NBESRRE AEEERERARER
maintains a level of cash and bank balances, and bank deposits ERAsTMRErSEEEMNTH S RIE
deemed adequate by management to finance the Group's operations TTHRBKFEUARBITER - WHEERS
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Cash flows MERDERNFE BREEERER
of the Group are closely monitored by senior management on an NERAEEZRERE -

ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the RFERBEER  NEBEIREBES LR
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, BRI ECHMBEBEINRBEREAT
is as follows:

2020
—g-%%
3toless
(o])] Less than than 1to

demand 3months 12 months 5years Total

=F
BEXME SR=@A +t=@ARA —E1F nE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
TER TET TET TERT TET

Trade payables B8 SER 16,574 809 711 - 18,094
Other payables Hofth fE 1 3B - 26,172 - 537 26,709
Lease liabilities HEBE - 1,107 4,527 3,022 8,656
Financial liabilities included in TR FIE 2
accruals BBarE - 6,468 - - 6,468
Guarantees given to banks for BRAEEAZEZET
performance bonds/guarantees BHEHBHRE
issued in relation to certain S ERMRRITIR
contracts undertaken by the Group £ Z #&1R 20,926 - - - 20,926
37,500 34,556 5,238 3,559 80,853
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued)

M¥EREEBERBX (B

REBESER (8)

2019
—E-NF
3toless
Less than than (R)
demand 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
==
BEREE TZEAR —ERF FkE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT FHT FHET FHET
Trade payables BB HER 13,713 1,153 695 - 15,561
Other payables H it JE TR 29,355 - - 29,355
Lease liabilities HEEE 1,108 5,355 3,947 10410
Financial liabilities included in TR FRIE 2
accruals BBaRE 5533 - - 5533
Guarantees given to banks for RAEEAZEZET
performance bonds/guarantees BEHEHBHRE
issued in relation to certain S ERM AR
contracts undertaken by the Group it Z ¥R 21,237 - - - 21,237
34950 37,149 6,050 3,947 82,09
Capital management BEXRERE

The primary objectives of the Group'’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’value.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’

equity.

AEEEAERZETZAMNER/RELRE
BREQEZENLERBRBEANLE
U EEB R ARREREAEE -

AEBRELERACEENEBEEZ
RBREE  EREHMERENGEERIE
HIAE - AEE R EBHBHRRIKE
ZBE - MBRRBEEERNLETHER K
FAFABRENGRE - AKEHAETEMN
SNEBEIMZ ERRE - BE_FT_FTFR
TE-AF+ZRA=t+—HIEFER K
SEZERNEERRE BERIBEFLES

AEBZBEARBAARRER DA

M EGEEERAR —T-TFFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R AR B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2020 — - &+ _-A=+—H

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. ANQ B BN &R

COMPANY
REERHEEBARATBRRKRZE

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

BT

2020 2019
—E2-FF —TNF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R ARIRE 177,584 155,532
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments FET A 327 322
Tax recoverable AR E IR 6 -
Cash and cash equivalents RehkFRBESEE 1,129 1,120
Total current assets mEEELE 1,462 1,442
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables, other payables and accruals FERTE S BRI - HAbFER
FIE R FEFT B 501 429
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 961 1,013
Net assets BEFE 178,545 156,545
EQUITY R
Issued capital BETRA 24,949 24,949
Share premium account % 17 % & BR 53,104 53,104
Shares held under the restricted share award scheme R IE B BR B A% 1D SEEh =t 2|
BBz KM (4,480) (5462)
Share-based payment reserve (note) A& < SR s (B aE) 5,673 5,386
Retained profits (note) R &F (FaE) 69,597 58,808
Proposed final dividend (note) R AR HRR B (M 5E) 29,702 19,760
Total equity i 178,545 156,545
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B aE (AR
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note:

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

At 1 January 2019 RZZT-NF—A—H

Profit for the year N H A

Vesting of shares held under the restricted AR HI i1 B2 B 2 E T AR (5
share award scheme i)

Share award arrangements fi& 15 52 2 Bk

Final 2018 dividend declared FER-FT-N\FRERE

Interim 2019 dividend —E-AFPHRE

Proposed final 2019 dividend IR —T—NFERARE

At 31 December 2019 and at 1 January 2020 RZT—NF+_A=+—HK

Eéf7f7¢ A—H

Profit for the year REF s F

Vesting of shares held under the restricted A R HI i1 B2 B I T AR (5
share award scheme =

Share award arrangements %17 B2 ) 22 HE

Final 2019 dividend declared ER-ZT-NFRARE

Interim 2020 dividend “ECTFREHRE

Proposed final 2020 dividend BRE-ZSE-TFRARE

At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZTF+-RA=+—H

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 16 March 2021.

38. AT BEAR R K (48)

P =E
RARFEEHEHENT
Share-based Proposed
payment Retained final
reserve profits dividend Total
IR A2 B AR
RS R F k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET BT THETT
4,246 41,523 29,599 75,368
- 59,342 - 59,342
(970) - - (970)
2,110 - 2,110
- (56) (29,599) (29,655)
- (22,241) - (22,241)
- (19,760) 19,760 -
5,386 58,808 19,760 83,954
- 52,892 - 52,892
(1,217) - - (1,217)
1,504 - - 1,504
- (29) (19,760) (19,789)
- (12,372) - (12,372)
- (29,702) 29,702 -
5,673 69,597 29,702 104,972

39. #LAEMKEERE

BN _T-_—F A+ BHERE
R TS o

B ZSEEFR A —E-TFFIR
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

YRS

31 DECEMBER 2020 — -+ _-A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location

1. Units 1,2 and 3 on 11" Floor
Westlands Centre
No. 20 Westlands Road
Quarry Bay
Hong Kong

2. Unit No. 2601 on Level 26
South Tower
Guangzhou World Trade Centre
Complex
Nos. 371-375 Huanshi East Road
Dongshan District
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
PRC

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Long term lease

REIHEE

Medium term lease

RHAHE

Attributable
interest of the

Group
rEBEMN
BHEBEDL
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FEFEHBEE

AT RAEERAERA AV RFERZEENRE
ENBEZHME  DREEACTIEZLERY
BHRE YOBEBEHBHIE - WHEL T
RS BZ B HRREREAED

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.

RESULTS

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=+—-HLEE

2020 2019 2018 2016
—EZEf —T-NEF ZT-N\F 2 —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FAT FHET T FET
REVENUE A 256,265 275,893 281427 253915 258,699
Cost of sales and services SHE RARFE AR (111,477) (120,639) (121,492) (110,424) (112,578)
Gross profit EF 144,788 155,254 159935 143,491 146,121
Otherincome and gains, net  E Lt A\ e Wit % 58 22,279 7875 10,084 9,264 5194
Foreign exchange differences, [E X Z %8348
net (625) 335 329 (905) (109)
Fairvalue gains/(losses), net: A F{EUE,/ (B51E) F58
Financial assets at fair value BRAFELCERAEZ
through profit or loss A E (2,755) 323 (384) 1,380 235
Investment properties wEME (941) 3626 4406 3,590 1,000
Selling and distribution HE RS HAY
expenses (32,812) (36,631) (35,358) (34,497) (33,823)
General and administrative —R RIS F 5
expenses, net (60,906) (63,455) (57,788) (55453) (55,799)
Finance costs B%ER (1,155) (1,102) - - -
Other expenses Hith ¥ (6,233) (6,024) (6,024) (6,024) (6,024)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX MR B AR R 61,640 60,201 75,200 60,846 56,795
Income tax expense FTiE B (1,726) (4,308) (7172) (6,517) (6451)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 59,914 55,893 68,028 54,329 50,344
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: LU AL B4
OWNERS OF THE PARENT [SYNSIE7FS PN 60,125 55,893 68,028 54,329 50,344
NON-CONTROLLING FEE 1 R 2
INTERESTS (211) - - - -
59,914 55,893 68,028 54,329 50,344

M EGEEERAR —T-TFFR
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

EFEHBEBMEE)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
Wt+t=A=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EZEE —E—hE —T-N\F —ZT—+tF —E—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHET T FET
TOTAL ASSETS BEEHAE 667,268 633,965 631,345 608,150 604,172
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEAE (151,709) (152,586) (153,281) (155,182) (162,690)
515,559 481379 478,064 452,968 441482
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